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10.

11.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM17 -A
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
SEC Identification No. 13951
BIR Tax ldentification No. 000-649-197

Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter - VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY
CLUB, INC.

Province, Country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization - Antipolo,
City, Philippines.

|:| (SEC Use only} Industry Classification Code

Address of principal office - Don Celso S. Tuason Ave. Victoria Valley, Antipolo,
City

Issuer's telephone number - 658-4901 to 03, 658-4920, 658-0079 to 89

Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report
- Not Applicable.

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 & 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of
the RSA

Title of each class Number of Shares of Ordinary Shares
Qutstanding and Subscribed

Common Shares 1,594 shares outstanding
Are any or all of these securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange.

Yes No X




12.

Check whether the issuer :

(a) has filed all reports to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1

there under or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 there under and Sections 26
and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding 12 months (or for
such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports);

13.

14.

Yes X No
(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes No X

The market value of each share of stock of Valley Golf as of June 30, 2018 is
P400,000.00 plus P112,000.00 transfer fee; for June 30, 2017 it was P312,000.00
plus transfer fee of P67,200 (promo period for transfer fee) or P112,000.00 (regular
transfer fee rate), and; for June 30, 2016 and 2015 it was at P250,000.00 plus
transfer fee of P56,000 (promo period for transfer fee) or P112,000.00 (regular
transfer fee rate). For the years 2003 to 2014 market price is at P 400,000.00 to
P 500,000.00 for Club subscription and P332,000 to P292,000 for third party
market. Market prices were based on subscription rates and transactions
processed in the club.

The aggregate market value therefore of the 1,594 issued and outstanding shares
of Valley Golf at P512,000.00 is P816,128,000.00

Valley Golf is not involved in insolvency/suspension of payments proceeding
during the preceding five years; this is not applicable to us.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
A. Annual report to security holders

The Annual Report to stockholders contains the President’s and
Treasurer's Report, the Financial Report of the Independent Auditors, the
accomplishments of the present Board of Directors, the pictures of the
present Board of Directors, the roster of Committee members and various
pictures of the events of the preceding year. The financial report and its
discussion are incorporated in Part Il — Operational and Financial
information, whereas the information on the Directors is included in Part 11l
— Control and Compensation Information.

B. Proxy Form

The proxy form attached is the form sent to all stockholders in
connection with the stockholders’ meeting and included therein are the
matters to be voted upon by the stockholders. This is incorporated in Part
| — Business and General Information.




PROXY
No. $-2018-Acct. No.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
That the undersigned, , a STOCKHOILDER/CORPORATE

REPRESENTATIVE of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc., a Philippine Corporation, do hereby name,
nominate, constitute and appoint:

as my PROXY to represent me at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc., to be
held on 23 September 2018, and/or any postponements or adjournments thereof, for me and in my stead, as
fully to all intents and purposes as | might or could do if present and acting in person; hereby revoking any and
all proxies issued prior hereto; ratifying and confirming all that my PROXY may do or cause to be done in said
meeting by virtue of this presents, as follows:

Vaote for Quorum purposes only(__};

Vote for Approval of the Minutes of the 2017 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting(__);

Vote for the Approval of the Company’s 2018 Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements(__);

Vote for the Ratification/Confirmation of the Acts and Resolutions of the Board of Directors &

Management (July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 inclusive){__);

5. Vote for the Appointment of External Auditors(__);

6. Vote on all matters arising from the agenda (except the sale or disposition, total or partial, of the
corporate assets){_ ); and

7. Vote for Candidates to the Board of Directors*(__).

(Y)=Yes; (N)=No; (A)=Abstain.

LN

In case of absence and/or non-attendance of my PROXY at such meeting, | hereby authorize and duly empower
the Chairman of the said Stockholders’ Meeting to represent the undersigned on all matters related to above,
EXCEPT TO VOTE FOR CANDIDATES fo the Board of Directors.

*CANDIDATES FOR DIRECTOR Number of Votes cast  Put (X) to withhold authority
to vote for the foliowing
Candidates.

JAIME S. BILBAO
LEOPOLDO M. GARCIA
ALBERT G. QUE
RONALD O, SOLIS

. 2018, Antipolo City, Philippines.

Name of Stockholder/Corporate Representative
Member's Account No.

(N.B.: Each Proxy is entitled to cast a single vote to as many position being voted upon. Accordingly, a
Proxy may opt to vote singly or collectively in favor of one or more candidates.)




PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

A)

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS.
1) Business Development

Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. is situated at the rolling hills of Antipolo,
City, a private and non-profit club organized in 1958 by a group of golfers, well-
known and influential businessmen headed by the late Don Celso 8. Tuason. The
property is about nine kilometers from EDSA and about seven kilometers from
Antipolo. The site formerly owned by Hacienda Benito measures almost 210
hectares when it was originally purchased. On May 14, 1958 the original Articles
of Incorporation was approved by SEC. At present the Club has an authorized
capital stock of 1,800 shares at P 9,000 par value and 1,594 shares are issued
and outstanding.

The building of this dream course has taken all of three years from the
planning of the lay-out, the grading and the sculpturing of its contoured fairways
and formidable greens, to the final touches on the tee-shaped clubhouse Architect
Gabriel Formoso designed in the Malayan motif. To get the best playing
possibilities from the saucer-shaped course, the Valley authorities brought in not
one but two reputable golf course architects, an Englishman named Fred Smith
and an Australian named Jas H. Scoit. It is a tribute to their artistry, skill and
thoroughness that, with the exception of two holes, their plans coincided almost
exactly. It was Scott’s lay-out which was finally accepted.

The original seven ( 7 ) Board of Directors were Celso S. Tuason, Aurelio
Montinola, Sr., Ernest Kahn, Henry Belden, J. Antonio Araneta, Francisco Ortigas,
Jr. and Jaime Velasquez. The course was opened for play on November 1961
and attracted a great traffic of players and aficionados. With this encouraging
trend, the Club was expanded to accommodate another par-69, 18-hole course on
the north in addition to its original south course in 1994.

The South Course is a par-72 championship layout, sits on 90 hectares of
rolling hills and meandering brooks. It played host to the famed Philippine Open
in 1975, 1983, 1991 and 2011. It was during the 1983 Philippine Open that
American Jeff Lewis established the course record of 65.

On November 1991, Valley Goff for the first time, became the venue of XVI
Southeast Asian Games Golf Championship.

Valley's green are meticulously designed so that the golfer is challenged to
use most, if not all, of his clubs in the bag. The terrain provides the contour which
assures that no two shots will ever be alike. Some notable holes: the tight first,
the picturesque Nos 4 and 10, the intriguing No. 16 and the short but tricky No. 18.




When play traffic increased at Valley, a nine hole all-weather course with a
par 36 layout spread over 50 hectares was added. Valley acquired from the
adjoining property owners through barter arrangements several parcels of land,
enabling it to expand the nine holes into an 18-hole complex now known as the
North Course (formerly Executive Course). This is open to non-members and
tourists who wish to play at Valley. It exemplifies the finest the Philippines have to
offer in international championship golf courses. Some notable holes: Hole No.
15 with its tee overlooking the entire golf course and a man-made terrace; and
Hole No. 6 best known for its island green.

The North Clubhouse has been compieted and was inaugurated last Nov.
1999. It is now fast becoming the favorite venue for tournaments and parties. We
have a new Food & Beverage concessionaire in the North Clubhouse offering a
variety of new menus and accepts catering for special events. A Sports Clubhouse
equipped with modern sports facilities and other amenities that will suit every
man’s needs are still in the planning stages. The Main Clubhouse was renovated
while preserving the original aesthetic design and concept of the architect as a
reminder of the historical past of one of the oldest golf club in the country. The
latest renovation is the Men’s Locker Rooms which was completed and
inaugurated last April 10, 2013. The new locker room is spacious and
accommodating to the needs of the golfing public. The amenities include the air-
conditioned locker rooms, newly rehabilitated wood lockers, sauna bath, clean
bathrooms and a scenic pocket garden.

The South Course was rehabilitated into a world class golf course. The
plans for the course upgrading and engineering studies were prepared by Planning
Resources and Operations Systems, inc. The Club hired the services of Eco-Turf
and Turf Care Systems, Inc. as the Construction Manager and Golforce,
Incorporated as the Contractor. Works started on the back 9 holes in August 2002
and was completed last October 2003 and it was playable in November 2003. As
per approved plans the layout will not be changed only the drainage system will be
improved and the course will be all weather. Funding came from the shares sold
on installment basis and loan from members.

Rehabilitation works of the front nine South Course started in November
2003 and after completion was inaugurated on Nov. 20, 2004. Contract for labor
for the rehabilitation was awarded to bidder Philgolf Development & Equip, Inc. in
the amount of P 20,000,000.00. Materials were purchased in-house with an initiat
budget of P 31,500,000 and additional budget of P 4,000,000.00 for the bunker
sand and P 1,552,000.00 for herring bone installation. As of June 30, 2005 total
cost of the renovation stood at P 130,000,000 (gross of vat) or P 125,000,000.00
(net of vat)

During the fiscal year 2009 the Board approved the renovation plans of the
Main Clubhouse. Phase 1 included the Executive Offices, Board room, function
rooms, upper and lower veranda and main lobby. With a total estimated cost of P
9 Million, the Board awarded the contract to Reyes Interiors for the amount of P
4.5 Million excluding the cost of plumbing fixtures, electrical fixtures, grillwork on
veranda, gutter works, glass and aluminum panels, floor and wall tiles and ceramic
tiles on base columns. Works started on July 15, 2008 and were finished sometime
in September 2009.




For the fiscal year 2010, restoration works were done to repair the damage
caused by the typhoon Ondoy on the Club’s properties. Total cost amounted to P
4,504,509.00, which was taken from the special assessment to members with a
total billing of P 4,886,000.00. The balance of the funds was used to continue the
riprap works in the South Course. Capital expenditures during the year included
extension of Hole # 14 of the North Course, riprap of waterways in the South and
North courses, concreting of the DCTA, purchase of varifold for the Founders’ Hall
and purchase of ground equipment.

For the fiscal year ending June 2011, the projects undertaken included the
concreting of the Don Celso Tuason Avenue from the bridge gate up to Sumulong
gate which was completed at the cost of P 5 Million. Other projects during the year
include riprapping of slope protection at the South and North courses, repair of the
Caddie House and construction of new gasoline station. We also purchased 3
units Flymowers, 3 units Backpack blowers and 3 units Rotary mowers. By July,
Renovation of the Main Clubhouse resumed which included Phase 2 —
Construction of Office Basement and the Coffee Bar with a budget of P 3.7 Million
and P 450,000 respectively. Another project undertaken was the construction of
the golf car parking shed amounting to P 1.5 Million

For the fiscal year ending June 2012, the projects undertaken included
Phase 2 of the Renovation of the Main Clubhouse — Construction/Renovation of
the Office Basement — P 4.31 Million, golf cart parking shed — P 1.08 Million, Air
conditioning units for basement office — P1.21 Million, Coffee bar — P 512k and
Valley Golf cart shed — P 478,000. Ongoing projects at the time included the
improvement of motorpool area and Riprap/slope protection at Hole # 17 of the
South Course. The equipment purchased during the year included the following:
Fairway aerator, Flymowers, Rotary mowers, bush cutters, walk behind fertilizer
spreader, backpack blowers, sound system, ID card maker and PABX telephone
system.

For the fiscal year ending June 2013, the projects undertaken included
Phase 3 of the Renovation of the Main clubhouse — which consisted of the
Renovation of the Men'’s locker room with a total contract price of P5,000,000.00,
(materials supplied by the Club amounted to P1,000,000.00), construction of the
pocket garden for P 600,000, purchase of air con units for P430,000 and
installation of double panel solar water heater for P675,000 ( paid for with golf
shares). The men’s locker room in the North Clubhouse was likewise renovated
at a cost of P535,000 and was used by members and guests from Jan. to Apr.
2013 during the renovation period of the locker room in the Main Clubhouse.
Other projects undertaken were the: construction of the Wall of Honor — P88,000,
satellite kitchen — P184,000, and guard house at Hole # 12 South Course —
P201,000; Rehabilitation of the Koi Pond — P435,000; reblocking and asphalt
overlay of DCTA — P 4 Million, and; riprap works in the South Course — P191,000.
Meanwhile, construction of the members’ gym and lounge, renovation of the clinic
and tee house in the North course were still on-going at the time. Equipment
purchased included the greens mower with groomer — P615,000 and danfoss
variable speed pump control — P250,000.




For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 the on-going projects from the
previous year that were completed included — the Men’s Lounge and Gym —
P419,000, tee house in the North Course Hole # 4 — P467,000 and renovation of
the clinic — P247,000. Other projects completed during the year were — Phase 2
of the reblocking and asphalt overlay of DCTA — P3.88 Million, installation of
roofing for the golf cart area — P773,000, Kitchen exhaust system - P217,000 and
kitchen hood fire suppression system — P150,000. On-going projects at the time
were the sanding of fairways and improvement of bridges in the North Course.
Various equipment were purchased during the year which included — 10 units Golf
carts — P 2.65 Million, 1 unit greens mower with groomer - P640,000, 2 units walk
behind rotary mower — P150,000, 2 units flymower — P110,000, 1 unit Truck
mounted man lifter — P690,000 and 1 server and computers. .

Other projects of the Club included the streamlining of operations and the
outsourcing of the grounds maintenance for both the South and North Courses.
The Board of Directors approved on Aug. 8, 2014 the engagement of the services
of MJ Carr Golf Management, Inc. for the maintenance of both courses for a
monthly service fee of P 2.7 Million inclusive of VAT for a period of three years.
Likewise, a voluntary early retirement program for the employees was approved
with payment of 125% and 150% of the basic pay for every year of service.

For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015, the following projects were
completed:

1. Purchase of one (1) unit back hoe P 3,303,571.43
2. Purchase of ten (10) units golf carts 2,800,000.00
3. Purchase of 4 units desk top computers 160,000.00
4. Purchase of 2 units 2 way radio 23,000.00
5. Repair of controller pump of the South course 150,714.29
6. Renovation of satellite kitchen 45 471.00
7. Driving range shot area 81,194.10
8. Additional golf cart storage 70,058.94
9. Purchase of copying machine 243,000.00
10. Purchase of 17 units Samsung Galaxy tablets 407,830.00
11. Purchase of 7 units transformer book 156,100.00
12. Purchase of 3 units brush cutters 37,500.00
13. Purchase of projector 33,900.00
14. Purchase of 2 units iru cut edger 40,850.00
15. Purchase of steel lockers 62,400.00
16. Improvement of bridges 226,555.98
17. Improvement of drainage in Hole # 5 South course 535,714.28
18. Improvement of driving range facilities 48,901.79
19. Renovation of Bag drop area 938,178.97

9,364,940.78
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The following were the projects for Fiscal year 2016

PARTICULARS
Controller for vertical turbine pump
Rehabilitation of bunker sand
Repair of pump in the North Course
Sound system for the Founders’ Hall
Purchase of tablets, Laptop and printers
Purchase of Riso digital duplicator
Rehabilitation of the South course

The following were the projects for Fiscal year 2017
PARTICULARS

Repair of South Course pump

(total project cost is P3.25 Million)

Irrigation system

Construction of Expansion of Men’s Locker room
Renovation of Secondary & Sumulong gates
Purchase of 20 units golf carts

Purchase of 8 units desktop computers
Rehabilitation of bunker sand

Repair of Bag drop area Phase 2

Repair of Pump North Course

. Rehabilitation of South Course
. Purchase of Suzuki carry for water delivery
. Purchase of 2 units projectors

The following were the projects for Fiscal Year 2018

Repair of the Main Clubhouse roofing (on-going) P
Rehabilitation of the North Course bunkers (on-going)
Purchase of Service Vehicle
Purchase of 15 units electric golf carts
Purchase of Emergency vehicle
Purchase of Tables, Chairs and Sofa
Purchase of 11 units desk top computers
Purchase pf 1 unit welding generator
Purchase of 10 units Air coolers
Purchase of Sophos firewall
P

AMOUNT DISBURSED

P 621,012.58

P 2,817,418.14

P 186,000.00
P 363,248.45
P 144,830.00
P 125,000.00

P 5,454,400.38

AMOUNT DISBURSED

P 1,346,277.66
1,395,843.28

225,000.00
199,988.00
5,880,000.00
187,500.00
3,035,840.85
600,317.38
245,000.00
5,379,464.16
160,000.00
64,000.00

P 18,719,231.33

1,654,387.30
2,321,428.57
1,241,800.00
4,410,000.00
743,107.40
250,000.00
311,000.00
235,200.00
159,950.00
150,000.00

11,476,873.27

For the fiscal year 2016, the Club engaged the services of Cafirma, Ong & Co.,

CPAs, represented by Mr. James A. Cafirma as the Internal Auditor of Valley Golf &
Country Club, Inc. effective Jan. 12, 2018. This is the first time that the Club outsourced
the Internal Audit services of the Club. The Club also entered into a Build Operate and
Transfer Arrangement with Freeport Elite Resort Inc. for the construction and operation of




the Driving Range for a period of 15 years. Another food and beverage concessionaire,
Jay-J's Food Management, Inc. was engaged by Valley Golf for the North Clubhouse for
a period of 3 years. On January 20, 2017 the Club entered into a three year contract with
Anix’s House of Kare Kare as the F & B Concessionaire for the Main Clubhouse.

For the fiscal year 2018 the following are the significant contracts of Valley Golf.
On October 2017 the Club engaged the services of Cubacub Law and Accounting Office
as the Internal Auditor of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. Mr. Rizaldy Legaspi was hired
as Golf Director effective Sept. 16, 2017. The contract with Smart Communications was
renewed last Oct. 1, 2017 for another 10 years. Golf Course Maintenance Service
Agreement was entered into between Valley Golf and VMJ Evergreen Golf Maintenance
and Construction Corporation effective Jan. 1, 2018 up to Dec. 31, 2020.

THE PROJECTS FOR IMPLEMENTATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 ARE AS
FOLLOWS:

FISCAL YEAR 2019

PRIORITY LEVEL
1 GOLF COURSES

South Course

1 Dredging Works at Holes 12, 16 and 17 1 5957,884.80
South Course and Hole 15 North Course
2 Perimeter Fence - Barbed Wire Installation
and Repairs 677,040.00
3 Repair of Driveway at Hole # 11 154,665.00
4 Improvement of path bridge approach 112,000.00
North Course
1 Lighting of Holes 1 to 18 1 3,472,000.00
2 Upgrade of Irrigation System and Cistern Tank 1 224,000.00
3 Installation of Lightning Arrestor
(8 units) 1 1,371,440.00

2 CLUBHOUSES, FACILITIES & OTHERS

1 1 9,973,980.80

Reblocking and Drainage Improvement

of DCT Avenue

PURCHASE OF MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT, VEHICLES & OTHER
3 EQUIPMENT
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11
12
13

14
15

16
17

18
19
20

Nine (9} units Desk top computers
at P40,000 each.

Nine (9) units MS Office 365 at P6,625 each
Twenty-one (21) units renewal of M5
Office 365

Printers

Controllers - 2 units @ 15,000

Clubhouse Affairs/ Membership

2 units @ 12,000

Sports & Games - 1 unit @ 24,000

Laptop - Sports & Games

Television 43" (2 units @ 32,000)

Membership ID Maker

Club Management System with Accounts
Receivable Module

Mitsubishi L 300

Half lockers for Men's Locker room
10 units with 6 doors @ 10,000
Photocopying machine
Motorcycle for Marshal

Range Finder

Green Speed Reader

Hand Held Radio for Sports & Games

2 units @ 15,000.00

Backhoe loader .50 cu.m.

Backhoe 3/4 bucket (Long Arm) Wheel Type
Electronic

Forward Truck

Barge

Manlift Truck

N M NN
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360,000.00

59,625.00
139,125.00

30,000.00

24,000.00
24,000.00
35,000.00
64,000.00

235,000.00

1,000,000.00
750,000.00

100,000.00

495,000.00
75,000.00
20,000.00

20,000.00

30,000.00
1,000,000.00

4,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,500,000.00

850,000.00




21
22
23
24
25
26

Aircon for Ladies' Locker (4hp split type)
DSLR Camera

Electric Golf Carts (10 units @ P294,000)
Air Coolers (10 units x P16,000)

Indoor Manlift

Aircon for Basement Office (additional)

4 CLUB PROJECTS
1 Country Club activities such as Sunday Mass,

Weekend barbecue, Easter Egg Hunt,

Halloween party, Summer arts & crafts,

Dance studio, Christrnas Party, etc.
5 CALAMITY FUND

TOTAL PRIORITY 1
TOTAL PRIORITY 2

CAPEX OF PREVIOUS TWO FISCAL YEARS

FISCAL YEAR 2018

1 GOLF COURSES
North Course
Rehabilitation of bunker sand

VLiC Pumps

South Course
Filter for pumps

Rip rapping of Holes 5, 10 and 18

65,000.00
25,000.00
2,940,000.00
160,000.00
560,000.00
66,000.00

= N = R NN

2 500,000.00

2 5,000,000.00

45,069,760.60

33,699,010.6
11,370,750.00

45,069,760.60

PRIORITY LEVEL

1 5,200,000.00
6,000,000.00

1 1,000,000.00
1 1,000,000.00

10




2 CLUBHOUSES AND FACILITIES
Upgrading of Tee houses

2 Replace the railings in the veranda to wood.

3 Improvement of Function room in the
North Clubhouse

4 Replacement of Roof of Main Clubhouse
and repair of eves & gutters

> Renovation of Ladies Locker Room

6 Lower Lanai Multi-Purpose Room

7 Renovation of Swimming pool

8

Guest Locker Room Renovation

1 500,000.00
1 500,000.00
1 500,000.00

1 6,264,461.89

1 2,137,040.92
1 3,961,270.13
1 4,879,796.37
1 965,829.16

PURCHASE OF MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT, VEHICLES & OTHER

3 EQUIPMENT
1 §ix (6) units MS Office License

1 License MS Office Pro at P22,500 each

5 License Open License at P5,500/year

System Enhancement

Payroll System

TOTAL PRIORITY 1
TOTAL PRIORITY 2

FISCAL YEAR 2017

2 50,000.00
2 300,000.00
2 160,000.00

33,418,398.47

32,908,398.47
510,000.00
33,418,398.47

PRIORITY LEVEL

11




1 GOLF COURSES
South Course
1 construction of drainage at cart path #5 1 85,000.00

2 Irrigation - Additional sprinklers 1 1,430,000.00
(100 pcs. X P14,300.00)

North Course

Irrigation system

Part 1 - P 3,500,000.00
Part 2 - P 3,500,000.00
Part 3- P 3,338,750.00
Total - P10,338,750.00

2 Renovation of pump room 1 230,000.00
2 CLUBHOQUSES AND FACILITIES
1 Replacement of Roof of Motorpool area 2 460,000.00
2 painting of roof of Motorpool Fabrication 2 75,000.00
area.
3 2 150,000.00

Concreting of road from Driving range

- going to cart path of fairway #10 North course
' 4 Renovation of bag drop area 1 3,000,000.00

Phase 3 for FY 2017 - P 3,000,000
{Includes the Restaurant area)
Phase 4 for FY 2018 - P 5,000,000

{Includes Grill room restaurant)

PURCHASE OF MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT, VEHICLES & OTHER

3 EQUIPMENT
1 one {1) unit Laptop 2 25,000.00
2 2 75,000.00

Timekeeping Software

12




Biometric machine 35,000.00

Aircon for room on upper level of North 35,000.00

Clubhouse

TOTAL FISCAL YEAR 2017 5,600,000.00

TOTALPRIORITY 1 4,745,000.00
855,000.00

TOTAL PRIORITY 2

5,600,000.00

Valley Golf does not have any bankruptcy, receivership or similar
proceedings.

Valley Golf does not have any material reclassification, merger,
consolidation, or purchase or sale of a significant amount of assets not in the
ordinary course of business.

2) Business of Issuer

The main business of Valley Golf is golf and country club operations. Our
main sources of income are monthly dues from the members and green fees from
guests; they comprise 40% and 17% respectively of the gross income.

Valley Golf does not have foreign sales, distribution methods of products
nor publicly announced new product.

International Opportunities - Being a member of Valley Golf & Country
Club, Inc. allows the members the privilege of playing in foreign golf clubs like the
Kelab Golf Negara Subang in Selangor, Malaysia; Singapore Island Golf and
Country Club; and Royal Selangor Golf and Country Club in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia. In the year 2002 we were able to establish reciprocal righis with Klub
Golf Bogor Raya of Indonesia and Royal Palm Springs Golf Club of Malaysia. In
2017 the Club established reciprocity rights with the largest golf course operator in
the world, Mission Hills Golf Club in China.

The principal competitors near our area of operations are two privately
owned golf courses, Forest Hills Golf and Country Club located in Cogeo, Antipolo
City and Eastridge Golf & Country Club in Binangonan and one public course, Sun
Valley Golf Course. These golf courses are relatively new and are still building up
their membership base; whereas, Valley Golf having been in the business for 60
years old is already proud Golf Club with its roster of respectable membership.
Valley Golf's luscious greens and fairways are still the best in the area and very
well maintained. The rainforest trees in our courses that have matured through
the years have provided a canopy on the fairways and its majestic beauty is

13




something that other golf courses cannot duplicate. The friendly atmosphere and
the camaraderie of the entire membership and employees are what make our golf
course unique. Eastridge has an 18-hole golf course and Forest Hills has a 36-
hole golf course but Valley Golf's greens, fairways, trees, sandtraps and
meandering rivers will always make the difference. Each golf course may have its
own unique characteristics but Valley Golf's design and intriguing South Course is
something that has always attracted the enthusiasm of golfers. The challenging
contour of the courses will always make one's round of golf an enjoyable and
unforgettable experience. Valley Golf's all weather South Course has already
made its impact on the members and their guests.

Our competitors are marketing their new facilities and in anticipation of this
Valley Golf rehabilitated the South Course into an all-weather golf course. We
have completed phases 1 and 2 of the renovation of our Main Clubhouse including
the Men's locker room, the restaurant/veranda area and the offices to keep up with
the modern trends in interior design while still maintaining the unique architecture
of our clubhouse. Financially, Valley Golf is more stable than our competitors
because our focus now is maintenance and constant improvement. Moreover, our
Stockholders’ Equity has long been built up unlike our competitors who are still
selling shares of stock to augment their capital.

Valley Golf has no branch or subsidiaries so we do not have transactions
with related parties. The other parties we usually transact with are the suppliers
of office, grounds and motorpool supplies. In Dec. 2015 the Club entered into a 3-
year golf course maintenance agreement with MJ Carr Golf Management. Upon
the expiration of the contract of MJ Carr, a Golf Course Maintenance Service
Agreement was entered into between Valley Golf and VMJ Evergreen Golf
Maintenance and Construction Corporation effective Jan. 1, 2018 up to Dec. 31,
2020. We have concessionaires for golf supplies, restaurants and driving range
but these are not part of the Club’s major sources of income. We do not have
patents, trademarks, copyrights etc.

Valley Golf has an approved registration from BIR of its VAT and NON VAT
activities. The Club keeps up to date its annual Municipal Business and Sanitary
Permits from the City Government of Antipolo.

A governmental regulation which affected the Club was the implementation
of the CTRP. Before the CTRP, the Club was exempted from the payment of
income tax as per Sec. 27 of the NIRC. By reason of the CTRP, the Club is now
subject to 32 % income tax effective Jan. 1998.

The 26 international Financial Reporting Standards and revised
International Accounting Standards by the Accounting Standards Council which
took effect in January 2005 started affecting the financial reports of the Club for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006. The significant effects are on the recognition
of income tax expense and derecognition of deferred tax assets in the absence of
definite plans that operations for the coming years shall result to net income after
depreciation. Other minor effects were in the recording of interest income, capital
gains, property plant and equipment and depreciation and lease-finance
expenses.
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In August 2012, the BIR issued Revenue Memorandum Circular No. 35-
2012 — Clarifying the Taxability of Clubs Organized and Operated Exclusively for
Pleasure, Recreation and Other Non-profit purposes. Under Revenue
Memorandum Circular No. 35-2012, membership dues which were previously
exempted from VAT and income tax by virtue of BIR Rulings issued by the then
Commissioner Chato and Asst. Commissioner Roldan in 1996 and 20086,
respectively, are now subject to VAT and income tax. Said Revenue Memo
caused a significant impact in our finances and adversely affected our cash flow
forcing the Board of Directors on Sept. 15, 2012 to increase membership dues
effective Oct. 2012. The Club complied under protest with the mandate of
Revenue Memorandum Circular No. 35-2012.

For fiscal year 2014, the Club applied certain accounting standards that
require restatement of previous year's financial statements, particularly Revised
PAS 19, Employees Benefits. This required all actuarial gains and losses to be
recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income. Also, unvested past service costs
previously recognized over the average vesting period, were recognized
immediately, whether in income or loss, when incurred.

Being a golf course, we do not spend much for research and development
since our major concern is the maintenance of the golf course. We sometimes test
new products for our insecticides, fertilizers, sands and grounds equipment but
these are either samples given for free or the amount involved is very minimal.

The Club strictly adheres to all environmental laws. Sources of water are
from the running creeks along the fairways and fertilizers used are all
environmentally friendly and not hazardous to health. The Board signed a mutual
environmental protection project and tree planting and seedling propagation with
the DENR. Organic materials are being used for the maintenance of the greens
and fairways. During the year 2001 the Club had undertaken the planting of around
300 golden coconut seedlings near the perimeter fence and within the golf course.
Animals such as ducks and wild birds are allowed to roam within the creeks and
fairways. In 2010, we constructed a green house for seedlings of various irees
and several tree saplings were planted in the courses or given to members. In our
locker rooms, we had eliminated the use of plastics and styropor. Instead we made
use of cloth bags and paper cups. We also eliminated the use of plastic cups in
the fairways and clubhouse; instead, we are using paper cups.

Total number of employees is 84, all full time. We have 17 General
Manager, Department Managers and Supervisors and 67 rank and file employees.
The 67 rank and file are covered by a CBA which will expire on Oct. 2022. The
breakdown of the employees are as follows; Office of the GM — 1, Golf Affairs —
13, Clubhouse — 22, Controllers - 18, Engineering —24 and Administration/HR — 6.
When we started engaging MJ Carr Golf Management for the maintenance of the
golf courses, the Grounds Department was abolished. Our employees have never
been on strike for the past three years neither are they threatening to strike.
Supplemental benefits includes free meals during overtime and holidays and
special events in the Club, free coffee during break time and various gift items
during Christmas seasons.
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There is no major risk involved in the business of Valley Golf & Country
Club.

The club members’ equity as of June 30, 2018 is P 256 Million. We do not
issue unsecured bonds. Valley Golf has been in business for 60 years.

ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Seen from the air, the Main Clubhouse, which was designed by noted
Filipino Architect Gabriel Formoso, takes on the unmistakable shape of a golf ball
perched on a tee. The “golf ball * houses the Men's Locker Room. The “ tee *
houses the upper veranda, the golfers’ lounge and a viewing deck where one can
enjoy the action on the 8th or 18th green.

Adjacent to the Main Clubhouse are two swimming pools with cabanas for
men and women. The Club now has a state-of-the-art fully lighted for night use
driving range with amenities such as coffee shop and restaurant, sports bar,
members’ lounge, pro-shop and shower rooms. The driving range has two-level
driving bays, all equipped with convex mirrors while the upper-level bays feature
the revolutionary TMAX-GOLF motor less dispensers. Adequate parking near the
Main Clubhouse is assured for as many as 200 cars.

The North Clubhouse is furnished with modern facilities, complete with
restaurant, function rooms, locker rooms and offices. The restaurant is now being
managed by a concessionaire as part of innovations being introduced to the
membership.

a) Location and area of the properties.

Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. is located along Don Celso S. Tuason
Ave., with entry and exit on Ortigas Ave., Extn. and Sumulong Highway. Total land
area is 1,222,971 sq. meters, part of which is in Antipolo City and another part in
Cainta, Rizal.

b.) Description and condition of the properties.

All properties are registered in the name of Valley Golf Club, Inc. and none
of the properties are mortgaged nor encumbered. The Club does not lease any of
its fand.

Valley Golf does not intend to acquire any properties in the next twelve (12)
months.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

All pending legal cases are enumerated and discussed as per attached
report of the Legal Counsel.
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Teomo C. Asgo B
AmMano Danilo G. Tavac
BERNADETTE G. JUAREZ
Resma-Rose T. Rosario
RonaLpo L. Sanros, Jr
Parrick Josera M. Quirio
ARLENE B. FERANDO

P

25 June 2018

SYCIP, GORRES, VELAYO & CO.
6760 Ayala Avenue, Makati City

Attn:  MR. ALEXIS BENJAMIN €. ZARAGOZA I}
Partner-In-Charge

MR. FLLOYD P. DE LA CRUZ
Associate Director

Gentlemen:

Further to the letter request of our client Valley Golf and Country Club,
Inc,, we are submitting a report on the cases handled for our client.

1. ir Victor Vi i  Coim

(SC GR No. 190641; CA-G.R Civil Case No. 80378; RTC-Makati City,
Branch 138: Civil Case No. 01-528; SEC Case No. 01-97-5522

This is a complaint by a former stockholder of VGCCI for reinstatement of
playing rights and/or issuance of new shares of stocks. The complainant claims
the auction sale in 1986 of his share for delinquency of his accounts was void
for lack of notice to him. He is also claiming the amount of PhP20,000.00 as
attorney's fees as well as costs of suit against the Club. In its Answer, the Club
claims that the complainant’s action is already barred by the statute of
limitation and there was proper notice to him of his delinquency and the
auction sale. As counterclaim, the Club is claiming PhP50,000.00 as moral
damages, PhP50,000.00 as exemplary damages and PhP25,000.00 as attorney's
fees. The Regional Trial Court has rendered judgment dismissing the complaint
as there was no infirmity in the auction sale of complainant’s share, Mr. Reyes
has filed an Appeal with the Court of Appeals where the case of now pending.
During the pendency of this appeal, the plaintiff passed away and the court,
upon motion of his heirs, ordered their substitution as the plaintiffs.

4/F Copylandia Building Annex 1, No. 720 Bumaiay Sireet, Mandaluyong City, 1550 Philippines .
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On August 5, 2008, the Court of Appeals rendered a Decision reversing
the decision of the Regional Trial Court and declared the plaintiff (as
substituted by his heirs) to be entitled to the reinstatement of his playing
rights and/or the re-issuance of a new share of stock from Valley. The
Court of Appeals said that the notice issued to the plaintiff as to the auction sale
was defective as the registry receipt was not sufficiently authenticated and that
even assuming there was notice of delinquency sent to the plaintiff the
payment of dues was the responsibility at the time of the playing guest to whom
the playing rights of the share was assigned. The Club filed a Motion for
Reconsideration on August 26, 2008 which was denied by the Court of Appeals
in its Resolution dated November 25, 2009. On December 18, 2009, the Club
filed a Petition for Review with the Supreme Court. The heirs of Victor Reyes

already filed their Comment to which Valley Golf filed its Reply on 03 January
2011.

On 10 November 2015, the Supreme Court rendered its decision denying
the Club’s petition for review and affirming the Court of Appeals decision. On 16
February 2016, Valley Golf filed its Motion for Reconsideration. However, this
was denied by the Supreme Court in its Notice dated 16 March 2016 which we
received on 25 May 2016. An Entry of judgment has been issued and hence, the
decision has become final and executory. On 30 April 2018, undersigned
counsel received a Motion for Issuance of Writ of Execution filed by the
plaintiffs’ counsel. We then filed on 11 May 2018 a Comment/Manifestation to
the motion stating that while Valley Golf intends to comply with the Decision
dated 05 August 2008 of the Court of Appeals which has already become final
and executory, its compliance should be in accordance with law and consistent
also with Valley Golf's own rules and procedures regarding stock ownership,
transfer of shares and approval of membership and playing rights. The court in
its Order dated 21 May 2018 has already granted the plaintiffs’ Motion for
Issuance of Writ of Execution. To forestall any inconvenience to Valley Golf and
ensure orderly compliance with the Court of Appeals’ decision, we met with
plaintiffs’ counsel on 30 May 2018 to explain to them the rules and procedures
regarding stock ownership, transfer of shares and approval of membership and
playing rights and inquired if plaintiffs are willing to accept a playing right
instead of a golf share. Plaintiffs’ counsel undertook to relay the information
given to his clients and revert to us which to date, he has yet to do.
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2. Vi lub, 1 s i L

(Civil Case No. 09-8769, Branch 71 of the Regional Trial Court of
Antipolo City)

This is a complaint for accion publiciana to recover possession of real
property belonging to the Club under TCT No. 518354 currently being occupied
by several squatters. The Club is seeking a decision from the Regional Trial
Court ordering the defendants (about 37 in number), together with their
families/households, and any and all persons claiming rights from them, at
present and in the future, to vacate the subject properties in question and to
restore the possession of the same to the Club. The Club is also seeking the
payment of the attorney’s fees in the amount of PHP50,000. 00 acceptance fee
and the amount of appearance fees, as and by way of attorney’s fees, as well as
for defendants to pay the costs of suit and litigation expenses.

Some of the defendants have filed an Answer claiming that they and their
predecessors-in-interest have been in possession of the Club’s property for
more than thirty (30) years which will entitle them to the ownership and
possession of the property. They also claim that the Club’s title is not valid since
the property was acquired from the Manila Railway Company and that under a
1900s law, the railway company was bound to give the property back to the
public once it is no longer used for railway operation. As counterclaim,

defendants are claiming PHP500,000.00 as moral damages and PHP20, 000 00
attorney’s fees for each of them.

Valley Golf has previously filed a motion to declare in default some of the
defendants who failed to file their Answer and this motion was already granted
by the court. On 04 September 2013, in view of the failure of the defendants
represented by counsel to file their Pre-Trial Brief, the court allowed Valley Golf
to present its evidence ex-parte. These defendants filed a Motion for
Reconsideration which Valley opposed and the court denied this motion. Valley
Golf presented its evidence ex-parte and filed its Formal Offer of Evidence. The
other defendants filed another Manifestation with Motion, seeking that they be

allowed to present their own evidence which was denied by the court after
Valley Golf filed its opposition.

On 02 September 2015, Valley Golf through its counsels received the
Decision of the Regional Trial Court which declared Valley Golf as the lawful
owner of the property and ordered it to be placed in possession of it and the
defendants were ordered to vacate the same to surrender it peacefully to Valley
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Golf. Some of the defendants filed a Motion for Reconsideration to which Valley
Golf filed its Comment/Opposition on 27 October 2015,

In the interval, Valley Golf signed in 2015 a Memorandum of Agreement
with Malaya Valley Homeowners' Association, Inc., which, though not a party,
claims to represent all the informal settlers on the subject property, some of
which are already defendants in this case. Upon the instructions of the Board
and management, Valley Golfs counsels filed a Motion for Approval of
Compromise Agreement or the terms of the MOA. However, some of the
individual defendants filed a Manifestation claiming that they did not sign and
are vehemently opposing the Compromise Agreement {MOA).

On 24 October 2016, the RTC of Antipolo rendered an Order denying the
Motion for Reconsideration of some of the defendants and approving the
Compromise Agreement insofar as the defendants who were not opposing it.
The defendants who filed the Motion for Reconsideration then filed a Notice of
Appeal. On the other hand, upon the instructions of the Board of Directors, we
filed on 21 December 2016 a Motion for Partial Reconsideration of the Order
insofar as it approved the Compromise Agreement considering that a great
number of defendants who are supposedly beneficiaries of the MQA are
objecting to it thereby putting to naught the objective of the MOA to end the
litigation, and that it will now be virtually impossible to implement the MOA
based on its original terms and premises. The Motion for Partial

Reconsideration was approved and defendants’ Motion for Reconsideration was
denied.

Some of the plaintiffs thereafter filed a Notice of Appeal from the
Regional Trial Court’s decision, On 19 June 2018, we received an Order from
the Court of Appeals directing the defendants-appellants to file their Brief
within forty five (45) days from their receipt of the Order. Valley Golf has forty
five (45) days from receipt of the appellants’ Brief to file its appellee’s Brief.

3. Valley Golf Hills Homeowners Association, Inc. vs. Valley Golf and
Country Club, Inc.

(HLURB Case No. NCRHOA-051016-2436, HLURB Expanded National
Capital Region Field Office, Quezon City)

This a complaint filed by Valley Golf Hills Homeowners Association, Inc.

against Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc. praying that the control, management,
security, and maintenance of the gates to and roads within the subdivision be
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turned over to them. The complainant seeks to enforce Section 10, pars. (c) and
(d) of R.A. 9904, otherwise known as the "Magna Carta for Homeowners and
Homeowners' Associations” which provides that homeowners associations have
the right to regulate management of common areas, as well as to regulate access
to, or passage through subdivision/village roads for purposes of preserving
privacy, tranquility, internal security, and safety and traffic order.

On 10 June 2016, Valley Golf, through counsel, filed its Answer (with
Counterclaim). In the Answer, it was argued that the complaint ought to be
dismissed on the ground of lack of jurisdiction considering that it does not fall
under any of the disputes or controversies under the jurisdiction of the HLURSB,
as provided for under Section 2, Rule 1 of the Revised Rules of Procedure of the
HLURB. In any case, it was likewise argued that the complaint ought to be
dismissed for utter lack of merit. At the outset, it was pointed out that the
Supreme Court had already ruled with finality that the property {Don Celso
Tuason Avenue) is private property solely owned by Valley Golf. Furthermore,
the law sought to be enforced by the Complainant, in particular, Section 10 of
R.A. No. 9904, does not apply in the present case. Lastly, it was stressed that to
turn over the management of the gates and roads on property owned by Valley
Golf would be tantamount to a taking without due process and without payment
of just compensation in violation of the Respondent's property rights.

In view of the failure of the parties to agree on an amicable settlement
during the mandatory mediation conferences, both parties were required to file
their respective Position Papers. Thereafter, the case will be submitted for
decision. On 02 August 2016, we filed Valley Golf's Position Paper.

On 24 May 2017, Valley Golf received through undersigned counsel a
Motion for Issuance of Writ of Preliminary Injunction and/or Cease and Desist
Order filed by plaintiff's new counsel. Valley Golf filed its Comment/Qpposition

to this Motion to which plaintiff filed its Reply. On 28 June 2017, Vailey Golf filed
its Rejoinder.

On 21 July 2017, Valley Golf received through undersigned counsel, the
Notice of Decision of the Housing and Land Use Arbiter which ordered the
dismissal of the complaint for lack of jurisdiction. On 17 August 2017, we
received the Appeal Memorandum of the plaintiff appealing the said decision.
Valley Golf filed its Counter-Memorandum on 29 August 2017. On 18

September 2017, we received the Notice of Receipt of Records from the Board
of Commissioners of HLURB.
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On 30 May 2018, plaintiff sent a copy of its Board resolution to Valley Golf
whereby the former’s board of directors resolved to drop the case against
Valley Golf in the understanding that Valley Golf shall withdraw countercharges
and no further complaints or charges will be pursued regarding the control of
the gates along Sumulong Highway and Ortigas Extension. Upon instructions
from Valley Golfs Board, we drafted a Compromise Agreement to be signed by
both parties and filed with the HLURB in order to obtain a judgment by

compromise. The draft Compromise Agreement is pending approval by Valley
Golf's Board of Directors.

The Club has a monthly retainer agreement with the Firm. Valley Golf
and Country Club, Inc. has an outstanding billing in the amount of Thirty Three
Thousand Seven Hundred Twelve Pesos (PHP33, 712.680) with our Firm as of
June 30, 2018, We trust that we have been of assistance.

Very truly yours,

AMAD/DANILO G. TAYXAG
For the Firm

CC: MR.ABRAHAM DE LA CRUZ
President

VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
-Antipolo City
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the Annual Stockholders’ Mesting was
held on Sept. 24, 2017. Out of the 1,593 issued and subscribed shares, 917 shares were
represented by proxy or present in person, and majority being in attendance, the
President, as Presiding Chairman, declared a quorum.

At the unsuing election, the following were elected as Directors:

1. Wilfredo G. Manahan - 939 votfes
2. Jeremy Z. Parulan - 848 votes
3. Albert DG. San Gabriel - 735 votes

The other directors whose term of office continued are Messrs. Abraham C. dela
Cruz, Luis Quiogue, Luis Manuel S. Polintan, Augusto Cruz, Jaime Victor Santos and
Virgilio Bucat.

Matters discussed during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting include the ratification
of the acts of the Board of Directors from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017, approval of the
minutes of the annual meeting held on September 25, 2016 and the election of the external
auditor. On the election of the External Auditor, the stockholders resolved to elect Sycip
Gorres Velayo & Co. as the Club’s External Auditor for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2018.

The details of the discussion are as follows:

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING OF
VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
Held at the Main Clubhouse
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.,
Don Celso Tuason Avenue, Antipolo City
24 September 2017 at 4:00 p.m.

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING 1,593

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES PRESENT/REPRESENTED 917

AND ENTITLED TO VOTE (57.6%)
l. CALL TO ORDER

The Chairman, Mr. Isaure V. San Pedro, Jr., called the meeting to order and
presided over the same. The Corporate Secretary, Mr. Rio Sesinando E. Venturanza,
recorded the minutes of the proceedings.

L. CERTIFICATION OF NOTICE AND QUORUM

The Secretary confirmed that notices of the meeting were duly sent to all members
of the Club together with a copy of the materials for the meeting.

Based on a certificate issued by the Club’s courier, Suremail Courier Services Inc.,
attesting to the mailing of the notices of the meeting to the Club’'s stockholders of record,
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the Secretary certified that notices of the meeting were sent to all stockholders of record
as of 25 August 2017. A copy of the certificate has been attached to this minutes pursuant
to the instructions of the Chairman.

The Secretary certified that, based on the register of attendees and proxies as
tabulated by the Stock Transfer Agent, out of the 1,593 shares representing the total
outstanding capital stock of the Club, 917 shares of stock were present in person or by
proxy representing an attendance of 57.6%of the total outstanding capital stock of the
Club. Accordingly, the Secretary certified that a quorum existed for the transaction of the
business at hand.

. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE LAST STOCKHOLDERS® MEETING

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the reading of the minutes of the last
stockholders' meeting held on 25 September 2016 was dispensed with as the same had
been previously circulated/distributed to the stockholders. The Chairman opened the floor
for questions about the minutes of the 2016 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. There being
no questions raised, the minutes of the last stockholders’ meeting was thereafter approved
as circulated/distributed:

VOTES IN VOTES
AGENDA ITEM FAVOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
Approval of Minutes of the
Previous Meeting of (5?167;/) (© 0000/) © 0%0/)
Stockholders e SV i

The following resolution was thereafter passed:

“RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of the
Stockholders of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. (the
‘Corporation’held on 25 September 2016 be as it is hereby approved.”

Iv. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES OF THE LAST STOCKHOLDERS'
MEETING

The Chairman, Mr. Isauro V. San Pedro, Jr., opened the floor for inquiries relative
{o the previous year's minutes.

Mr. Jose Ferlu Sudario raised two concerns. First, he asked why the Annual
Stockholders' Meeting is being held late and second, the Annual Report was also
distributed late. According to him, it was his first time to experience this kind of delay in
the stockholders meeting.

The Chairman apologized and explained the cause of delay. The Board wanted to
make sure the members of the Board of Directors are in complete attendance before the
meeting started. A member of the Board happened to represent the Club in a golf
tournament that was held almost at the same time. For the betterment of the Club and
pursuant to Mr. Sudario’s request, the Board noted and put on record his two concemns.
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After the Chairman's explanation and considering that there are no other questions
relative thereto, the Chairman proceeded with the next item on the agenda.

V. READING AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board approved and adopted the
agenda for the 24September 2017 Annual Stockholders’ meeting as presented.

VL PRESIDENT'S REPORT AND PRESENTATION OF AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Chairman, Mr. Isauro V. San Pedro, Jr. manifested that all stockholders were
provided copies of the Club’s Annual Report.

The Chairman, presented the Club’s 2016 Annual Report and Audited Financial
Statements. According to him 2016 was a relatively good year for the Club. He then
presented the financial performance indicators for 2016 vs. 2015.

Thereafter, the Chairman opened the floor for questions regarding the 2016 Annual
Report specifically on the Club’s operations and Financial Statements. No questions
having been raised by the stockholders present, the Annual Report together with the
Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017, was, upon
motion duly made and seconded, approved based on the results of the voting via poll:

AGENDA ITEM VOTES IN FAVOR | VOTES AGAINST ABSTAIN

Approval of 2016
Annual Report and
Financial Statements

917 0 0
(57.6%) (0.00%) (0.00%)

The following resolution was likewise approved:

“RESOLVED, that the 2017 Annual Report on the operations of
VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. (the ‘Corporation’) together with
the Audited Financial Statements and accompanying notes for the fiscal
year 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017, be as it is hereby approved.”

Vil. RATIFICATION OF CORPORATE ACTS

The Chairman next presented for the stockholders’ confirmation, ratification, and
approval a list of the acts of the Club’s Board of Directors and Management for Fiscal Year
July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 including disposal of non-performing assets and settlement
of cases that may involve disposal of some Club properties from the date of the last
stockholders’ meeting up to this meeting.

Upon a motion being made and duly seconded to confirm, ratify, and approve all
the acts of the Club’s Board of Directors and Management, including the disposal of non-
performing assets and settlement of cases that may involve disposal of some Club
properties from the date of the last stockholders’ meeting up to date of the present
meeting, and there being no objection from any of the stockholders’ present, the motion
was approved based on the results of voting via poll:
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VOTES
AGAINST

VOTES IN

FAVOR ABSTAIN

AGENDA ITEM

Ratification of all acts of the
Board of Directors and
Management from the date of 917 0 0
the last stockholders’ meeting (57.6%) (0.00%) (0.00%)
up to the date of the present
meeting.

The following resolution was likewise approved:

“RESOLVED, that all acts of the Board of Directors and
Management of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. (the
‘Corporation’) for the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017, including the
disposal of non-performing assets and settlement of cases that may involve
disposal of some Club properties from the last stockholders’ meeting on
25September 2016 up to the date of this meeting, be as they are hereby
confirmed, ratified and approved.”

Vill. APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Chairman informed the audience that, after deliberations and upon the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors approved the re-
appointment of Sycip Gorres Velayo & Company (SGV & Co.) as the Club’s external
auditor for the year 2017-2018.

No questions or objections having been raised by the stockholders present despite
opportunity given, the proposal to re-appoint SGV & Co. as the Club’s external auditor for
year 2017-2018 was approved by the stockholders based on the results of voting via poll:

VOTES IN VOTES
AGENDA ITEM FAVOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
Re-appointment of Sycip Gorres 917 0 0
Velayo & Company as External
Auditor for 2017-2018 (57.6%) (0.00%) (0.00%)

The following resolution was likewise approved:

‘RESOLVED, that VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. (the
‘Club’) hereby approves the re-appointment of Sycip Gorres Velayo &
Company as the Bank's external auditor,for Year 2017-2018.”

IX. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Chairman declared a recess to allow for the election of three new directors for
Valley Golf & Country Club Inc.

Mr. San Pedro, Jr. then announced the names of the nominees and informed the
audience that the nominees, whose profiles appear in the Club’s Information Statement
and Annual Report, were duly screened by the Nomination Committee.

20




At this point, Chairman San Pedro Jr. called on the Chairman of the Commission
on.Elections (Comelec), Atty. Plaridel J. Bohol Il, to preside over the proceedings to elect
the new Directors. The other members of the Comelec were Afty. Joel B. Ferrer and Atty.
Felipe T. Cuison. The following were the official nominees:

Donald Joseph C. Macomb
Wilfredo G. Manahan
Jeremy Z. Parulan

Albert DG. San Gabriel

Votes were then tabulated with the following candidates receiving the number of
votes indicated opposite their respective names:

Nominee No. of Votes Received
In Person By Proxy Total
Mr. Donald Joseph C. Macomb 1 0
Mr. Wilfredo G. Manahan 13 026 939
Mr. Jeremy Z Parulan 31 817 848
Mr. Albert DG. San Gabriel 21 714 735

Mr. Bohol then announced that based on their tabulation, Messrs. Manahan,
Parulan and San Gabriel received the three highest numbers of votes and endorsed the
election results to the Board.

The Chairman called the meeting to resume and after noting the Comelec
announcement, confirmed on behalf of the Board the election of Messrs. Manahan,
Parulan and San Gabriel as the newly elected members of the Board of the Club to serve
as such from 2017-2019.

IX. OTHER MATTERS
The Chairman opened the floor for other issues and/or unfinished business.
A. PP Sierra Two Questions regarding Don Celso Tuason Avenue

Past President Sierra raised two questions. First is on re-blocking of the Don Celso
Tuason Avenue (DCTA). He is wondering why the third phase of the re-blocking plan has
not been implemented since it has been previously approved by the past board. Second
was the need to close the rad in front of Valley View
Royale as squatters are using the same to gain access to Valley Golf. The Chairman
informed Mr. Sierra that the road has been closed. As to his second query, budget has
already been set aside for the project. Dir. Bucat added that the Club is trying to address
the flooding problem first along DCTA before resuming road re-blocking. In line with this,
they have already constructed a trench canal in front of Igorot Village to catch the big run
of rain water along Don Celso.

B. Awarding of Plaque

21




Thereafter, the Chairman proceeded to the awarding of plague of appreciation to
the outgoing Directors including himself.

PP Sierra moved to commend not only the three outgoing members but the entire
members of the Board as well.

At this point, the Corporate Secretary, Atty. Venturanza, together with the
members of the Comelec, awarded the plaque of appreciation to Dir. Lakan Fonacier in
recognition for his invaluable contributions to Valley Golf as a member of the Board of
Directors from 2014 to 2017. He also served as the Chairman of the Sports and Games
Committee (2014-2015); Chairman of the Security Committee (2014- 2015); Chairman of
the Membership Committee(2015-2016) and lastly; Chairman of the Audit
Committee(2016-2017).He was followed by Director Alexander S. Marquez for his
invaluable contribution as member of the Board of Directors from 2014 to 2017and
Chairman of the Real Estate Committee (2016-2017). Finally, plaque of appreciation was
awarded to outgoing President Mr. Isauro V. San Pedro, Jr. in recognition of his invaluable
contributions to the Club as member of the Board of Directors (2014-2017); Chairman of
the Administration Committee (2014-2016), and; President of the Club (2016-2017).

The Chairman then inquired whether there are other matters which the
stockholders would like to discuss.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no other matters to be discussed, the meeting was thereupon
adjourned.

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDERS’ MATTERS

1.) Market information

Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. does not market its shares in the stock exchange
and all stockholders have pre-emptive rights on the sale of club shares. Total number of
authorized capital stock is 1,800 at P 9,000.00 par value. Valley Golf is a non-profit club
and does not issue any stock or cash dividends.

The Board of Directors on their Special Meeting last June 22, 2009 approved the
sale of 26 shares of stock with the following conditions:

1. The conditions of the sale are as follows:
1.1 Cash basis
1.1.1. Qutright sale of shares at Php380,000.00 each (minimum price for
the first batch). Transfer Fee shall not be applicable.
1.1.2. For non-members, membership is subject io compliance to the
Membership processing requirements and approval of the
Membership Committee.
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1.1.3. All shares must be activated within 30 days pursuant to Article VII,
Section 3, of the By-Laws and Section 7 of the Articles of
Incorporation.

1.2.  Shares of stock will be sold in batches and prices as follows:
Date
of Sale

1.2.1. First batch -3 shares of stock P 380,000.00 June 26 — 30
1.2.2. Second batch - 3 shares of stock P 400,000.00 Jul. 1 —=Jul. 7

or after 1 batch is sold whichever is earlier
1.2.3. Third batch -3 shares of stock P 425,000.00 Jul. 8 —Jul.14

or after 2" batch is sold whichever is earlier
1.2.4. Fourth batch -3 shares of stock P 450,000.00 Jul. 15-Jul. 22

or after 3 batch is sold whichever is earlier
1.2.5. Fifth batch -3 shares of stock P 475,000.00 Jul. 23 -Jul.31

or after 4" batch is sold whichever is earlier
Note: Prices are subject to change without prior notice.

Sale will be as follows:

2.1 From June 26 — July 7, 2009, only to proprietary members on record as of
May 31, 2008. Proprietary members who are interested to buy shares after
July 7, 2009 will be given priority.

2.2 Assuming that shares are still available, Playing guests, Corporate
Representatives, children and spouses of proprietary members will be
allowed to buy shares beginning July 8, 2009.

2.3 Assuming that shares are still available, Non-members will be allowed to
buy beginning July 15, 2009.

The mechanics of the sale were as follows:

3.1 Sales inquiry must be coursed through the Office of the President
beginning June 26, 2009.

3.2  Sale will be on a first come, first serve basis.

33 If there are more than three (3) interested buyers at the same time, the
winner will be selected by raffle.

34 No reservations will be entertained.

Utilization of the proceeds of the sale:

41. Payment of outstanding loans.
42 To fund the 3-year development program

As of June 30, 2013, there were fifteen (15) shares sold from this issuance.

The Board of Directors in their regular meeting last Nov. 15, 2014 approved the following:

1.

INSTALLMENT SALE OF SHARES OF STOCK

a.) Deferred payment of the share of stock and transfer fee.

b.) “All in selling price” of P 350k.

c.) Payable in 12 monthly installments.

d.) Membership of the buyers is subject to compliance with the Membership
processing requirements and approval of the Membership Committee.
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As of June 30, 2015, there were five (5) shares sold from this issuance.

For the fiscal years 2000 and 2001, the market price ranged from the club
subscription rate of P 625,000.00 to P 500,000.00. For the year 2002 market price was
between P 500,000.00 to P 450,000.00. For the years 2003 to 2014 market price ranged
from P 400,000.00 to P 500,000.00 for Club subscription to P332,000 to P292,000 for third
party market. Market prices included the transfer fee of P 112,000.00. For the fiscal year
2015 and 2016 the market price was P250,000.00 plus P56,000 transfer fee during the
promo period or P112 000 after the promo. For the fiscal year 2017 the market price was
P312,000.00 plus P87,2000 transfer fee during the promo period or P112,000 after the
promo. The market value of the shares of stock of Valley Golf as of June 30, 2018 is
P400,000.00 plus P112,000.00 transfer fee. Market prices were based on subscription
rates and transactions processed in the Club.

2) Holders

Total number of shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2018 is 1,594
shares. There is no individual or corporate stockholder who is the beneficial owner of at
least five percent (5 %) of the total shares outstanding. The top twenty (20} shareholders
are as follows:

NAME OF STOCKHOLDER NO. OF SHARES PERCENTAGE
OWNED
1. PAE Ventures, Inc. 6 0.38 %
2. TDR, Incorporated 5 0.31%
3. Manila Electric Co. 5 0.31%
4. Solid State Multi Products Corp. 5 0.31%
5. Squires Bingham Co., Inc. 5 0.31 %
6. First Phillippine Holdings Coporation 4 0.25%
7. Vicente and Gerardo Madrigal 4 0.25%
8. Metropolitan Bank and Trust Co. 4 0.25 %
9. Mitsubishi Motors Phils., Corp. 4 0.25 %
10. Phil. National Bank 4 0.25%
11. Reliable Electric Co., Inc. 4 0.25%
12. Edward Cheok 3 0.19%
13. Dee C. Chuan & Sons, Inc. 3 0.19 %
14. Jalandoni, Johnny 3 0.19 %
15. Severo A.Tuason & Co. 3 0.19%
16. Severo Jose Tuason 3 0.19 %
17. Perry Y. Uy 2 013 %
18. Anna's Catering, Inc. 2 013 %
19. Metropolitan Insurance Company 2 013 %
20. Tuason, Demetrio R. 2 013 %

There is no acquisition, business combination or other reorganization that may
affect the amount and percentage of the present equity holdings of each director and
nominee and of all directors and officers as a group nor are there any present
commitments to such persons with respect to the issuance of shares.
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3) Dividends

Valley Golf is a non-profit club and does not declare any form of dividends. Income
earnings are being used for maintenance of the golf courses and to improve services to
the members.

4) Recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities.

Valley Golf has not sold any unregistered or exempt securities during the present
and previous fiscal years.

ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION.
1. PLAN OF OPERATION

OBJECTIVES:

a. To have a timely scheduled improvement of Club facilities and services.
b. Profitability and financial liquidity for operations and to fund various projects.

ACTION PLAN:

1. Full implementation of the following priority capital expenditures:

a. All bunker sand in the North Course will be completely rehabilitated by Oct.
2018 with a budget of P5.2 Million

b. Replacement of the roof of the Main Clubhouse and repair of Gutters & Eves
will be completed by Sept. 2018 with a budget of P 6.2 Million.

c. Renovation of Ladies’ Locker Room with a budget of P2.14 Million by Dec.
2018

d. Lower Lanai Multi-Purpose Room with a budget of P3.96 Million by June 2019
e. Renovation of Swimming pool with a budget of P4.88 Million by Dec. 2018
f. Renovation of Guests' Locker Room with a budget of P965k by Dec. 2018

g. Concrete reblocking of DCT Avenue with a budget of P5 Million by Feb. 2019.

2. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Reflected in the Audited Financial Statements for the fiscal year July 1 ,2017 to
June 30, 2018 is a very financially sound and stable Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. in
terms of revenues as well as in cash position. Our Net Income for the year is P12.18
Million with an increase of P13.83 Million or 835% from our net loss of P1.66 Million last
year, our Cash on the other hand is at P44 Million with a notable increase of P22.07 Million
or 101% from last year. A more detailed analysis of our Income Statement showed a
significant increase in our income from green fees of P4.67 Million or 26.6%. Green Fees
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for this year reached P22.22 Million as compared to P17.55 Million last year. Worth noting
is the P1.43 Million additional green fee from tournaments because of the earnest efforts
of our members to invite golfing enthusiasts to have their tournaments here in our courses.
Our accompanied guests increased as well by P3.23 Million. It is primarily our pristine
golf courses and strategic location along with other external factors that contributed to the
increases. Other operating revenues that contributed to our additional income came from
Golf Cart rental, Concessionaires’ Fees, Assessment for Road Maintenance, Transfer Fee
and Road Users' Fee.

For the year under review our Operating Expenses amounted to P100.12 Million
or an increase of P7.71 Million or 8.34% from last year's figure of P92.41 Million. Basically,
the increases came from repairs and maintenance works for the golf courses and the Main
Clubhouse which include dredging/desilting of lagoons and waterways, fencing the
perimeters of the golf courses, riprap of lagoons, improvement of the spillways and car
paths and various repairs and painting works in the Main Clubhouse. All these
maintenance works are geared towards improvement of our golf courses and facilities for
our members and guests. Inflationary pressures likewise affected our utilities, supplies
and personnel expenses.

In our Balance Sheet, our Current Assets increased from P40.83 Million in 2017 to
P53.19 Million in 2018 or an increase of P22.36 Million or 55%. The main source of the
increase is the additional cash and cash equivalents while intensive collection efforts paid
off as receivables decreased by P1.87 Million.

As a general principle we prioritized our capital expenditures and projects, subject
to availability of funds before the start of the project. For this year the projects funded by
the Treasury include the Rehabilitation of the bunkers in the North Course, Replacement
of the Roof and repair of eves and gutters in the Main Clubhouse, purchase of additional
15 electric Golf Carts and purchase of service and emergency vehicles.

Another objective of the Treasury that we are seriously pursuing is to increase the
market value of our shares of stock. Business schemes were undertaken and with our
golf courses in tip top condition, our market value has reached Php500k, inclusive of the
Php112k transfer fee. Despite the keen competition in the golfing industry, we are
optimistic that the upward trend will continue in the next fiscal year.

Valley Golf has no liquidity problems on its operations and projects and does not
anticipate any liquidity problems in the future. All interest payments are being paid on due
date and funds are available for the termination of loans when the need arises. All trade
payables are paid based on the credit terms.

There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition
or results of operation.

There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to Valley Golf. There is no anticipated default or acceleration of obligation.

There are no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations or other

relationships of the Club with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the
fiscal year.
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There are no material commitments for capital expenditures.

There are no other trends, events or uncertainties that would have a material
favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales or revenues.

There are no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from Valley
Golf's continuing operations.

The five key performance indicators are as follows:

1.

Current Ratio - represents the ratio of current assets against current
liabilities. This ratio represents the liquidity of the Club or the available
current assets to settle the current liabilities. For the year ended June 30,
2018 the ratio is 1.55 (P63,194,929/P40,712,905) and for the year ended
June 30, 2017 the ratio was 1.21 (P40,833,701/P33,857,450). This
indicates an increase in the liquidity of the Club. The Cash and Cash
Equivalents increased by P22,072,969 and other Current Assets increased
by P2,157,482 while the trade and other payables increased by P4,349,693
and Members’ deposits & others increased also by P2,176,361.

Rate of return on assets - represents the ratio of net income
against assets. This represents the net earnings and the assets employed
to arrive at the net earnings. For the year ended June 30, 2018 it is 4.02%
(P12,182,390/P303,041,135) and for the year ended June 30, 2017 it was
(.58%) (net loss of P1,656,800/P284,099,271). Operations for the year
resulted to a net income of P12,182,390 and thus the rate of return on
assets increased to 4.02%.

Debt to total assets ratio - this represenis the ratio of total
liabilities to total assets or the assets available to settle outstanding
liabilities of the Club. For the year ended June 30, 2018 it is
15.55% (P47,123,850/P303,041,135) while for the year ended 2017 it was
14.27% (P40,529,194/ P284,099,271). Liabilities for the current year
increased by P6.59 Million while assets increased by P18.94 Million
thereby increasing the ratio.

Earnings per share - this represents the net income per share of
stock issued and outstanding and subscribed. For the year ended June
30, 2018 the net income per share is P7,642.65 (P12,182,390/1,594) while
for the year ended June 30, 2017 the net loss per share was P1,040.05
(net loss of P1,656,800/1,593). Net income for the year is P12,182,390 or
an increase of P13.83 Million from the net loss of P1,656,800 in 2017.

Debt to Equity ratio - this represents the ratio of total liabilities
against total Stockholders’ Equity. For the year ended June 30, 2018 it is
18.41% (P47,123,850/P255,917,285) and for the year ended for the year
ended 2017 it is 16.64% (P40,529,194/P243,570,077). This shows that in
2018 the ratio increased and thus the total liabilities comprise a higher
percentage of the total stockholders’ equity. This resulted from the
increase of the Trade Payables and the proceeds from the sale of lot to
Benderey in the amount of P3.7 Million which is temporarily recorded in
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Accounts Payabile Others until the issuance of the Certificate Authorizing
Registration from the BIR.

The following are the details of the operations of the Club for the year 2018

A. OPERATING RESULTS

1.

Revenues — revenues increased from P109,704,351 to P131,024,822 or an
increase of P21,320,471 or 19.43%. Significant sources of the increase are
the Green Fees that increased by P4,668,263 and the Gain on Sale of Property
that increased by P6,480,634. Other Revenue sources that showed increases
include Golf cart rental by P2,152,479, Transfer Fee by P1,390,000, Service
Charge by P283,463, Locker rental by P57,207, Concessionaires’ Fee Main
Clubhouse by P1,401,540, Concessionaires’ Fee North Clubhouse by
P460,285, Golf Cart Storage Fee by P205,973, Road Users’ Fee by
P2,160,909, Self Insurance Fee by P167,900, Service Fee on Non Members
by P114,635, Tournament Fee by P610,556 and Rental of Driving Range by
P507.089.

Revenue sources that decreased in the year 2018 include Patronage Fee by
P434,737, Locators Fee by P188,471, Assessment for Road Maintenance by
P214,351 and Miscellaneous Income by P300,660.

Increase in Green Fee is due to the increase in total number of non-member
golfers who played in our courses from 14,873 to 20,965 guests. During the
year Primark paid a one-time Access Fee of P1.3 Million for the use of Club
property in conducting their business. Increase in Road User's Fee is due to
usage of road by First Optima and due to revenue for toll fee of P50.00 per
pass though of light vehicles which started in March 2017. Golf cart rental
increased due to additional 15 units electric golf carts that were purchased
during the year and increase in number of players. In addition, the Club
recognized rental income from the driving range in the amount of P0.5 Million,
which started last July 2017. Increase in Transfer Fee is mainly due to the
increase in number of members willing to sell or transfer their shares to 3™
party, 13! degree and foreigner. Increase in Concessionaires’ Fee was due to
increase in rate of Anix's from 7% to 10% and increase of total sales of Main
Clubhouse Anix's and North Clubhouse JayJ's amounting to P11.75 Million
and P6.58 Million respectively.

Cost and Expenses - For the fiscal year 2018 the total cost of services and
general and administrative expenses amount to P118,363,066 or an increase
of P8.67 Million or 7.90% from previous year’s figure of P109,693,415.

Personnel Expenses decreased from P27,728,449 in 2017 to P27,400,954 in
2018 or a decrease of P327,496 or 1.18%. Salaries and Wages decreased by
P241,000 ( due to resignation of the previous General Manager), Meal
Allowance decreased by P24,000, 13" month Pay decreased by P33,000,
Vacation and Sick leave decreased by P134,000, Retirement Benefit Expense
decreased by P374,000. Overtime increased by P297,000, SSS, Philhealth
and ECC increased by P28,000, Bonus and Gratuity Pay increased by P97,000
and Training and Seminar by P80,000.
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Supplies increased from P9,275,087 in 2017 to P13,393,444 in 2018 or an
increase of P4,118,356 or 44.40%. Stationeries and office supplies increased
by P117,000, Gasoline and Qil Supplies by P235,000, Repairs & Maintenance
by P2.37 Million, Swimming pool supplies by P46,000, Toilet and cleaning
supplies by P291,000, Janitorial supplies by P139,000, Linen supplies by
P417,000 and Miscellaneous supplies by P682,000. Service supplies
decreased by P204,000.

Utilities increased from P8,875,761 in 2017 to P10,093,474 in 2018 or an
increase of P1,217,713 or 13.72%. Electricity increased by P1.16 Million and
Water by P227,000. Communication decreased by P173,000.

Outside Services decreased from P32,193,841in 2017 to P31,299,532 in 2018
or a decrease of P894,000 or 2.78%. Retainers Fee decreased by P28,000,
Legal Fees by P101,000 and Golf course maintenance by P1.42 Million and
Internal Audit Services by P8630,000. Security Services increased by
P300,000, Laundry Services by P226,000 and Maintenance Crew by
P750,000.

Sundries increased from P14,338,311 in 2017 to P17,931,275 in 2018 or an
increase of P3,592,965 or 25.06%. Taxes and Licenses increased by
P541,000, Insurance by P96,000, Board, Committee and Stockholders
Meeting by P157,000, Promotional and Industrial by P36,000, Bank Charges
by P140,000, Prompt payment discount by P28,000, Self insurance expense
by P314,000, Write-off on inventory loss by P73,000, Tournament expenses
by P1.3 Million and Miscellaneous by P1.18 Million. Transportation and Travel
decreased by P39,000, Loss on write-off by P96,000 and Provision for
inventory obsolescence by P139,000.

B. BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

1. Cash and cash equivalents — went up from P21,971,181 in 2017 to
P44,044,150 in 2018 or an increase of P22,072,969 or 100.46%. Increase
resulted from the net cash generated from operating activities amounting
to P28.59 Million due to the positive operating results of the Club. Net cash
flow used in investing activities amounting to P6.52 Million due to additions
of property and equipment amounting to P16.2 Million offset by proceeds
from sale of land and decrease in other noncurrent asset amounting to
P7.68 Million and P2.33 Million respectively.

2. Trade and other receivables — went down from P13,734.949 in 2017 to
P11.865,726 in 2018 or a decrease of P1,869,223 or 13.61%. Decrease
was due to advances to suppliers which pertains to settlement of payable
with MJ Carr for the installation of sprinklers to courses amounting to P1.5
Million.

3. Other current assets — went up from P5,127 571 in 2017 to P7,285,053 in
2018 or an increase of P2,157,482 or 42.08%. Increase resulted from
increase in supplies inventory mainly attributable to sprinklers and deferred
input tax amounting to P2.1 Miilion and P0.3 Million respectively.
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4. Property and equipment - went up from P225,040,986 in 2017 to
P226,576.571 in 2018 or an increase of P1,535,585 or 0.68%. The
increase was primarily due to golf course renovation and installation of
water system this year amounting to P16 Million netted by the depreciation
of P15.15 Million.

5. Investment properties —went down from P8,322,340 in 2017 to P5,580,860
in 2018 or a decrease of P2,741,480 or 32.94%. Depreciation for the fiscal
year 2018 for the North clubhouse is P2.74 Million.

6. Deferred tax asset — amount for year ended June 30, 2018 is P2,203,249.
This figure is arrived at by adding the deferred income tax asset on advance
payment of membership dues of P1.66 Million and Allowance for
impairment losses of P538,000.

7. Other non-current assets — went down from P3,505,764 in 2017 to
P874,372 in 2018 or a decrease of P2,631,392 or 75.06%. Decrease is
due to the application of the refundable deposit of the Club to services
rendered by MJ Carr.

8. Trade and other payables — went up from P13,385,392 in 2017 to
P17,735,085 in 2018 or an increase of P4,349,693 or 32.5%. Increase was
due to deposits received from Benderey amounting to P3.7 Million for the
sale of land and collected proceeds of the Club for the tournament held this
year amounting to P1.04 Million and deposited to
Don Celso Tuason Toumament fund.

9. Members’ Deposits and Others went up from P9,708,014 in 2017 to
P11,884,375 in 2018 or an increase of P2,176,361 or 22.42%. Increase
resulted from former members account on the sale of delinquent shares
through public auction, refundable cash deposits from members and
advance payments made by the members to avail of the 1 month discount
promo of the Club upon payment of 1 year monthly dues.

10. Membership dues paid in advance — went up from P5,220,800 in 2017 fo
P5,550,200 in 2018 or an increase of P329,000 or 6.31%.

11. Retirement benefit obligation —decreased from P5,686,930 in 2017 to
P5,189.476 in 2018 or a decrease of P497,454 or 8.75% due to decrease
in the present value of benefit obligation as per actuarial valuation.

12. Members' Equity —increased from P243,570,077 in 2017 to P255,917,285
in 2018 or an increase of P12,347,208 or 5.07%.

Fiscal Year 2017
A. OPERATING RESULTS
1. Revenues —revenues went down from P115,256,576 in 2016 to P109,704,351
in 2017 or a decrease of 5,552,225 or 4.82%. A significant source of the
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decrease came from the sale of property which decreased by P8.37 Million for
2017. For fiscal year 2016 the gain on sale of property (from the sale of lots)
was P8.73 Million, whereas for fiscal year 2017 the gain on sale (of golf carts)
is P361,000. Revenue sources that increased during the year include golf cart
rental by P233,857, Monthly dues by P159,461, Green Fee coupons by
P694,183, Patronage Fee by P69,890, Concessionaires’ Fee from the North
Clubhouse by P1,000,820, Pro-shop rental by P153,688, golf cart storage fee
by P142,655 Road Users Fee by P300,892, Assessment for Road
Maintenance by P1,096,911, Self Insurance Fee by P51,424, Service Fee for
Non-members by P24,593, Tournament Fee by P775,929, Christmas
Assessment Fee by P1,419,647 and Miscellaneous Income by P609,294.

Revenue sources that decreased in fiscal year 2017 include Green fees by
P433,703, Transfer fee by P370,000, Service charge by P402,742, Locker
rental by P164,914 and Concessionaires Fee Main Clubhouse by P736,573.

Golf cart rental increased due to additionat 20 units electric golf carts that were
purchased during the year. Monthly dues increased on the payment by one
member of the previous month’s unpaid monthly dues of P81k. Green Fee
coupons increased due to the purchase by the Driving Range Concessionaire-
Freeport Elite Resort Inc. of 2,100 pcs. green fee coupons in the amount of
P1.47 Million. Concessionaires’ Fee from the North Clubhouse increased due
to the engagement of the new F & B concessionaire Jay J's Inasal starting July
2016. Pro-shop rental increased due to increase in the monthly sales. Golf
cart storage increased due to additional goif carts in storage area. Road Users’
Fee increased due to the imposition of the pass thru fee of P50.00 effective
March 15, 2017 with a total collection of P81,000. Assessment for Road
Maintenance increased due to increase in sales of car stickers. Miscellaneous
income increased due to adjusting entry on the unutilized funds from the 2016
Don Celso Tournament of P789 000.

Green fees decreased due to decrease in Accompanied Guests and
Tournaments by 507 players. Transfer fee decreased due to decrease in
transfers from 84 in 2016 to 52 in 2017. Service charge decreased due to
decrease in the number of renewals from 88 in 2016 to 78 in 2017, whereas
new members increased from 18 in 2016 to 25 in 2017 and Corporate
members from 12 in 2016 to 18 in 2017. Concessionaires Fee (Main
Clubhouse) decreased due to decrease in the rate of the concessionaire’s fee
to 7% starting Jan. 2017 upon the engagement of Anix’s House of Kare kare
up to Sept. 2017.

Cost and Expenses — For the fiscal year 2017 the total cost of services and
general and administrative expenses amounted to P109,693,415 or a
decrease of P3.79 Milion or 3.34% from previous years figure of
P113,488,074.

Personnel expenses increased from P27,541,473 in 2016 to P27,728,449 in
2017 or an increase of P186,977 or .68%. Overtime increased by P300,000,
13" month pay by P133,000, Vacation and Sick leave by P50,000, Retirement
Benefit Expense by P120,000 and Training and Seminar by P25,000. Salaries




and wages decreased by P50,000, Meal Allowance by P158,000, SSS, PHIC
& ECC by P15,000 and Gratuity Pay by P202,000.

Supplies increased from P8,781,910 in 2016 to P9,275,087 in 2017 or an
increase of P493,177 or 5.62%. Repairs and Maintenance increased by
P837,000 and Miscellaneous increased by P224,000. Stationeries and office
supplies decreased by P22,000, Gasoline & Oil by P156,000, Swimming pool
supplies by P50,000, Uniforms by P52,000 and Linen Supplies by P244,000.

Utilities decreased from P9,603,110 in 2016 to P8,875,761 in 2017 or a
decrease of P727,349 or 7.57%. Electricity decreased by P307k and Water by
£392,000.

Outside Services decreased from P33,580,157 in 2016 to P32,193,841 in 2017
or a decrease of P1,386,316 or 4.13%. Legal Fees decreased by P135,000,
Security Services by P1.02 Million, Maintenance Crew by P208,000 and Golf
Course Maintenance by P639,000. Retainers Fee increased by P201,000 and
Internal Audit Services by P457,000.

Sundries decreased from P17,341,119 in 2016 to P14,338,311 in 2017 or a
decrease of P3 Million or 17%. Taxes and Licenses decreased by P164,000,
Board, Committee & Stockholders’ Meeting by P537,000, Ads & Publication by
P80,000, Dues & Registration fees by P39,000, Promotional & Industrial by
P50,000 and Loss on write-off by P1.35 Million. Transportation & Travel
increased by P55,000, Bank charges by P105,000, Self Insurance Expense by
P35,000 and Provision for Inventory Obsolescence by P139,000.

B. BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

13. Cash and cash equivalents — went down from P22,029,184 in fiscal year
2016 to P21,971,181 in 2017 or a decrease of P58,003 or .26%. Decrease
resulted from Net cash flow from operating activities of P 19.93 Million,
significant cash outflows are for payment of loan from members of P2.5
Million and additions to property and equipment of P17.73 Million.

14. Trade and other receivables — went up from P10,696,986 in 2016 to
P13,734.949 in 2017 or an increase of P3,037,963 or 28%. Increase
resulted from increase in Members' account by P304,000 and Advances to
Suppliers in the amount of P1.53 Million referring to purchase of sprinkler
heads & lIrrigation parts and advances on labor for installation of the
sprinkler heads of P300,000.

15. Other current assets — went down from P5,654,608 in 2016 to P5,127,571
in 2017 or a decrease of P527,037 or 9%. Decrease resulted from
decrease in Supplies of P308,000 and Creditable withhoiding tax of
P148,000.

16. Property and equipment — went up from P221,472,751 in 2016 to
P225,040,986 in 2017 or an increase of P3,568,235 or 1.6%. Total
additions for the year amount to P17.73 M and disposals are P3.19 M
Accumulated depreciation increased by P14 M.
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21.
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24.

Investment properties — went down from P11,081,280 in 2016 to
P8,322,340 in 2017 or a decrease of P2,758,940 or 25%. Depreciation for
the fiscal year 2017 for the North clubhouse is P2.76 Million.

Deferred tax asset — amount for year ended June 30, 2017 is P2,104,430.
This figure is arrived at by adding the deferred income tax asset on advance
payment of membership dues of P1.57M and Allowance for impairment
losses of P538,000.

Other non-current assets — went down from P3,621,122 in 2016 to
P3,505,764 in 2017 or a decrease of P115,358 or 3.19%. Decrease is due
to adjustment on deferred interest expense of P154k on the deposit to MJ
Carr.

Trade and other payables — went up from P9,649,272 in 2016 to
P13,385,392 or an increase of P3,736,120 or 38.72%. Increase resulted
from increase in Trade payables by P2.8 Million and Accrued Expenses by
P1.45 Million. Significant payables are the balance on purchase of golf cart
of P1.1 Million and Depaosit on sale of lot of P1.19.

Short term loans — went down from P2.5 Million in 2016 to . The
decrease resulted from payment of loan from members of P 2.5 Million.

Membership dues paid in advance — went up from P4,812,886 in 2016 to
P5,220,800 in 2017 or an increase of P408,000 or 8.47%.

Retirement benefit obligation —went down from P12,222,847 in 2016 to P
5,686,930 in 2017 or a decrease of P8,535,917 or 53% due to decrease in
the present value of benefit obligation as per actuarial valuation.

Members’ Equity —went up from P239,895,915 in 2016 to P243,570,077 in
2017 or an increase of P3,674,162 or 1.53%.

ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached Reports :

1.
2.
3.

Statement of Management Responsibility
Audited Financial Statements for 2018 and 2017
Schedules A — ! under RSA Rule 68
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ANTIPCLO CITY, PHILIPPINES
P.O.BOX 202 Q PLAZA, CAINTA
TELS. 658-4901 TO 03, 658-4919 TO 20
FAX NO. 658-4918

O®UNTRY CLUB, INC.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached therein, for the years ended

June 30, 2018 and 2017, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated
therein, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Club’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Club or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Club's financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, and submits the same to the stockholders or members.

SyCip, Gorres, Velayo & Co., the independent auditor appointed the board of directors, has audited the
financial statements of the Club in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to
the stockholders or members, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of
such audit.

ABﬁHAM C. DEI<A C §UZ

Chairman of the Boar resident

3

REDO G. MANAHAN

Treasurer

Signed this 25th day of August 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Members and the Board of Directors
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. (a nonprofit organization),
which comprise the statements of financial position as at June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the statements of
income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in members’ equity and statements
of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2018, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Club as at June 30, 2018 and 2017, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
vears then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Club in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial staterments, management is responsible for assessing the Club’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Club or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Club’s financial reporting process.

AT GEVAR NN REA
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Club’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Club’s ability to continue as a going concern. 1f we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disctosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Club to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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Repeort on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole, The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 in Note 29 to
the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not
a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of the management
of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

s Dojem P70

Alexis Benjamin C. Zaragoza III

Pariner

CPA Certificate No. 109217

SEC Accreditation No. 1627-A (Group A),
April 4, 2017, valid until April 3, 2020

Tax Identification No. 246-663-780

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-129-2017,
February 9, 2017, valid until February 8, 2020

PTR Ne. 6621351, January 9, 2018, Makati City

August 25, 2018
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Nonprofit Organization)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30

2018 2017
ASSETS
Current Assels
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) B44,044,150 P21,971,181
Trade and other receivables (Note 5) 11,865,726 13,734,949
Other current assets (Note 6) 7,285,053 5,127,571
Total Current Assets 63,194,929 40,833,701
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment - net (Note 7) 226,576,571 225,040,986
Investment properties (Note 8) 5,580,860 8,322,340
Trust fund (Note 9) 4,611,154 4,292,050
Deferred tax asset (Note 24) 2,203,249 2,104,430
Other noncurrent assets (Note 10) 874,372 3,505,764
Total Noncurrent Assets 239,846,206 243,265,570
TOTAL ASSETS B303,041,135 P284,099,271
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables (Note 11) P17,735,086 P13,385,392
Members’ deposits and others (Note 12} 11,884,375 9,708,014
Membership dues paid in advance (Note 13) 5,550,200 5,220,800
Payable to a contractor (Note 14) 4,523,504 4,523,504
Accrued provision for probable claims (Note 15) 1,019,740 1,019,740
Total Current Liabilities 40,712,905 33,857,450
Noncurrent Liabilities
Retirement benefit obligation (Note 26) 5,189.476 5,686,930
Deferred tax liability (Note 24) 1,043,041 984,814
Other noncurrent liability (Note 18) 178,428 —
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 6,410,945 6,671,744
Members’ Equity
Capital stock (Note 16) 14,346,000 14,337,000
Contributions in excess of par value 201,627,772 201,403,972
Accumulated excess of revenues over expenses (Note 16) 39,943,513 27,829,105
Total Members’ Equity 255,917,285 243,570,077
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY P303,041,135 £284,099.271

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

(A Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended June 30
2018 2017 2016
REVENUES
Members” dues P52,394200  B52,357,321  P52,224,200
Green fees (Note 17) 22,220,657 17,552,394 17,291,914
Assessment for road maintenance 11,920,146 8,912,059 7,543,541
Rentals (Note 18) 9,673,826 6,901,279 6,822,351
Transfer fees 5,810,000 4,420,000 4,790,000
Concessionaires’ fees (Note 19) 5,135,154 3,262,649 3,123,286
Patronage fees 3,657,382 4,092,120 4,022,230
Service charge on playing guests 2,872,531 2,589,069 2,991,810
Golf cart storage 2,662,047 2,456,074 2,313,419
Miscellaneous income (Note 20) 14,678,879 7,161,386 14,133,825
131,024,822 109,704,351 115,256,576
COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of services (Note 21) 102,378,411 01,548,412 96,695,169
General and administrative (Note 22) 15,984,635 18,145,003 16,792,905
118,363,066 109,693,415 113,488,074
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES
BEFORE INCOME TAXES 12,661,756 10,936 1,768,502
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES (Note 24) 479,366 1,667,736 550,389
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES P12,182,390 (P1,656,800) B1218,113

See accompanying Noles to Financial Statements.
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended June 30
2018 2017 2016

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENSES P12,182,390  (P1,656,800) 1,218,113

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Item not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined
benefit obligation (Note 26) (97,117 6,315,776 (2,487,768)
Income tax effect 29,135 (984,814) 2,113,567
(67,982) 3,330,962 (374,201)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $12,114,408 P3,674,162 P843,912

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

(A Nonproefit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS’ EQUITY

Years Ended June 30
2018 2017 2016
CAPITAL STOCK (Note 16)
Issued and outstanding:
Balance at beginning of year P14,337,000 P14,337.000 14,292,000
Issuance of shares 9,000 - 45,000
Balance at end of year 14,346,000 14,337,000 14,337,000
Subscribed:
Balance at beginning of year - - 45,000
Subscriptions - - -
Share issuances — - (45,000)
Balance at end of year - - -
14,346,000 14,337,000 14,337,000
CONTRIBUTIONS IN EXCESS OF PAR
VALUE
Balance at beginning of year 201,403,972 201,403,972

201,403,972

Premium on shares issued 223,800
Balance at end of year 201,627,772 201,403,972 201,403,972
ACCUMULATED EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES (Note 16)
Balances at beginning of year 27,829,105 24,154,943 23,311,031
Comprehensive income {loss):
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses 12,182,390 (1,656,800) 1,218,113
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined
benefit obligation - net of tax {67,982) 5,330,962 (374,201)
Total comprehensive income 12,114,408 3,674,162 843,012
Balance at end of year 39,943,513 27,829,105 24,154,943

TOTAL MEMBERS’ EQUITY

P255917,285 B243,570,077 $£239,895,915

See accompanying Notes io Financial Statements.
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V%ALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Nonprefit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30
2018 2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of revenues over expenses before income taxes P12,661,756 B10,936 £1,768,502
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 21 and 22) 18,194,589 17,068,096 16,507,221
Interest expense (Note 22) 49,808 213,869 133,083
Loss on write-off of:
Property and equipment 4,482 87,448 17,066
Inventory (Note 21} - 12,724 1,435,341
Transfer fee on issuance of share (60,000) - -
Interest income (307,362) (107,883) (80,806)
Gain on sale of property, plant, and equipment ~ net
(Notes 7, 8, and 20) (7,020,564) (361,202) (8,728,634)
Operating income before working capital changes 23,322,709 16,923,988 11,051,773
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other receivables 1,722,954 (3,047,097) 2,968,052
Other current assets (2,648,305) 130,894 (667,783)
Increase (decrease) in:
Trade and other payables 3,677,173 3,691,442 (2,600,171)
Members’ deposits and others 2,176,361 2,137,521 1,189,296
Membership dues paid in advance 329.460 407,914 116,714
Retirement benefit obligation (594,571) (220,141) (340,659)
Net cash generated from operations 27,985,721 20,024,521 11,717,222
Interest received 653,631 117,017 81,164
Interest paid {49,808) (213.,869) (133,083)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 28,589,544 19,927,669 11,665,303
CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of:
Property and equipment 2,375,000 417,600 9,827,493
Investment properly 5,300,000 - -
Additions to:
Property and equipment (Notes 7 and 28) (16,198,106) (17,725,129) (9,836,044)
Trust fund - - (435,576)
Decrease (increase) in:
QOther noncurrent assels 2,325,635 (147,988) (98.,436)
Trust fund (319,104) (29.555) (5,732)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (6,516,573) (17,485,672) (548,295)
CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY
Payments of shori-term loans (Note 25) — (2,500,000) (3,000,000)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22,072,969 (58,003) 8,117,008
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 21,971,181 22029184 13,912,176
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ATEND OF YEAR £44,044,150 P21,971,181 B22,029,184

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.




VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Nonprofit Organization)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Corporate Information

Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. (the Club) was organized in the Philippines and registered with the
Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on May 14, 1958 as a nonprofit organization
for a term of 50 years up to 2008. The Club’s corporate life was extended for another 50 years from
May 15, 2008 as confirmed and ratified by the stockholders on November 18, 2007 and was
subsequently approved by the SEC on April 29, 2008.

The primary purpose of the Club is to foster and promote the game of golf and operate and maintain a
golf course and country club and, generally, to do and perform all such acts and things, and exercise
such powers as are ordinarily done, performed and exercised by social and athletic clubs and
associafions.

The registered office of the Club, which is also its principal place of business, is located at
Don Celso 8. Tuason Ave., Antipolo City.

The Club’s Board of Directors (BOD) approved the issuance of the financial statements on
August 25, 2018.

Summary of Significant Accounting Pelicy

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Club have been prepared under the historical cost basis and are presented

in Philippine peso (B), the Club’s functional currency. All values are rounded to the nearest Philippine
peso, except as otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Club have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial

Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except that the
Club has adopted the following new accounting pronouncements starting July 1, 2017. Adoption of
these pronouncements did not have any significant impact on the Cub’s financial position or
performance, unless otherwise indicated.

¢ Amendments to PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, Clarification of the Scope of
the Standard (Part of Annual Improvements fo PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

e Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, Disclosure Initiative

o  Amendments to PAS 12, Jncome Taxes, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses

Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

Pronouncements issued but not vet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Club does
not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements to have a significant impact on its
financial statements. The Club intends to adopt the following pronouncements when they become
effective.
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Effective beginning on or after July 1, 2018

e Amendments to PERS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-based
payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and the
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment transaction
changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled.

On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other criteria are
met. Early application of the amendments is permitted.

The Club expects that the amendments will have no impact on the Club’s financial position or
performance since the Club has no share-based payment transactions.

e PFRS 9, Financial Instrument

PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge
accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2018, with
early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but providing comparative
information is not compulsory.

The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Club’s
financial assets and impairment methodology for financial assets, but will have no impact on the
classification and measurement of the Club’s financial liabilities.

The Club is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

s Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, with
PFRS 4

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments standard before implementing the new insurance contracts standard. The amendments
introduce two options for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary exemption from
applying PFRS 9 and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption is first applied for reporting
periods beginning on or after January |, 2018. An entity may elect the overlay approach when it
first applies PFRS 9 and apply that approach retrospectively to financial assets designated on
transition to PFRS 9. The entity restates comparative information reflecting the overlay approach
if, and only if, the entity restates comparative information when applying PFRS 9.

The amendments are not applicable to the Company since it does not issue insurance contracts.
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PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

PFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in PFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and recognizing
revenue.

The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under PFRSs. Either a full or modified retrospective application is
required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Early adoption is permitted.

The Club is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual
Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or other qualifying
entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, to measure its
investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss. They also clarify
that if an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or joint venture
that is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method, elect to retain the
fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the
investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries. This election is made
separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which
(a) the investment entity associate or joint venture is initially recognized; (b} the associate or joint
venture becomes an investment entity; and (c) the investment entity associate or joint venture first
becomes a parent. The amendments should be applied retrospectively, with earlier application
permitted.

The amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Club’s financial statements since it
has no investments in associates and joint ventures.

Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers of Invesiment Property

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for
the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments should be
applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendments. Retrospective application is only permitted
if this is possible without the use of hindsight.

The Club is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Cuwrrency Transactions and Advance Consideration
The interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition

of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date
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on which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity
must determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.
Entities may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may
apply the interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially
recognized on or after the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the
interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in
the financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation.

Since the Club’s current practice is in line with the clarifications issued, it does not expect any
effect on its financial statements upon adoption of this interpretation.

Effective on or after July 1, 2020

Amendments to PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments to PFRS 9 allow debt instruments with negative compensation prepayment
features to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. An
entity shall apply these amendments for annual reporting periods beginming on or after
January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitted.

Amendments to this standard are not applicable to the Club since it has no debt instrument with
negative compensation prepayment features.

PFRS 16, Leases

PFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar
to the accounting for finance leases under PAS 17, Leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of "low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term
leases (i.e., leases with a [ease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognize a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset).
Lessees will be required to separately recognize the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events
(e.g.. a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amount of
the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under
PAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

PFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under
PAS 17.

Early application is permitted, but not before an entity applies PFRS 15. A lessee can choose to

apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs.
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The Club is currently assessing the impact of adopting PFRS 16.
Amendments to PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments to PAS 28 clarify that entities should account for long-term interests in an
associate or joint venture to which the equity method is not applied using PFRS 9. An entity shall
apply these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, Earlier
application is permitted.

The amendments are not expected to have a significant impact to the Club since it has no long-term
interests in an associate or joint venture.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23, Uncertainiy over Income Tax Treaiments

The interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of PAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of PAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments.

The interpretation specifically addresses the following:

o Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

o The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities

o How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates

o How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
with one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution
of the uncertainty should be followed.

The Club is currently assessing the impact of adopting this interpretation.

Deferred effectivity

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of 4ssets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments
clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint venture involves
a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale
or contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however, is recognized only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture.

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council deferred the original effective
date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) completes its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may result
in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for
associates and joint ventures.
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Amendments to this standard will have no impact on the Club’s financial position or performance
since it has no investments in an associate or joint venture.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash in banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less from dates of acquisition and that are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Date of recognition

The Club recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statement of financial position when
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions or the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place are recognized on the settlement date.

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets in the scope of PAS 39, are classified as either financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments or available-for-sale
(AFS) financial assets, as appropriate, while financial liabilities are classified as either financial
liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities. When financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognized initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at FVPL,
directly attributable transaction costs. The Club determines the classification of its financial assets and
financial liabilities upon initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at each year-end date.

Financial instruments are classified as liability or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or a
component that is a financial liability, are reported as expense or income.

The Club’s financial instruments are of the nature of loans and receivables and other financial liabilities.

The Club does not have financial assets at FVPL, AFS financial assets, and HTM investments as at
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Subseguent measurement of Financial Instruments
The subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities depends on their classification
as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less any allowance for
impairment. Amortized cost is calculated taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are integral part of the EIR and transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognized
in the statement of income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as
through the amortization process. Loans and receivables are classified as current assets when it is
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expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date or within the normal operating
cycle whichever is longer. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

This accounting policy applies to the Club’s ‘cash and cash equivalents’, ‘trade and other receivables’
and ‘trust fand’.

Other financial liabilities (including interest bearing loans and borrowings)

This category pertains to issued financial liabilities or their components that are neither held for trading
nor designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability and contain contractual obligations to
deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder or to settle the obligation other than by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

All loans and borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received less
directly attributable debt issuance costs. Debt issuance costs are amortized using the EIR method and
unamortized debt issuance costs are included and offset against the related carrying value of the loan
in the statement of financial position.

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after deducting
from the instrument, as a whole, the amount separately determined as the fair value of the liability
component on the date of issue.

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the EIR method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the
issue and fees that are integral part of the EIR.

When a loan is paid, the related unamortized debt issuance costs at the date of repayment are charged
against current operations. Gains or losses are recognized in statement of income when the liabilities
are derecognized as well as through the amortization process.

This accounting policy applies primarily to the Club’s ‘trade and other payables” and ‘members’ deposit
and others’.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognized when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,
the Club retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or

e the Club has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has fransferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Club has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognized to the extent of the Club’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Club could
be required to repay.
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Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Club’s continuing
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Club may repurchase, except that in the case
of a written put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at
fair value, the extent of the Club’s continuing involvement is limited to the Jower of the fair value of
the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities
A financia} liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
ot has expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of income.

Fair Value

The Club measures financial instruments and non-financial assets at fair value at each financial
reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

e Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Club.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Club uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input thai is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

s Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Club
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Club has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Club assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial assef or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event
{or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower
or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization
and where observable data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Club assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, and individuaily or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortized cost
has been incurred, the amount of the ioss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR (i.e., the EIR computed at initial
recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an
allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in the statement of income. The asset,
together with associated allowance accounts, is written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring afier the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the
statement of income to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost
at the reversal date.
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Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Club assesses that it has currently enforceable right of offset if the right is not
contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of
default, and event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Club and all of the counterparties.

Other Current Assets

Value-added Tax (VAT)

Input VAT represents VAT imposed on the Club by its suppliers and contractors for the acquisition of
goods and services required under Philippine taxation laws and regulations. Output VAT represents
indirect taxes passed on to the Club’s customers resulting from sale of goods and services and other
income, as applicable, and as required by the Philippine taxation laws and regulations. The current
portion of input VAT is applied against output VAT within twelve (12) months otherwise, it shall be
considered as noncurrent asset.

Qutput VAT is presented net if input VAT and the resulting payable is included as part of ‘“Trade and
other payables’ account to be remitted to applicable taxation authorities. When the resulting outcome
is a net input VAT, it is included as part of ‘Other current assets’ account, which can be recovered as
tax credit against future tax liability of the Club.

Deferred input VAT represents input VAT on purchase of capital goods exceeding one million pesos.
Therelated input VAT is recognized over five (5) years or the useful life of the capital goods, whichever
is shorter.

Creditable Withholding Taxes (CWT)

CWTs are amounts withheld from income subject to expanded withholding taxes. CWTs can be utilized
as payment for income taxes provided that these are properly supported by certificates of creditable tax
withheld at source subject to the rules on Philippine income taxation. CWTs which are expected to be
utilized as payment for income taxes within twelve (12) months are classified as part of “Other current
assets™ in the statement of financial position.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, except for land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, if any. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties, non-
refundable taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of such property and
equipment when the recognition criteria are met. Expenditures incurred after the property and
equipment have been put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, are
normally charged to the statement of income in the period when the costs are incurred.
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In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in
the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment
beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional
costs of property and equipment. The carrying amount of the replaced part regardless of whether the
replaced part had been depreciated separately is derecognized if an entity recognizes in the carrying
amount of an item of property and equipment the cost of a replacement for part of the item. If it is not
practicable for an entity to determine the carrying amount of the replaced part, it may use the cost of
the replacement as an indication of what the cost of the replaced part was at the time it was acquired or
constructed.

When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the item of
property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

Each part of an item of property and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost
of the item shall be depreciated separately.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Category Number of Years
Land improvements 3-50
Building and structures 5-50
Ground tools and services machinery and equipment 3-10
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10
Transportation equipment 5

Construction in progress is stated at cost. Depreciation is computed when the construction is completed.

The remaining useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
periods and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from
items of property and equipment.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation and
any allowance for impairment loss are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is
credited to or charged against current operations. Impairment losses of items of property and
equipment, related claims for or payments of compensation from third parties and any subsequent
purchase or construction of replacement assets are separate economic events and are accounted for
separately.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.

Investment Properties

Investment property, which consists of land and building held for rentals or capital appreciation or both.
Except for land, investment property is stated at cost less accurnulated depreciation and impairment in
value for building. The cost of the investment property comprises its purchase price and other direct
costs. Depreciation on the building is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life
of 20 years. Land is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment.

O A




-12 -

Transfers are made to investment property when there is a change in use, evidenced by ending of owner-
occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of construction of
development. Transfers are made from investment property when there is a change in use, evidenced
by commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a view to sale. These
transfers are recorded using the carrying amount of the investment property at the date of the change in
use.

Gains or losses resulting from the sale of an investment property are recognized in statement of income.

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognized in the statement of income in the year of retirement or disposal.

Computer Software

Computer software, included as part of ‘Other noncurrent assets’ is initially recognized at cost.
Following initial recognition, computer software is carried at cost, less accumulated amortization and
any accumulated impairment in value.

Computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful economic life of three
(3) years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
jmpaired. The amortization commences when the computer software is available for use. The period
and method of amortization for the computer software are reviewed at each end of the reporting period.
Changes in the estimated useful life is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method,
as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense is recognized
in the statement of income in the expense category consistent with the function of the computer
software.

Trust Fund
Trust fund pertains to short-term deposits for which the use is restricted to the daily operations of the
Club.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The Club assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a nonfinancial asset may be

impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for a nonfinancial asset is
required, the Club makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount. A nonfinancial asset’s estimated
recoverable amount is the higher of a nonfinancial asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual nonfinancial asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other nonfinancial assets or group
of nonfinancial assets, in which case the recoverable amount is assessed as part of the cash generating
unit to which it belongs. Where the carrying amount of a nonfinancial asset exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount, the nonfinancial asset is considered impaired and is written down to its estimated
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the nonfinancial asset. Fair value less costs to sell is the amount
obtainable from the sale of a nonfinancial asset or cash-generating unit in an arm’s-length transaction,
adjusted for incremental costs that would be directly attributable to the disposal of the nonfinancial
asset.
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Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statements of income in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired nonfinancial asset, except for any property
previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the
impairment is also recognized in other comprehensive income to the amount of any previous
revaluation.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the nonfirancial asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
its estimated recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal
is recognized in the statements of income.

Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to, directly or indirectly, control or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence.
Related parties include members of key management personnel including directors and officers of the
Club and close members of the family and companies associated with these individuals. In considering
each possible related entity relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship and
not merely the legal form.

Payable to Contractor
Payable to contractor are services rendered for the Club but not yet paid.

Other noncurrent liability

Other noncurrent liability represents the excess of the principal amount of refundable deposits and
advance rental made by the lessor over its fair value at the inception date of the operating lease and is
amortized over the lease term.

Capital Stock
Capital stock is determined using the nominal value shares that have been issued. When the Club issues

more than one class of stock, a separate account is maintained for each class of stock and number of
shares issued.

Contribution in Excess of Par Value
Amount of contribution in excess of par value is accounted for as an additional paid-in capital.
Additional paid-in capital also arises from additional capital contribution from the members.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Club
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

VO SR A EAE




- 14 -

Membership Dues

Members’ dues are recognized monthly as the fees become due. Any advance payments for
membership dues are recognized as a liability and credited to “Membership dues paid in advance”
account in the statement of financial position.

Green Iees
Green fees are income generated from use of the golf course by member’s guest and walk-in customers.

Assessment for Road Muintenance
Assessment for road maintenance is income generated from the use of the Club’s main road, Don Celso
S. Tuason Avenue. Revenues from road usage is recognized upon the sale of car stickers and tickets.

Rentals and Concessionaires’ Fees
Rentals and concessionaires® fees are recognized when the service is rendered in accordance with the
terms of the agreements entered into by the Club,

Transfer Fees
Transfer fees are recognized when the shares of stocks have been transferred.

FPatronage Fees
Patronage fees are consumables that members are entitled to for the consumption of food provided by
the Club’s concessionaire. These are recognized monthly as the fees expire.

Service Charge on Playing Guests
Service charges on playing guests are transaction fees or cash requirements in order to process the
Club’s playing rights to outside individuals. These are recognized when the service is rendered.

Golf Cart Storage
Golf cart storage is income generated from the safekeeping and storage of member’s golf carts.

Interest Income
Interest is recognized as income when it accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the asset.

Miscellaneous Income
Miscellaneous income are recognized as the earning process occurs and collection is reasonably
assured.

Cost and Expenses

Cost and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outflows or decreases of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than
those relating to distributions te equity participants. Cost and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Cost of Services
Costs of services are recognized when related services have been rendered.

General and Administration

Expenses incurred in the direction and general administration of day-to-day operation of the Club are
generally recognized when the service is used or the expense arises.
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Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable income or loss; and

¢ inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in foreign subsidiaries and
interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits in the form of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) and unused tax losses in the form of net
operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward benefit of MCIT and
NOLCO can be utilized except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income or loss; and

» in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in foreign subsidiaries
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable income will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date
and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable income will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year
when the asset is realized or the Liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset
curtent income tax assets against current income tax labilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority. Income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity
is recognized directly in other comprehensive income and not in the statements of income.
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Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Club as a Lessor

Leases where the Club does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset
are classified as operating leases. Lease income from operating leases is recognized as income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenues in the period in which they are earned.

Retirement Benefit Obligation

Defined Benefit Plan

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the financial reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any),
adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

e Service cost

s Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset

s Re-measurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-routine
settlements are recognized as expense in statement of income. Past service costs are recognized when
plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by independent
qualified actaries.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net defined
benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying the
discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Net interest on the
net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in statement of income.

Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, refurn on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized immediately
in OCI in the period in which they arise. Re-measurements are not reclassified to statement of income
in subsequent periods.

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Club, nor can they be paid directly to the
Club. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is available,
the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount
rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal date
of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period uniil the settlement of the related
obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the defined benefit
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obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions
fo the plan.

The Club’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit
obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is virtually
certain.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Club has a present obligation (legal and constructive) as a result of
a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect
of the time value of money is material, provisions are made by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

Where the Club expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate
asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any
provision is presented in the statement of income, net of any reimbursement.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed in the notes to

financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the notes
to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events After the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Club’s position at the reporting date
(adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation and fair presentation of the accompanying financial statements in compliance with
PFRSs requires management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and the accompanying notes. The judgments and estimates used in the
accompanying financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and
circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Future event may occur which will cause the
assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in estimate are
reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably determinable. Actual results could differ
from such estimates.

Judgments and estimates are continvally evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstance.
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Judgments
In the process of applying the Club’s accounting policies, management has made the following

judgments which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Operating Lease - Club as Lessor

The Club has entered into commercial property lease on its investment property. The Club determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangemenits, that it retains all the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the investment property, thus the lease is accounted for as an
operating lease.

Rental income pertaining to these leases as of June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
P9.7 million, 6.9 million and 6.8 million, respectively (see Note 18).

Estimations

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a sipnificant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Estimation of allowance for impairment losses

The Club maintains an allowance for impairment losses on receivables at a level considered adequate
to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The level of this allowance is evaluated by the Club
on the basis of factors that affect the collectability of the accounts. These factors include, but are not
limited to, the length of the Club’s relationship with members and debtors, their payment behavior and
known market factors. The Club reviews the age and status of receivables, and identifies accounts that
are to be provided with allowance on a continuous basis.

There were no provisions for impairment losses on trade and other receivables in 2018, 2017 and 2016.
Trade and other receivables, net of allowance for impairment losses as of June 30, 2018 and 2017
amounted to P11.9 million and £13.7 million, respectively (see Note 5).

Estimation of useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties

The Club estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties based on the
period over which the Club’s property and equipment and investment properties are expected to be
available for use. The estimated useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties are
reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear
and tear, technical or commercial ebsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of these assets. In
addition, the Club’s estimation of the useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties
are based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience
with similar assets. It is possible that the future results of operations could be materially affected by
changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above.

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, there were no changes made in the estimated useful lives of the Club’s
property and equipment and investment properties.

The net camrying amount of property and equipment as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 amounted to
P226.6 million and £225.0 million, respectively (see Note 7).

The net carrying amount of investment properties as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 amounted to
P5.6 million and 8.3 million, respectively (see Note 8).
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Estimation of useful life of computer software

The estimated useful life used as a basis for amortizing the computer software costs was determined on
the basis of management’s assessment of the period within which the benefits of the asset are expected
to be realized by the Club.

There were no changes made in the estimated useful life of the Club’s computer software in 2018.

The net carrying amount of computer software as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 amounted to £0.2 million
and £0.4 million, respectively (see Note 10).

Estimation of impairment losses of nonfinancial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each end of the reporting period to identify
indications that property and equipment, investment properties, and computer software may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognized no longer exists or may be decreased. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The Club assesses
the impairment of assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable. The factors that the Club considers important which could trigger
an impairment review include the following:

(2) Significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;

(b) Significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall business;
and

(¢) Significant negative industry or economic trends.

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Club has no accumulated impairment losses on property and
equipment, investment properties, computer sofiware. The aggregate carrying value of these
nonfinancial assets as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 amounted to 232.3 million and P233.8 million,
respectively (see Notes 7, 8, and 10).

Determining retirement benefit expense

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and the present value of the pension obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. These include
the determination of the discount rates, future salary increases, turnover rate and future pension
increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature,
defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date. In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers
the market yields on Philippine government bonds with terms consistent with the expected employee
benefit payout as at end of the reporting periods.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables and is modified accordingly with
estimates of mortality improvements. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on
expected future inflation rates for the Philippines.

Retirement benefit expense amounted to 21.4 million, P1.8 million and 1.7 million in 2018, 2017 and
2016, respectively. Retirement benefit obligation amounted to P5.2 million and £5.7 million as of June
30, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Notes 23 and 26).
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Estimation of realizability of deferred tax asseis

The Club reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting date and reduced the
amounts te the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

However, there is no assurance that the Club can generate sufficient taxable profit to allow all or part
of its deferred taxable assets to be utilized.

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Club’s deferred tax assets amounted to B2.2 million and
2.1 million, respectively (see Note 24).

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Club’s deferred tax liability amounted to P1.0 million
(see Note 24).

Temporary deductible differences for which no deferred tax asset was recognized amounted to
£1].8 million and £20.2 million as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively (sec Note 24).

Provision and Contingencies

The Club is currently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimate of the probable costs for the
resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with its counsel handling the defense in
these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential results. In the opinion of management and its
legal counsel, the eventual liability under these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material or
adverse effect on the Club’s financial position and results of operations. It is possible, however, that
the future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the
effectiveness of the strategies relating to these proceedings.

The Club has accrued provision for probable claims amounting to 1.0 million as of June 30, 2018 and
2017 (see Note 15).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

2018 2017
Cash on hand £95,000 £95,000
Cash in banks 17,185,694 20,200,716
Short-term investments 26,763,456 1,675,465

$44,044,150 B21,971,181

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term investments have varying
maturities of up to 90 days and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest income earned amounted to 0.5 million, £0.2 million and 0.2 million in 2018, 2017 and
2016, respectively (see Note 20).

AN




=21 -

5. Trade and Other Receivables

2018 2017

Members £10,792,011 R11,792,742
Others 2,867,681 3,736,173
13,659,692 15,528,915

Less allowance for impairment losses 1,793,966 1,793,966
£11,865,726 P13,734,949

Receivables from members, which are due 30 days after billing date, are noninterest-bearing and

constitute a lien on the members’ shares.

Other receivables consist mainly of the share of the homeowners for the security services and electricity
of the access roads around the Club, advances made to officers and employees and receivables from

concessionaires and various organizations.

As of June 30, 2018, the aging analysis of trade and other receivables are as follows:

2018 2017

Not more than 30 days outstanding P2,869,660 P3,410,459
Beyond 30 days outstanding:

31-60 days 4,194,933 6,567,009

61-90 days 1,740,614 1,356,725

Over 90 days 4,854,485 4,194,722

13,659,692 B15,528,915

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the movements in the allowance for impairment losses are as follows:

2018 2017

Balances at beginning of year P1,793,966 P2,178,090
Less write-off - 384,124
Balances at end of year P1,793,966 £1,793,966

6. Other Current Assets

2018 2017

Supplies inventory - net $3,126,119 £1,013,101
Prepayments 2,303,144 2,302,494
Creditable withholding tax (CWT) 812,920 757,336
Others 1,042,870 1,054,640
P7,285,053 P5,127,571

Supplies inventory include gasoline and oil stocks, grounds materials, office, shop and maintenance
supplies and construction materials.
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As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the balance of supplies inventories are as follows:

2018 2017
Supplies inventory P3,265,015 P1,151,997
Less allowance for inventory obsolescence 138,896 138,896
Supplies inventory - net £3,126,119 £1,013,101

Prepayments pertain to prepaid taxes and licenses, prepaid medical expenses and prepaid insurance

premiums.

CWT is the tax withheld by the withholding agents from payments to the Club which can be applied

against the income tax payable.

Others pertain to advances on purchases and deferred input VAT.

Property and Equipment

2018
Ground Tools
and Scrvice Furniture,
Land Building and Machinery Fi: and Transp Construction
Land Improvements Structures _and E Equip Equipment In Progress Tatal

Cost:

Balunces at beginning of year 9,411,841 £280,706,609 P56,870,804 #24,381,627 P5,469,870 ?16,160508 $15,338,209  P40§,339,558

Additions - 232,000 1,035,998 2755437 - 5,772,657 6,902.014 16,608,106

Disposals (3,714) - - (317,171) (55,394) (1,026,786) - (1,403,065)

Transfers - 16,2021!68 - 3,508,679 - - (19,710,847) -

Balance at cnd of year 9,408,127 297,140,777 57,906,802 30328572 5.414.476 20906379 2,529 466 423,634,599
Accumulated depreciation:

Balances at beginning of year - 113,390,847 36,609 446 18,573,068 5375418 9,349,793 - 183,298,572

Depreciation (Notes 21 and 22) - 8,221,867 1,949 510 2,378,839 50,570 2,554,038 - 15,154,324

Dispesals - - - (312,702) (55,3851 (1,026,781) (1,594 868)

Balances at end of year - 121,611,914 38,559,256 20,639,205 5,370,603 10,877.050 - 197,058,028
Net book values BD 488,127 P175,528,863 $19,347 546 ¥9,689,366 $43.874 £10,029.31% 2529466 $126,576,57T1

2017
Ground Tools
and Service Furniturc,
Land Building and Machincry Fixtures and  Transporation Construction
Tand  Improvements Structures  and Equipment Equip Equip In Progress Total

Cost:

Balances at beginning of year Podll 84l P275422,431 B56,045,487 P23,359,193 P5,891,709 P12,186,769 P10,591,739  £303.309,169

Additions - 196,988 225,000 574,554 - 3,392,857 11,332,730 17,725,129

Disposals - {636,489) - (668,392) (421,839 (1,419,118) (48,902) (3,194,740)

Transfers — 5,720,679 600317 616,272 — - (6,837,268) -

Balance at end of vear 9411241 280,706,609 36,870,804 24.381.627 5,469,870 16. 160508 15,338.269 408.339.558
Accumulated depreciation:

Balances at beginning of vear - 107,691,212 32,523893 17,004,870 5,746,671 9,362,766 - 172,336,418

Depreciation (Noles 21 and 22) - 6,336,118 4,085,533 2174431 50,570 1,399,137 - 14,045,809

Disposals - {636,489) — (606,233) (421,823) (1,419,110) — (3,083.655)

Bal atend of year - 113,390,847 36,609,446 18,573,068 3,375,418 9,349,793 — 183,298,572
Net book values #3.411.831 P167.315,762 P20.261.358 B5308,559 094,452 R6.810.715 P15.538.259 £325.,040,086

Fully depreciated equipment still used in operations amounted to B83.0 million and P68.4 million as of
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

In 2018, the Club sold a parcel of land with a carrying value of B4 thousand. Proceeds from sale of land
amounted to £2.3 million resuiting in a gain of 2.3 million. (see Note 20).

Total book values of property and equipment amounting to B1.4 million were disposed resulting to a

loss of P4 thousand.
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On April 2017, the Club sold various property and equipment with a book value of P11 thousand.
Proceeds from the sale amounted to 405 thousand resulting in a gain on sale of P361 thousand
(see Note 20).

3. Investment Properties

2018
North
Clubhouse Land Total
Cost:
Balances at beginning of year $53,718,366 P88,237 £53.,806,603
Disposal - {6,972) (6,972)
Balances at end of year 53,718,366 81,265 53,799,631
Accumulated amortization:
Balances at beginning of year 45,484,263 - 45,484,263
Amortization
(Notes 21 and 22) 2,734,508 — 2,734,508
Balances at end of year 48,218,771 - 48,218,771
Net book values P5,499.595 £81.265 P5,580.,860
2017
North
Clubhouse Land Total
Cost:
Balances at beginning and end
of year B53,718,366 P88.237 53,806,603
Accumulated amortization:
Balances at beginning of year 42,725,323 — 42,725,323
Amortization
(Notes 21 and 22) 2,758,940 — 2,758,940
Balances at end of year 45,484,263 - 45,484,263
Net book values P8,234,103 P88.237 88,322,340

Rental income earned from investment property amounted to P0.3 million, 0.2 million and
P0.2 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016 (see Note 18). Direct expenses related to investment properties
consist mainly of amortization amounting to B2.7 million and 2.8 million in 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

In 2018, the Club sold land with a carrying value of 7 thousand. Proceeds from sale of land amounted
to £5.3 million resulting in a gain on sale of P4.7 million (see Note 20).

The aggregate fair value of the Club’s investment properties amounted to £75.7 million with twelve
thousand forty six square meters {12,046 sgm.). The fair values of the Club’s propertics were
determined on the valuation performed by TCI Top Consult, Inc. on July 18, 2018. The TCI Taop
Consult is an industry specialist in valuing these types of properties. The fair value represents the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.
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9

Trust Fund

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the members on September 12, 1982 and as provided for i the
Club’s by laws, the trust fund committec is empowered to invest the Valley Golf Trust Fund, which in
no case shall be less than the original amount of B3.5 million, in leading universal banks in the country.

The members’ resoluiion further states that all proceeds from future sale of shares and real property,
including all amortizations due on the sale of shares previously sold, shall accrue to the trust fund and
that 85% of the interest income of the fund shall be made available for the maintenance and repair of
the golf course. The remaining 15% of said interest income shall accrue to and form part of the fund.

On May 21, 1989, the members’ resolution was amended stating that, “the proceeds of the sale of any
real property of the Club or shares of stock to be used for capital expenditure and other infrastructure
project shall not form part of the Valley Golf Trust Fund. However, any excess thereof shall form part
of the Valley Golf Trust Fund”.

The trust fund account was reported as part of the “noncurrent asset” portion in the statement of
financial position.

Trust fund balance amounted to P4.6 million and 4.3 million as at June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. Interest income recognized for the trust fund amounted to P32 thousand, 38 thousand
and B38 thousand for the years 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 20).

10.

Other Noncurrent Assets
2018 2017
Refundable deposit B699,724 £3,060,359
Computer software - net 174,648 445405
P874,372 B3,505,764

Refundable deposit pertains to deposits from utility companies. The carrying amounts of the deposits
are regarded as its amortized cost since the timing of the refund or settlement of the deposits could not
be reasonably estimated.

The movement of computer software is as follows:

2018 2017
Cost:
Balance at beginning and end of year £2,502,552 P2,181,437
Additions 35,000 321,115
Balance at end of year 2,537,552 2,502,552
Accumulated Amortization:
Balance at beginning of year 2,057,147 1,793,800
Amortization (Notes 21 and 22) 305,757 263,347
Balance at end of year 2,362,904 2,057,147
Net Book Value 2174648 B445 405
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11. Trade and Other Payables
2018 2017
Trade $6,971,348 P4,877,025
Organizations and cooperative 5,693,219 2,960,628
Accrued expenses 3,954,946 3,791,412
Concessionaires 315,092 437,977
VAT payable 37,357 201,694
Others 763,124 1,116,656
P17,735,086 P13,385,392
Trade payables are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and are payable to suppliers within 30 days.
Accrued expenses are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear interest. These
pertain to accruals made for outside services, utilities and other various accruals. These are normally
settled throughout the next financial year.
Organizations and cooperative are loans and advances by the employees from the association.
Concessionaires pertains to collections received by the Club for and on behalf of the concessionaires.
Other payables mainly consist of tournament deposits and withholding tax payable.
12. Members’ Deposits and Others
2018 2017
Due to former members $6,261,595 4,593,014
Cash deposits 5,365,000 4,945,000
Security deposit 257,780 170,000
P11,884,375 P9,708,014
Cash deposit pertains to deposits made by playing guests. Any unpaid liabilities will be deducted from
this account and the excess will be refunded upon resignation of the playing guest.
Due to former members consist mainly of proceeds from auction sale of shares, payable to former
members and other advance payments made by them.
Security deposit pertains to various deposits received by the Club from its concessionaires and lessee
and is to be refunded at the end of their respective agreements.
13. Membership Dues Paid in Advance

This account represents advance collection of monthly membership dues which are applied in the next
financial vear.

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, membership dues paid in advance amounted to B5.6 million and
$£5.2 million, respectively.
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14. Payable to a Contractor

This pertains to the payable for the construction of the Club’s main road, Don Celso S. Tuazon Avenue
with a total amount of P4.5 million as of June 30, 2018 and 2017.

On January 3, 2012, the parties agreed in principle to settle the debt in exchange of 985 square meters
of land belonging to the Club. The market value of the land amounted to 4.9 million.

15. Accrued Provision for Probable Claims

Accrued provision for probable claims pertains to the estimated liability to resolve various probable
claims against the Club. Any payment of actual claims against the Club requires the approval of the
BOD.

The information usually required by PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingeni Assels,
is not disclosed on the grounds that it can be expected to prejudice the outcome of these lawsuits, claims,
arbitration and assessments.

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, accrued provision for payable claims amounted to P1.0 million.

16. Member’s Equity

Capital Siock

Shares Amount
2018 2017 2018 2017

Common shares - £9,000 par value
Authorized - 1,800 shares
Issued

Balance at beginning of year 1,593 1,593 £14,337,000 P14,337,000

Additions during the vear 1 — .000 —

Balance at end of year 1,594 1,593 14,346,000 14,337,000
Subscribed

Balance at beginning of vear - - - ~
Additions during the year - - - -
Issuance of shares during the year - - - -

1,594 1,593 P14,346,000  R14,337,000

On September 6, 2017, the Club issued one (1) share of stock for £300,000.

Accumulated Excess of Revenues Over Expenses

2018 2017
Accumulated excess of revenues over expenses P37,713,595 B25,531,205
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Item not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Beginning balance 2,297,900 (3,033,062)
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined
benefit obligation (67,982) 5,330,962
2,229.918 2,297.900

239,943,513 $27,829,105
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17 . Green Fees

Green fees are generated from the use of the Club’s golf courses. The Club has two golf courses: the
North and South course. The North course is open to its members, their guests, and walk-in customers
while the South course is open to its members and their guests only.

On July 1, 2013, the Club entered into an agreement with Korea Golf & Members Leisure, Inc. (Korea
Golf) for the use of the Club’s North course. The Club also grants Korea Golf the use of its North
Clubhouse office space. The agreement is for a minimum of 4.0 million worth of green fee coupons a
year. Payments from this agreement would be earned and included in the Club’s green fees upon usage
of the Club’s facilities. The agreement is valid until July 1, 2018.

During 2015, there was a default to the contract by Korea Golf. They had failed to purchase the
minimum green fees coupons as stated in the contract. The Club rescinded the contract and forfeited
all the payments made by Korea Golf. The green fees from Korea golf amounted to nil, nil and
0.2 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

On September 30, 2016, the Club entered into agreement with Freeport Elite Resort, Inc. to purchase
one thousand (1,000) coupons and ancther one thousand (1,000) coupons upon consumption of all
coupons previously purchased. The green fees from Freeport Elite Resort, Inc. amounted to
B1.6 million and £0.86 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Club’s aggregate green fees earned amounted to B22.2 million, B17.6 million and B{7.3 million in
2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

18.

Rentals
2018 2017 2016
Golf carts and lockers P8,879,082 $£6,669,396 26,600,453
Driving Range 507,089 - -
Communication cell site 287,655 231,883 221,898
B9,673,826 26,901,279 P6,822.351

Rentals of golf carts are for the use of the golf carts provided by the Club for its members. Rentals of
lockers are for the use of the Club’s locker rooms.

The Club’s recognized lease income on golf carts amounted to 8.0 million, P5.8 million and
P56 million in 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively.

The Club leases the north clubhouse’s rooftop to a local telecommunications company to be used as a
cell site under certain conditions. Monthly rental amounts to 15,000, subject to a 4.5% escalation
starting on the fourth (4) year. The lease period is from October 1, 2007 to September 30, 2017,
renewable for a period to be mutually agreed upon by the parties.

The contract was renewed in 2017 for the period of 10 years which took effectivity on October 1, 2017

and expiring on September 30, 2027. The lessor shall pay £23,197, inclusive of VAT, subject to a
4.5% escalation starting on the second (2™} year of the new lease period.
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The future minimum lease commitment under this operating lease as of June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016
are as follows:

2018 2017 2016

Within one (1) year B305,404 P61,239 P242318
More than one (1) year but not

more than five (5) years 1,527,020 — 61,239

More than five (5) years 992,563 — -

P2,824,987 P61,239 P303,557

On September 16, 2016, the Club entered into a Build-Lease-Transfer agreement with a third party to
construct a Double Deck Driving Range with amenities located at the north course. The agreement
includes a lease term of fifteen (15) years which commenced on July, 8, 2017. The lessee shall pay a
monthly lease of P25,000, inclusive of VAT, subject to a 10% escalation starting on the third (3™) year.
As part of the agreement, the lessee shall pay £450,000 representing one (1) year advance rental and
six {6) months security deposits.

The future minimum rental commitment under this operating lease as of June 30, 2018, 2017 and
2016 are as follows:

2018 2017 2016

Within one (1) year 267,857 P- P-
More than one (1) year but not

more than five (5) years 1,243,125 - -

More than five (5) years 6,250,133 - =

P7,761,115 P B

The excess of principal amount of the refundable security deposits over its fair value, at inception date
of operating lease, is presented under “Other noncurrent liability” amounting to P0.2 million and its
current portion under “Trade and other payables” amounting to P13 thousand in the statement of
financial position. Movement of rental income from straight-line amortization of deferred rent
amounting to £13 thousand and nil in 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 20).

19.

Concessionaires’ Fees
2018 2017 2016
Food and beverage services P4,149,022 P2.287.195 $2,022,949
Retail services 986,132 975,454 321,766
Driving range operations — - 278,571
P5,135,154 £3,262,649 P3,123,286

Concession agreements entered into by the Club are shown below:

Food and Beverage Services

a)} Jay-’s Food Management, Inc. (JEMI), a local food concessionaire and the Club entered into a
concession agreement whereby JFMI manages the food and beverage operations of the Club located
at the North Clubhouse. The agreement also provides that the concessionaire shall pay a fee of 7%
plus VAT of the monthly gross sales including special functions contracted for the members and
guest and to purchase one (1) share of stock. The share of stock is pledged to the Club which serves
as a security deposit to answer for any damages or expenses incurred. The agreement is for a period

0%
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of three (3) years from August 1, 2016 up to July 31, 2019, subject to renewal at the option of the
Club under such terms and conditions to be mutually agreed by the parties. The concession income
recognized from JFMI amounted to 1.5 million and P1 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Anix’s House of Kare-kare {AHK), a local food concessionaire and the Club entered into a
concession agreement whereby AHK manages the food and beverage operations of the Club at the
Main Clubhouse. The agreement also provides that the concessionaire shall pay a fee of 7% plus
VAT of the monthly gross sales for the first six (6) months of operations and 10% plus VAT of the
monthly gross sales for the succeeding months or £100,000 whichever is higher including catering
services contracted for the members and guest and to purchase one (1) share of stock. The share of
stock is pledged to the Club which serves as a security deposit to answer for any damages or
expenses incurred. The agreement is for a period of three (3) years from January 20, 2017 up to
January 19, 2020, subject to renewal at the option of the Club under such terms and conditions to
be mutually agreed by the parties. The concession income recognized from AHK amounted to
P2.7 million and £0.68 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Retail Shop
Pacsport Phils, Inc. was awarded the concession to operate a retail sales outlet, inside the Clubhouse to

serve the members, guests and dependents, exclusively. In consideration for operating the Shop, the
Club charges a basic minimum monthly rental of P65,000 or 15% of their gross sales per month
inclusive of value added tax, whichever is higher. The agreement is for a period of two years from
March 15, 2016 up to May 14, 2018.

On July 9, 2018, the contract was renewed and shall be effective for a period of two (2) years, starting
from March 15, 2018 up to May 14, 2020. The contract provides that the concessionaire shall pay a fee
of 70,000 or 15% of thelr gross sales per month inclusive of value added tax, whichever is higher.

The concessionaire fees from Pacsport Phils, Inc. amounted to 80.99 million and £0.98 million in 2018
and 2017, respectively.

20. Miscellaneous Income

2018 2017 2016

Gain on sale of properties
(Notes 7 and 8) $7,020,408 P361,202 £8,728.,634
Tournament fee 1,386,485 775,929 -
Service fee 1,297,243 1,014,707 538,691
Bingo Income/ Expenses 878,461 920,917 -
Surcharge 754,911 864,995 910,999
Pull carts 629,685 454,580 366,589
Interest (Notes 4 and 9) 507,362 186,938 157,225
Others 2,204,324 2,582,118 3,031,687
P£14,678,879 B7,161,386 P14,133,825

Others mainly consist of fees from venue and reom, rental, tournament, swimming pool, spa and

barber shop, and from bingo session net proceeds.
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21. Cost of Services

2018 2017 2016
Outside services B30,025,468 P30,160,464 P31,849,392
Personnel cost (Note 23) 21,407,116 19,925,636 21,156,966
Depreciation and amortization
(Notes 7, 8, and 10) 17,907,874 16,687,593 16,156,146
Utilities 9,588,934 8,258,372 9,019,029
Supplies 7,178,936 5,356,042 5,901,187
Repairs and maintenance 5,497,280 3,121,313 2,278,776
Loss on write-off of inventory - 12,720 1,435,341
Others 10,772,803 8,026,272 8,898,332
£102,378,411 P91,548,412 P96,695,169

Others pertain to provision for tournament expenses, insurance, ads and publication, promotional and
industrial expenses, parking fee, and other miscellancous expenses.

22. General and Administrative

2018 2017 2016
Personnel costs (Note 23) P5,994,242 £7,802,814 B6,505,505
Taxes and licenses 4,329,956 3,788,406 3,953,221
Outside services 1,274,064 2,033,379 1,730,766
Bank charges 1,108,371 967,949 862,321
Board members® meetings 843,775 686,899 1,223,876
Supplies 713,381 790,316 589,473
Utilities 504,540 617,389 584,081
Depreciation and amortization
(Notes 7, 8, and 10) 286,715 380,503 351,075
Interest 49,808 213,869 133,083
Others 879,803 863,479 859,504
P15,984,655 18,145,003 P16,792,905

Other expenses consist mainly of advertising expenses, prompt payment discounts, insurance and net

expenses incurred during tournaments.

23. Personnel Costs

2018 2017 2016
Cost of services (Note 21}
Salaries and wages P16,476,142 214,854,818 B15,600,187
Employee benefits 3,846,188 3,651,002 4,224 270
Retirement benefits
expense (Note 26) 1,084,786 1,419,816 1,332,509
21,407,116 19,925,636 21,156,966

(Forward)
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2018 2017 2016
General and administrative
(Note 22):

Salaries and wages 4,497,484 6,097,309 4,969,836
Employee benefits 1,177,461 1,346,308 1,210,183

Retirement benefits
expense (Note 26) 319,297 358,697 325,486
5,994,242 7,802,814 6,505,505
P27,401,358 £27,728.,450 P27.662,471

24. Income Taxes

The Club’s provision for current income tax in 2018 and 2017 pertains to MCIT.

The compositions of provision for (benefit from} income taxes were:

2018 2017 2016

Current B490,823 P395,935 P397,068
Deferred (11,457) 1,271,801 153,321
B479,366 B1,667,736 P550,389

The reconciliation of income computed at the statutory tax rates to provision for income tax as shown
in the statements of income is as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Income tax computed at
statutory rate B3,798,527 P3,281 B530,551
Income tax effects of:
Expired MCIT 145,758 464,384 494,185
Expired NOLCO 368,513 - -
Nondeductible expenses - 6,250 43,618
Interest income subject to
final tax (136,031) (32,365) (24,242}
Income subject to capital
gains tax (1,417,504) - -
Movement of unrecognized
deferred tax assets (2,279,897) 1,226,186 (493,723)
B479,366 B1,667,736 P550,389

The components of the Club’s net deferred tax asset (liability) are as follows:

2018 2017
Deferred tax assets:
Advanced payments of membership dues and
others P1,665,059 P1,566,240
Allowance for impairment losses 538,190 538,190

$2,203,249 2,104,430
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2018 2017
Deferred tax liabilities:
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit
obligation (P955,679) (P984.814)
Rent receivable (86,128) -
Interest income from aceretion (1,234) -
(B1,043,041) (P984,814)

No deferred tax assets from the following deductible temporary difference were recognized as it is not
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of the deferred tax assets to

be utilized:

2018 2017
Retirement benefit obligation $8,375,073 P8.969,644
MCIT 1,283,826 938,761
Accrued provision for probable claims 1,019,740 1,019,740
NOLCO - 8,705,098
Unrecognized PSC 1,151,748 601,952

P11,830,387 P20,235,195

As of June 30, 2018, the Club has NOLCO that can be claimed as deduction from future taxable income
as follows:

Year incurred Available up to Amount Applied Expired Balance
2015 2016-2018 8,705,098 P7.476,721 P1,228,377 P—

The Club has available MCIT which can be applied to the Club’s future tax liabilities as follows:

Year incurred Available up to MCIT Applied Expired Balance
2015 2016-2018 B145,758 - P145.758 B-
2016 2017-2019 397,068 - - 397,068
2017 2018-2020 395,935 - - 395,935
2018 2019-2021 490,823 — - 490,823

1,429,584 P- P145,758 P1,283,826

25.

Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly, the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or commeon significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities,

A summary of major account balances with related parties follows:
Short-term Loans
Short-term loan represents the outstanding principal balance of short-term borrowings from Club

members, renewable on a yearly basis upon mutual agreement of the parties. The Club however has the
option to pre-terminate the loan. The loan bear annual interest rate of 3% in 2017 and 2016. The loan
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is secured by unissued shares of stock of the Club. As at June 30, 2018 and 2017, payments made for
short-term loan amounted to nil and B2,500,000, respectively.

Interest incuired on the short-term loan amounted to nil, B20 thousand and P0.21 million in 2018,
2017 and 2016, respectively.

Key Management Personnel Compensation
Compensation of key management personnel amounted to P0.76 million, 1.3 million and 1.3 million

in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, which represent short-term benefits.

Complimentary Club Coupons and House Guests Privileges

Complimentary green fee coupons are given to the BOD and certain officers for distribution to
prospective members and certain guests and friends of the Club. The outstanding green fee coupons for
each fiscal year are as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Beginning balance 531 550 388
Additions during the year 2,804 2,794 3,298
Issuances during the year (3,304) (2,813) (3,136)
Ending balance 31 531 550

The amount of green fees charged to playing guest raﬁges from 625 to P2,536. Green fee coupons
expire after six months.

The Club also authorizes certain Club officers to entertain houseguests and use the Club’s facilities
free-of-charge.

Non-Paving Members and their Dependents
Certain members of the Club and their dependents are exerpt from paying monthly dues.

Retirement Fund
The Club’s retirement fund is being held in trust by a trustee bank. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the
fair value of plan assets amounted to P16.0 million and £15.0 million, respectively (see Note 26).

26,

Retirement Benefit Obligation

The Club has a funded, non-contributory, defined benefit retirement plan covering all its qualified
officers and employees. Under the plan, qualified officers and employees are entitled to receive pension
benefits on a lump sum basis when they reach the retirement age of 60. With the consent of the Club,
an employee may elect to retire early provided he has rendered at least 20 years of credited service or
at least 15 years of credited service and at least 50 years old. The projected unit credit cost method was
used to determine the retirement benefit costs and obligation.

The following tables summarize the components of the retirement benefit cost recognized in the

statement of income and the retirement benefit obligation recognized in the statement of financial
position for the retirement plan.
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Retirement benefits expense recognized in the statements of income:

2018 2017 2016
Service cost P1,144,582 21,344,762 B1,174,909
Net interest cost:
Interest cost on benefit
obligation 1,091,187 955,155 973,524
Interest income on plan assets (831,686) {521,404) {490,438)
Retirement benefit expense P1,404,083 21,778,513 B1,657,995

Re-measurement losses (gains) on defined benefit obligation recognized under OCI in the statements

of comprehensive income:

2018 2017

Actuarial losses (gains):

Experience adjustments P1,049,691 (#793,571)

Changes in demographic assumptions {130,737} (3,139,027)

Changes in financial assumptions (2,162,468) (2,472,914)

(1,243,514) (6,405,512)

Return on plan assets excluding the amount

included in net interest cost 1,340,631 89,736
Re-measurement losses (gains) on defined benefit

obligation B97,117 (B6,315,776)

Cumulative re-measurement effect recognized in OCI included in the accumulated excess of revenues

Over expenses:

2018

2017

Balances at beginning of year
Actuarial loss (gain)
Return on assets excluding amount included in net

(#3,282,714)
(1,243,514)

P3,033,062
(6,405,512)

interest cost 1,340,631 89,736
(3,185,597) (3,282,714)

Inceme tax effect 955,679 984,814
Total amount recognized in OCI (#2,229,918) (£2,297.900)

Movements in retirement benefit obligation in 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017

Balances at beginning of year P5,686,930 P12.222 847
Retirement benefit expense 1,404,083 1,778,513
Contributions paid (1,998,654) (1,998,654)
Total amount recognized in OCI 97,117 (6,315,776)
Balance at end of year B5,189,476 P5,686,930
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Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation as follows:

2018 2017
Balances at beginning of year P20,666,429 P25,335,682
Current service cost 1,144,582 1,344,762
Interest cost 1,091,187 955,155
Net actuarial loss {gain} due to:
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 1,049,691 (793,571)
Changes in financial assumptions (2,162,468) (2,472,914)
Changes in demographic assumptions (130,737) (3,139,027)
Benefits paid from plan assefs (454,391) (563,658)
Balances at end of year $£21,204,293 P20,666,429
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
2018 2017
Balances at beginning of year P14,979,499 P13,112,835
Interest income on retirement plan assets 831,686 521,404
Actual contributions 1,998,654 1,998,654
Actual return excluding amount included in net
interest cost (1,340,631) (89,736)
Benefits paid (454,391) (563,658)
Balances at end of year B16,014,817 P14,979,499
Retirement obligation as reported in the statement of financial position:
2018 2017
Present value of benefit obligation $21,204,293 PB20,666,429
Fair value of retirement plan assets at end of year (16,014,817) (14,979,499)
B5,189,476 P5,686,930
The major categories of plan assets are as follows:
2018 2017
Deposit in banks P12,223 P12,318
Investment in government securities 9,816,158 9,956,511
Other securities and debt instruments 3,196,000 3,255,391
Shares of stock 2,807,731 2.409.850
Accrued interest receivable 173,225 134,837
Other receivables 29,983 -
Accrued trust fees and other payables {20,503) (789,408)
P16,014,817 214,979,499

Deposit in banks includes regular savings.

Investments in government securities consist of retail treasury bonds that bear interest ranging from

5.0% to 11.1% and will mature on various dates starting July 2013 to October 2037.

Other securities and debt instruments pertains to ‘due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas’ and ‘time

certificate of deposit’.
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Miscellaneous receivable pertains to ‘dividends receivable’ and ‘due from brokers’.

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining retirement benefit obligations for the Club’s
retirement plan are as follows:

2018 2017
Discount rate 6.92% 5.28%
Future salary increases 3.00% 3.00%
Turnover rate 8% atage 19to 10% atage 19to

7% at age 45 6% at age 45

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of the end of the reporting period, assuming
all other assumptions were held constant:

Effect on
Increase  defined benefit
(decrease) obligation
Discount rates +1% (R1,153,114)
-1% 1,274,643
Salary increase rate +1% B1,103,944
-1%% (1,018,128)
Shown below is the maturity profile of the undiscounted benefit payments:
Expected benefit
pavments
Year 1 P2,724,923
Year 2 1,240,477
Year 3 ' 1,654,478
Year 4 6,436,729
Year 5 5,159,382
Year 6 - 10 ) 10,553,860

Retirement benefit expense from defined benefit retirement plan is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method.

The Club’s latest actuarial valuation report was on June 30, 2018. It also expects to contribute
P2.0 million in 2019.

27.

Financial Instruments

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Club’s principal financial liabilities comprise of trade and other payables, members’ deposit and

others, and short term loans. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the
Club’s operations. The Club has various financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables and trust fund, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Club’s financial instruments are credit risk and liquidity risk.
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The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized
below.

Credit risk
The Club establishes credit limits at the level of the individual borrower, corporate relationship and
industry sector. Also, the Club transacts only with recognized third parties, with no required collateral.

Loans and other receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Club’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant. Provision for impairment losses on receivables will also be made if the
situation so warrants subject to the BOD’s review and approval.

The following table represents the Club’s maximum exposure to credit risk:

2018 2017
Cash and cash equivalents* £43,949,150 B21,876,181
Trade and other receivables 11,853,012 13,719,200
Trust fund 4,611,154 4,292,050

P60,413,316 P39,887.431

*Excludes cash on hand

Credit quality per class of financial asset

The credit quality of financial assets is being managed by the Club using internal credit ratings. High
grade financial assets are those that are current and collectible. Standard grade financial assets need to
be consistently followed up but are still collectible.

The tables below show the credit quality by class of financial asset based on the Club’s credit rating
system:

As of June 30, 2018
Neither past due nor impaired Past due Past due and
Standard but individually
High grade grade not impaired impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents™® P43,949,150 - P f o £43,949,150
Trade and other receivables:
Trade receivables 1,893,250 - 7,104,793 1,793,966 10,792,009
Others - 2,854,969 - - 2,854,969
Trust fund 4,611,154 - — - 4,611,154
P50,453,554 £2,854,969 £7,104,793 £1,793,966 P672,207,282
*Excludes cash on hand
As of June 30, 2017
Neither past due nor impaired Past due Past due and
Standard but individually
High grade grade not impaired impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents™® P21,876,181 P~ P P B21,876,181
Trade and other receivables:
Trade receivables 1,511,325 - 8,487,451 1,793,966 11,792,742
Others - 3,720,424 - - 3,720,424
Trust fund 4,292,050 — — - 4,292,050
P27.679.556 £3,720,424 PE8,A87,451 Pt,793,966 P41,681,397

*Excludes cash or hand
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A financial asset is considered past due when the counterparty failed to make payment when
contractually due. The Club has past due amounting to P7.} million and P8.5 million as of
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Impaired financial assets are those accounts identified by the Club that needs to be provided with
allowance. The level of this allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect
the collectability of the accounts such as but not limited to the length of the Club’s relationship with
the member, the member’s payment behavior and known market factors.

The Club has impaired financial assets amounting to P1.8 million as at June 30, 2018 and 2017
(see Note 5).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Club may not be able to settle or meet its obligations as they
fall due. The Club monitors and maintains a level of cash deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Club’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Club’s financial liabilities as of
June 30, 2018 and 2017, based on contractual undiscounted cash flows. The table also analyses the
maturity profile of the Club’s financial assets in order to provide a complete view of the Club’s
contractual commitments. The analysis into relevant maturity groupings is based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity dates.

As of June 30, 2018

Less than Mare
On demand 30 Days 31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days than 91 Days Toial
Financial lichilities
Other financial liabilities
Trade payablas $2,512,735 P £526,429 - £3,932,184 $6,971 348
Accrued expenses 2,867,543 703,955 36,400 42,127 303,237 3,953,262
Others** 1,104,969 732,773 189,864 163,113 4,045517 6,236,236
Members deposits and others 11,884,375 - — — - 11,884,375
18,569,622 £1,436,728 P752,693 £205,240 P8,280,938 £29,045,221
Financial assels
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents P£44,044,150 2 - E = - F44,044,150
Trade and other reccivable:
Trade receivables 1,893,250 3,285399 1,596,505 882,442 1,340,447 8,998,043
Others 963,697 909,534 94,761 384,543 502,454 2,854.969
Trust fund 4,611,154 — - — — 4,611,154
P51,512,251 £4,194,833 £1,691,266 F1,266,985 £1,842,881 P60,508,316
*rfxchudes statutory liabilities
As of June 30, 2017
Less than More
On demand 30 Days 31 1o 60 days 61 to 80 days than 91 Days Total
Financial liabilities
Other finencial liabilities
Trade payables £4,485.951 £61,240 P F149,421 PI180,413 £4,877,025
Accrued expenses 1,627,353 692,273 622,602 - 395,100 3,337328
Others** 1,683,779 217,721 - 118,659 2,187373 4,207,532
Members deposits and others 9,708,014 - - - — 9,708,014
£17,505,097 £971,234 B622,602 268,080 #2,762,886 $22,129,399
Financial assets
Leans and recetvables:
Cash and cash equivalents $£21,971,181 P P - P #21,971,181
Trade and other receivable:
Trade receivables 1,511,325 3,748,222 2,401,523 970373 1367333 9,998,776
Others 1,183,857 688,834 364,602 319,321 1,163,760 3,720,424
Trust fund 4,292,050 - - - - 4,292,050
$28,958,413 l’4,43u06 #2,766,128 P1,289,694 £2,531,093 #39,982,431

**Excludes siatutory liabifities
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Fair Values
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transactions.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trust fund, trade and other payables, and
members’ deposit and others.

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trust fund, trade and other
payables, and members’ deposit and others, approximate their fair values due to the relatively short-
term maturity of these financial instruments.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The Club uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1:  Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2:  Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices)

Level 3:  Those inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs) ‘

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Club does not have any financial instruments to be presented under
the fair value hierarchy required by PFRS 7.

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Club’s capital management policy is to ensure that it maintains a strong

credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize members’ value.
The club manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Club is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for the years ended June 30, 2018 and
2017.

28.

Notes to Statements of Cash Flows

The non-cash investing activity of the Club pertains to the purchase of fifteen (15) electric golf carts
by trading in five (5) used golf carts amounting to P200,000 in 2018.

The non-cash financing activity of the Club pertains to the issuance of one (1) share in exchange for
the services rendered amounting to £240,000 and 60,000 of transfer fee in 2018.
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29. Supplementary Information under Revenue Regulations (RR) 15-2010
The Club reported and/or paid the following types of taxes in 2018:
VAT
The Club’s sales are subject to output VAT while its purchases from other VAT-registered individuals
or corporations are subject to input VAT. The VAT rate is 12.0%.
The NIRC of 1997 provides for the imposition of VAT on sales of goods and services. Accordingly,
the Club’s sales are subject to output VAT while its purchases from other VAT-registered individuals

or corporations are subject to input VAT. R.A. No. 9337 increased the VAT rate from 10.0% to 12.0%,
effective February 1, 2006.

Details of the Club’s net sales/receipts, output VAT and input VAT accounts are as follows:

a. Net Sales/Receipts and Output VAT declared in the Club’s VAT returns

Net Sales/
Receipts Output VAT
Taxable sales:
Sales of services P106,954,632 £12,834,556
Membership dues collected in advance 8,246,199 989,544
Exempt sales 36,683,879 -
Exempt membership dues collected in advance 2,976,697 =
P154,861,407 213,824,100
Input VAT
Balance at July 1, 2017 P-
Current year’s domestic purchases/paymerts for:
Goods other than for resale or manufacture 3,095,629
Capital goods exceeding £1,000,000 221,601
Domestic purchases of services 5,245 573
8,562,803
Applied against output tax (8,562,803)
Balance at June 30, 2018 B
Withholding Taxes
Withholding taxes on compensation and benefits P844.567
Expanded withholding taxes 1,753,962
P2,598,529
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Other Taxes and Licenses

" This includes all other taxes, local and national, including real estate taxes, licenses and permit fees and

capital gains tax lodged under “Taxes and Licenses™ account under “General and Administrative”
section in the statement of income:

Real estate taxes £3,184,371
Business taxes (local business tax) 705,082
Capital gains tax 318,000
Documentary stamp tax 122,503

4,329,956

Tax Assessments
The Club did not receive any final tax assessments in 2018, nor did it have tax cases under preliminary
investigation, litigation and/or prosecution in courts or bodies outside the administration of BIR.

A EE AT




€8'1258L1 9€'9G7'€9/'9C  8€°9G¥'€9.'0C 8£°967°€02°9Z
00°0¥9'801 00°000°620°G 00°000'620'G 00°000'620'G ‘diog Bupjueg |eoiswwio) [eziy ¢
00'0 18°/GE'9b0'0L L8 /GE'9P0'0L 18 /GE'9v0'01 00 18n11 R yueg Aunoeg ‘g
£8°LE6'6 16'860'269'LL 15860'269'L1L 16'860'269'L 1 "0D I1SNiL g yued onsi "L
sajou
(¢g) (Z) pue spuoq
alep le8ys JO junoule A l v
paniooe }88ys aoueleq e aoueeq ay} jediound anssi Yoea JO uoneinosse pue Anus Buinssi jo swepn
pue paasoal uopelonb 1eyiet Ul umoys 10 saleys
auloou| uo paseq panep JuNnowy JO Jaquinp

( sjusLIsEAL) YSED WISIFUOYS JBYI0 B Sanunoag Alnby sjqelenlepy jusuing )'senunoesg oigeloEl Y 3Inpayos

s,




12°089°/98'C OO 1/'089°298'C 00 GE'8LZ' /220 08GTL'8GE'6L ZE'ELL'9EL'E

72260182 7T'T60'18T 22'260'/82 - 1HOdATY H/LHVING
81°028'sHe 8/°0ZE's¥T 96'610'01 Z8'00€'L6 NYaNvyeo
GLEvl'Y SLERL'Y SLEVl'Y Jayddns JaliQ
08'65Z'9¢) 08'652'9E ) 18'8LP' L 19'8/9'088'L uaalBiang PINA
98'9l6'¢ 88'915'E 00°005'2 98'010'9 00’ UOLeI0SSY SIPPED
98'66€' L1 93'66¢ L1 £G'OpL'8EL 88°C/9VLL 16'2/8'VE Ajunoag [enss|ey
82'00L'9Z¢ 82°001'9ZE 062PS'E02'C  §2'812'022'Z  €0'V9E'60E ueInesay St AYT
000 000 00°005'Z61 00°000'001 0000526 aoueInsu| Jesuold
E8'VIC'LLL €gpIE 2L £6'86Z'61L rLo9L'ZLL Z9'/9¥'v81 LUVINS
1£'Z70'091L LEZr0'09L ££°S01'90. 04'L¥¥ 098 00’ 14043344
00'80E't 00'80€'t S8'6L0'VP ShivL'Sh 0t 086'¥ doyg Jaaliegivds Ivd
91'801'222 91°801'222 /8'€96'CEB £1'6982/8 0€'922'€82 seafoldwe- s18Yl0
000 000 62OV LEEL  19°GE4'822°)  Z1'/99°C0L Juswebeue J09 YYD M
81°€60°/65 81'€50'266 6V°9BE'86Y'C  9L'EPL'€TL'S  LB'SOLLLE uenesay XINY
000 000 PE6GY'rLL PEBSTPLL 00 ussjue) seafoldws
GZ'¢es' L0l GZ'€E4'29L 98'6LL'LYT £1'68€°/8¢ 86'€92°1Z syueg snolep
00°000°05¢ 00°000'05Z 86'8/6'GLZL  00'000'GSE'L  8G'8/6°0LL sJosuodg snoleAp
00°008°GE 00'008'GE GO'EG8'PEN'G  08'E8E'YPS'S  $8'69Z'92G°) slelddng
00°6/6°2€ 00'6.6'LE 00°00¥ LY 00°066°2E 00°6Z8'9r Sjiiauaq SSaWNOIS -SSS
rr8ee 061 P 8EL'061 TL698'612'L  121/8'GETL  SFOE0'VLL 'sllyd Hodsoed
000 000 88'¢pZ'85L'L  £9'GO5°1L08 G'8/9'9G€ $10)e207
000 00°0 SL'E00°/L oL'9LE'EL G0'289'C Jojesado sbuey buiaig
66°€LLTL 66'CLL'TL L0°61L0'041L 18'6/6'091 GZ6¥L'GL ssafojdwg

S9|(BAIDIBY J2UI0
polad (g)yo {(2) poued jo {1 )1098Q
JO pua uauing usylim p2103}|00 m:_c:_mwn_ JO :O_“m:m_mmﬁ_ pue salweN
1e 20uUejeg 1ON usung sjunowy SIUNOWY suonippy je adugjeqg

s1aployyo0s [edidtd pue saned pejeey ‘seaiojdwig ‘SIS0 ‘SI010alIQ WOJ) 3|qeAlsdsy Sjunowy g sinpayag

( seied pejejay uey; 1SN0 )

O = NMm
N NN

rNOTWworoo 2 TNRIROE2E




V'N

¥'N

¥'N

(Z) pouad Jo pus 1e asueeg

pouad jo Buluuibag je aoueleyg

(1) seiped pajeiay jo sweN

salued pele|ay pue SALRIPISONS Pajepl|0SUodUN JO SSaupalgapu] g 9inpeyos

V'N Y'N ¥'N V'N V'N V'N V'N YN ¥'N V'N
poyisw
Anbe
au) Aq 1o} (Z) {g) (Z)
pajunosoe sajou pouad s8l0U
jou pue spuoq ay} Joy pue spuoq (1)
SJUBLIISSAUI JO sjunowe (3) S39)saAL J0 Junowe JusLysaAL|
oy (7} |1edivuud Jo soa1sanUl Aq 10 53880|) [ediound| o uonduosep
paAddal| s0sad Ul saleys {9)| sBuiuies jo {p)| sBuiwies S089d 1o sajeys pue Ajjue
spuapaig| unowy| jodsqunN| Jepo| uonnquisial Jewio| urAunb3| uiunowy| o Jaquuinn| Buinss) jo swepn
souejeg Buipug suononpag suoiippy  9ouejeq BuiuuiBayg

SIUBLLISBAU| JAUID PUB %O0IS Ul SjuswisaAu| wia ] -Buo jeyQ 'seiluindag Ainb3 sigejese JulND-UoN 0 9|npayag




VN ViN VIN
(g)198Ys aaueeq () 199ys aoueeq
pajeRl ul paje|al Ul gap aimgapul
J9ep wusy Buo, wi-Buo yo uoiod kg
uondes Japun ua4ng, ucipden pazuowyine
UMOUS JUNoWY Japun umoys Junowy junowy { 1 yuonefiqo jo adA) pue anssi Jo apL
198 wie] Buo "4 anpeayos
PSLLE VLB 000 000 L6°/260ELC €0'CES BB Zv'291'60G'C
09 LP9'PLL GT'8G.L'G0E 00°000'GE G8'SOV 'SPy swia)shs g sauem
-yos 1s3hduwon
00°0 vZvLL'0LF'T  00'86L'0F ¥2'916'0/8'c  MEDMW 0} ysodeq
¥6'€Z.'669 Y Ssh vl €0'VEL VT £€°Gr8'689 syisodap
SNOaUR|22SIA
slassy Jayl0
sasuadxs
{suononpap) SIUNODoE pue {(z)
sucyIppe JaL0 1800 0} 1500 1e aoueeq
aouejeq Buipuz | sebueyn 1syin 0} pableyn pableysn SUONIPPY Bumubag| (| )uondussag

sj@ssy Jayi0 - siessy a|qibueu) 'g anpayog




GB8S°L 6 0 76S°1L 008} 2Jeys uowwon
uonded 1@9ys
sjybu JaLo aoueleq paleal
PUE UOISISALOD Japun umoys
saakojdws {¢)saned| ‘sjusiem ‘suopdo 1e Buipue)sino paziioyine
pUE 120110 Ag play sadeys Jo} panlasal pue panssi saleys
slayio|  ‘siojoaag joJaquiny| ssseys jo ssquinN| seleys Jo saquinp|  Jo JRquiny (z)yanssijoal
(1 )o01s [enden | s|npayss
V'N ¥'N Y'N VN ¥'N
pall sl pasjuelend Pall SI JUSWR)ES SIY)
()| waswaiels yoiym| ( z ) Buipuesino sanunoes yalym 1oy Auedwico
sajueIenb Jojuosiad Ag|  pue pesjueienb 10 SsE|D Yoea| a3yl Aq pesjuelend sanunoss
Jo aInjeN| pauMmo JUNoWY unowe |ejo] | Jo anssijo ey jo Ajpua BuINss! Jo aweN

¥'N

( 1 ) s19NnSS| JAUYIO JO SBIIINDSS JO SABJUBIEBNG "H 3NPpayss

¥'N

VN

{ Z ) pouad jo pus je a2ueeg

pouad jo Buiuuibaq 18 saueeg

(1) Aned pajejey jo sweN

{ seiuedwon paje|ay Woly sueo wis | -BuoT ) seilied pajejoy 0} SSeUpPsigspu] 'S 8INPayds




|

|
ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENT WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

, For the Fiscal years ended June 30, 1998 up to June 30, 2003, the Club’s external
auditor was Joaquin Cunanan & Co.. The handling partner was Miss Irene Vallestero.
The engagement of Joaquin Cunanan & Co. was terminated in May 2004 upon approval
by the Board on April 29, 2004 of the hiring of Punongbayan & Araullo.

For the years ended June 30, 2004 up to 2007, the financial statements of Valley
Golf & Country Club were audited by Punongbayan & Araullo. The handling partner is
Ms. Mailene Sigue-Bisnar. Punongbayan & Araullo was hired to audit the 2004 books of
account by the Board of Directors, in compliance with the resolution approved during the
Stockholders’ Meeting of September 28, 2003 to leave the decision on the hiring of the
new external auditors to the sound discretion of the Board subject to the observance of
SEC Regulations on Good Corporate Governance. The election of Punongbayan and
Araullo as the Club’s External Auditors was approved during the September 26, 2004
Stockholders’ Meeting.

For the years ended June 30, 2008 up to 2012, the financial statements of Valley
Golf & Country Club, Inc. were audited by Uy Singson Abella & Co. The handling pariner
is Ms. Milagros F. Padernal. The change in external auditor was approved by the Board
of Directors on their regular meeting last June 14, 2008.

For the years ended June 30, 2013 up to 2018, the financial statements of Valley
Golf & Country Club, Inc. were audited by Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. The handling partner
was Mr. Jose Pepito E. Zabat Il from 2013 to 2016. For fiscal year 2017 and 2018 the
handling partner was and still is Mr. Alexis Benjamin C. Zaragoza lll. The change in
external auditor was approved by the Board of Directors in their regular meeting held on
May 19, 2012 and the appointment was approved during Regular Stockholders’ Meeting
on September 22, 2013.

The regular changes in external auditors are in compliance with SEC Memo
Circular No. 8 {(Series of 2003)/SRC Rule 68 (4)(b){(iv) on rotation of external auditors at
least every five (5) years, and have been reflected in corresponding reports submitted to
the SEC.

There are no disagreements with Joaquin Cunanan & Co, Punongbayan & Araullo,

Uy Singson Abella and Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co on any matter of accounting principles
or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure.

PART Ill - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
ITEM 9. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE ISSUER

Incumbent Board of Directors, Executive Officers and Significant Employees of
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.
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Term of Office
Name Age | Citizenship Position as Director/

Period Served
Abraham C. dela Cruz 63 Filipino President ’ }g:eszfnltS .
Luis Manuel S. Polintan 69 Filipino Vice-President : )g:(-gffnltS -
Wilfredo G. Manahan 53 Filipino Treasurer 3 )g:eszfnlg )
Albert DG. San Gabriel 47 | Filipino Asst. Treasurer 3 y;:éffnlg )
Luis G. Quiogue * 52 Filipino Director : y}::e.:szeor;lts )
Virgilio C. Bucat 58 Filipino Director ’ y;:é:f:f -
Augusto A. Cruz, Jr. 63 Filipine Director 3 y;‘: esz :)nlté )
Jaime Victor J. Santos * 45 Filipino Director i y;:é:fnltﬁ ]
Jeremy Z. Parulan * 60 Filipino Director ’ )g:eszfnlg )
\P;L(:]turarf:;inando E-1 59 Filipino Corporate Secretary N.A.
* Independent Director

Mr. Abraham C. Dela Cruz has been a member of the Club since March,
2008. He is currently the President/General Manager of Triple “A” Commercial and
Trading Corp., Chairman of Candaba Water District (2007- Present), Chairman of
Multi System Const. Dev. Corp. (2012-Present).

Mr. Luis Manuel S. Polintan has been a member of the Club since June,
1999 as Playing Guest and became a Proprietary Member in September, 2010.
He is the President/Owner of Interworld Security Agency and Emples Commercial.
He is currently the Chairman of the Security Committee and Bids & Awards
Committee.

Mr. Wilfredo G. Manahan is a CPA by profession. He has been a member
of the Club since January 2005 as Playing Guest and became a Proprietary
Member in January 2010. He is the Owner/Manager of Lubetech Car Care Center.
He was a Former Director of PNB Employees and Savings & Loan Association,
Past President of Rotary Club of Metro West 3780 from 2008 to 2009 and Assistant
Governor of the R.|. District 3780. He is also affiliated with the Freemasonry under
the Jurisdiction of the Grand Lodge of the Philippines. He is actively serving the
Club as Chairman of the Finance and Membership Committees.

Mr. Albert DG. San Gabriel has been a member of the Club since June
22, 2012. He is currently a Board Director and General Manager of Olongapo
Maintenance Services, Inc. He is also an officer and director of Acasa Properties
Corp, Eagle89 Construction and Trading Corp and Tipid Busog Meals, Inc. He is
actively serving the Club as Chairman of the House Committee
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Mr. Luis G. Quiogue has been a member of the Club as playing guest
since 2002 and became a proprietary member on April 2013. He is currently the
General Manager of Presidential Commission on Good Governance from March
2011 to present. He is the Chairman of the Real Estate Committee and Trust Fund
Commiftee.

Mr. Virgilio C. Bucat is a Club member since Oct. 2005 as Playing Guest
and became a Proprietary Member on Nov. 19, 2005. He is the President of
SAGADA Builders. A member of the Real Estate Committee in 2014-2015 and
currently the Chairman of the Grounds and Engineering Committee and Marketing
and Reciprocity Committee.

Mr. Augusto A. Cruz, Jr. is a Club Member since Feb. 1987 and became
a Proprietary member on April 2007. He is a Sales Agent of Pioneer Life, Inc. and
Account officer of PCl Leasing & Finance, Inc. He is currently the Chairman of the
Administration Committee.

Mr. Jaime Victor J. Santos is a Club Member as Proprietary Member
since Nov. 10, 2007. He is the Managing Director of Jamar Development and
Realty Corporation, Dahilayan Agri Development Corporation and Belen & Sons
Commodities Inc. He is also a Director of Association of Fresh Fish Traders of the
Philippines, Inc. He is currently the Chairman of the Sports & Games Committee.

Atty. Jeremy Z. Parulan is an Aftorney by profession. He has been a
member of the Club since August 1997 as Playing Guest and become a
Proprietary Member in August 2006. He is the Managing Partner — Parulan
Soncuya & Trinidad Law Offices and President — Magistech Business Solutions
Inc. He is currently the Chairman of the Legat and Audit Committees

Atty. Rio Sesinando E. Venturanza is a Club Member as Proprietary
Member since March 19, 2011. Atty. Venturanza is a Partner at Tan Venturanza
Valdez Law Offices and Chairman of the Board of TV Realty Inc.. He is a graduate
of Bachelor of Economics and Bachelor of Laws at the University of the Philippines.
He is currently a member of the Adhoc and Special Projects Committee.

The directors are independent of management and free from any business or other
relationship which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with
their exercise of independent judgment in carrying out their responsibilities as directors.
There are no other directors other than the above mentioned names.

There are no family relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by
consanguinity or affinity among directors, executive officers or persons nominated or
chosen by the registrant to become directors or executive officers.

During the past five (5) years there was no bankruptcy petition filed by or against
any business of which the directors, any nominee for election as director and executive
officers is a general partner or executive officer either at the time of bankruptcy or within
two years prior to that time.

There is no conviction by final judgment, in a criminal proceeding, domestic or
foreign, or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding
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tra

ffic violations and other minor offenses against the directors, any nominee for election
as| director and executive officers.

None of the directors, any nominee for election as director and executive officers

is jsubject to any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or
vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or
temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type
of business, securities, commadities or banking activities.

None of the directors, any nominee for election as director and executive officers

was found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction, the Commission of
comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign Exchange or other organized trading
market or self regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or commodities law or
regulation and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended or vacated.

SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES

Mr. Dan L. Salvador lli was born on June 5, 1964 in Paranague City and
is now 54 years old. He is a graduate of Business Commerce major in Business
Management in De La Salle University. His last previous employment is with
Summit Point Golf & Country Club as General Manager. Mr. Salvador started his
employment in Valley Golf last July 28, 2018 as General Manager.

Mr. Rizaldy A. Legaspi was born in Cavite City on Dec. 12, 1970 and is
now 47 years old. He is a graduate of Master in Business Administration in De La
Salle University — Dasmarinas. His last previous employment is as Project
Manager of Sohoton Eco Tourism Dev. Inc., Platinum Group Metals Corp. Mr.
Legaspi was hired as Golf Director of Valley Golf last Sept. 16, 2017 and his
contract ended last Sept. 15, 2018

Ms. Rosanna R. Arguelles was born on October 9, 1963 in Antipolo City
and is now 54 years old; She is a CPA and a graduate of BSC major in Accounting
at University of Santo Tomas. She was previously Chief Accountant of the
Municipality of Antipolo. She started her employment at Valley Golf in 1988 and is
now the Division Manager of the Controller’s Division.

Ms. Elda C. Jugo was born on September 9, 1962 in Binangonan, Rizal
and is now 55 years old. She graduated from Far Eastern University with a degree
of Bachelor of Science in Accounting. She was initially hired as typist-filing clerk in
1986 and is now the Finance and Accounting Manager of the Club.

Mr. Sigfried Arguelles was born on January 5, 1962 and is now 56 years
old. He started working at Valley Golf in 1990 and now the Clubhouse and External
Affairs Manager of the Club.

These are the General Manager, Division Manager and Department
Managers and are considered the key personnel of the Club. The division and
department managers as well as supervisors were previously given a yearly
increase in salaries at a maximum of 3%. But in 2010, instead of giving annual
increases, managers and supervisors were given performance bonuses -
percentage from the audited net income. They also receive Christmas bonuses.
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All duties and responsibilities are ensured to be rotated to other supervisors within

the department so there will be no monopoly of knowledge. The friendly
atmosphere between management and supervisors and the benefits that the
employees receive are factors that contribute to the sense of loyalty of the

employees.

ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Executive Compensation

General

The President, Vice-President, Treasurer, Asst. Treasurer and all members of the
Board are not paid any compensation of whatever kind since election to the Board up to

the present.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Name Position Fiscal Salary/month
Year Retainer
Dan L. Salvador Il General Manager 2018 130,000.00
Rizaldy Legaspi Golf Director 2018 B80,000.00 23,452.05
Rosanna R. Arguelles  Division Manager
Controller
2012 71,890.00 71,890.00
2013 76,390.00 76,390.00
2014 80,890.00 80,890.00
2015 80,890.00  80,890.00
2016 83,317.00 83,317.00
2017 83,317.00 83,317.00
2018  85,817.00 85,817.00
Elda C. Jugo F & A Mngr.
2012  38,840.00 38,840.00
2013  43,340.00 43,340.00
2014 47,840.00 47,840.00
2015  47,840.00 47,840.00
2016 4927500 49,275.00
2017 4927500 4927500
2018  50,753.00 50,753.00
Sigfried C. Arguelles Clubhouse and
External Aff. Manager
2014  30,000.00 30,000.00
2015  30,000.00 30,000.00
2016  30,900.00 30,900.00
2017  30,900.00 30,900.00
2018 32,500.00 32,500.00

13" month Bonus

24,633.84

23,385.80
24,780.90
26,175.90
26,175.90
30,298.27
30,208.27
32,5623.27

13,140.40
14,535.40
15,930.40
15,930.40
19,745.25
19,745.25
21,753.42

10,400.00
10,400.00
14,049.00
14,049.00
15,895.00
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Compensation of Directors

. Valley Golf & Country Club’'s directors have not been and still are not
cor!npensated, directly or indirectly for any services provided as such pursuant to Article
IV, Section 2 of the By-laws.

Employment contracts and termination of employment and change-in-control
arrangements

The Board of Directors is composed of nine (9) members. Every year at the annual
stockholders’ meeting, three (3) directors are elected for a term of three (3) years. No
director can serve consecutively for more than three (3) years.

The Club has no compensatory plan or arrangement with its directors and General
Manager resulting from resignation, retirement or any other termination of their
relationship with the company, or from a change in control of the company or a change of
responsibilities following a change in control.

Warrants and Options Outstanding: Repricing

There are no warrants or options held by the company's CEO, the executive
officers, and all officers and directors as a group.

Family Relationships

As of the filing of this report, management is not aware of any relationship (up to
the fourth civil degree), either by consanguinity or affinity among the directors, executive
officers or members nominated to be directors.

ITEM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT

1. There is no person or any group of persons who is the owner on record or
the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly of more than five percent (5%) of
the Club’s voting securities.

2. All members of the Board are the owners on record of one share each

which qualifies them for directorship. There is no director who is the
beneficial owner of other shares of stocks.
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Title of . Amount/Nature
Class Name of Beneficial of Ben{aﬁcial Citizenship Percent of
Owner . Class
Ownership
Ordinary | Abraham C. dela Cruz 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Luis Manuel S. Polintan 1 share Filipino Negligibie
Ordinary | Wilfredo G. Manahan 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Albert DG. San Gabriel 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Luis G. Quiogue * 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Virgilio C. Bucat 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Augusto A Cruz, Jr. 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Jaime Victor ]. Santos * 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Jeremy Z. Parulan * 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Rio Sesinando E. 1 share S Negligible
Filipino
Venturanza
2. The Club is not aware of the existence of any voting trust holders of any
proportion of the existing authorized capital stock.
3. There is no arrangement, which may result in a change in management

control of registrant since the beginning of the last fiscal year.

ITEM 12 - CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

In line with the policy of Valley Golf of transparency and avoidance of conflict of
interest situations by its directors/officers as provided in the By-Laws, Valley Golf does not
have any transactions with or involving a company or any of its subsidiaries in which a
director, executive officer, or stockholder owns ten percent (10%) or more of the total
outstanding shares and members of their immediate family had or is to have a direct or
indirect material interest.

Valley Golf did not have transactions with promoters.

Valley Golf does not have a parent company et a subsidiary company.
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PART IV — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ITE;M 13 — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PLEASE REFER TO ATTACHED ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT (ACGR)

ITEM 14.

PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON SEC FORM 17-C

Exhibits

A. Amended Articles of Incorporation — 15 pages
B. Amended By-Laws — 15 pages

C. Annual Report to Security Holders — 64 pages

D. Minutes of the September 24, 2017 Stockholders’ Meeting

Valley Golf does not have Plan of Acquisition, Reorganization,
Arrangement, Liquidation or Succession, Instruments defining rights of
security holders, voting trust agreement, subsidiaries, power of attorney or
other reports mentioned.

Reports on SEC Form 17 — C and Form 17 - Q

a. On Aug. 3, 2017, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on the
Appointment of the Club’s Corporate Secretary Atty. Rio Sesinando
Venturanza, to be, concurrently the Compliance Officer of Valley Golf.
Included also in the said report is the appointment of the Nomination
Committee for the Sept. 24, 2017 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting and
Election of the Board of Directors.

b. On Aug. 23, 2017, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the resignation of Atty. Alvin Geli as member of the Committee on
Elections and the appointment of Atty. Felipe Cuison as member of the
Committee on Elections.

c. On Sept. 22, 2017, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
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the issuance of one (1) share of stock for the repair of two (2) units
Vertical Turbine Pump.

d. On Sept. 29, 2017, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the election of the Board of Directors, Board Members who ceased to
hold their positions and new officers elected by the Board of Directors
in the organizational meeting on Sept. 24, 2017.

e. On Sept. 29, 2017, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the appointment of Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. as Valley Golf’'s External
Auditors or Independent Accountants during the Sept. 24, 2016
Stockholders’ meeting.

f  On Sept. 29, 2017, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the appointment of the Chairman of the Audit Commitiee and Assistant
Treasurer. Also included in the said report is the appointment of
Cubacub Law and Accounting Office as the Internal Auditor of Valley
Golf.

g. On Oct. 25, 2017, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the acquisition of the Club of two (2) Treasury Shares of Stock.

h. On Nov. 2, 2017, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on the
appointment of the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Chairman of the
Remuneration and Compensation Committee and the Committee on
Elections.

i. OnNov. 7, 2017, Valley Golf submitted 17-Q for the quarterly report for
the first quarter.

j.  On Nov. 22, 2017, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the appointment of Atty. Jeremy Z. Parulan as Independent Director.

k. On Nov. 22, 2017, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the appointment of the members of the Audit Committee.

I. On Dec. 14, 2017, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the appointment of the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

m. On Jan. 24, 2018, Valley Golf submitted the current report 17-C on
compliance with the Manual of Corporate Governance for the year
ended December 31, 2017.

n. OnFeb 1, 2018, Valley Golf submitted 17-Q for the quarterly report for
the second quarter.

o. On April 6, 2018, Valley Golf submitted the current report 17-C on the
attendance of Dir. Albert D.G. San Gabriel in the training for corporate
governance.

p. On May 10, 2018, Valley Golf submitted 17-Q for the quarterly report
for the third quarter.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation
Code, this report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, in the City of Antipolo on September 19, 2018.
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUE, INC.

By:

President

RIO SESIN NdBéVENTURANZA

Corporate $ecretary

ROSANNA\R. ARGUELLES
ComptrolleitHead Controliers’
Division

O G. MANAHAN
Principat Financial Officer/
Treasurer

e

DAN L. SALVADORIII
General Manager/Compliance
Officer

ELDA C. JUGO
Principal Aécounting Officer/
Finance & Accounting Manager

, SEP 26 A1
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day-of .= , 2018
affiants exhibiting to me their valid ID’s, as follows:
Name SEP 2 6 2018

Abraham C. Dela Cruz
Wifredo G. Manahan

Rio Sesinando E. Venturanza
Dan L. Salvador lll

Rosanna R. Arguelles

Elda C. Jugo

Doc. No. __ “*4 -
Page No. = S
Book No. o
Series of 2018

SUBSCRIBED AND 3W GER TU srURE ME
TIN No. 106-571388___ DAY OF ... AT ANTWOLO TITY
TIN No. 109’940'%3\17 EXHIBITING TU ME HISHERGOV'T
TIN No. 100-699- R
TN Ry 106,006 BARD 1D NOTED BELOW HIS NAME
PRC ID No. 0688065

TIN No. 102-778-591

Uniil December 31, E?
Rolf of AtioTneys No. 2541
MCLE Compliznee Mo, V-5
TBP No. 026779; Jan, 15, 70 At
PR Mo 8503355 T :

43




REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC Buiiding, EDSA, Greenhills
City of Mandaluyang, Melro Maniia

: ;»%@t‘i%%%
‘;“ ol
11

- Company Reg. No. 13951
CERTIFICATE OF FILING
AMENDED ARTICLE(;%F INCORPORATION
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the amended articles of incorporation of the

VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
[Amending Article IV by extending the term of ifs existence thereof]

ey
-!g—?;, BIE
EETIE

copy anmexed, adopted oun July 2%, 2006 by a majority vole of the Board of
Dircciors and on November 18, 2007 by the vote of the stoekholders owning or
represeniing  at least two-thirds of the ontstanding capital stock, and certified under
oath by the Secretary and a majority of ihe Roard of Divectors of the corporation was
approved by the Commission on this daie pursuant to the provision of Section 16 of e
Corporation Code of the Philippines, Batas Pambansa Blg. 68, approved on May 1, 1980
and copies thereof are filed wilh the Commission.

Lk

TR
53

e

Unless this corporation oblains or aleady has obtained the appropriate
Sccondary License hrom this Coemmission, this Certificate dees not authorize it (o
undertalce business activities requiring a Secondary License from this Commission snch
a5, but not Jimited to acting ast broler or dealer in securifies, povermment seeurities
eligible dealer (GSED), investment adviser of an invesiment cempany, closc-end or
cpen-end invesiment company, investment house, transfer agent, commaodity/financial
futures exchangefbroker/merchant, financing company, pre-nced plan issuer, general
agent jn pre-nced plans and &éime shares/elul shares/membership certificntes issaers or
selling agents thercof. Neither does this Certificate consiilute as permit-to undertahe
activitios for which other government agencies require a license ov permit.

1N WITNESS WHERLEOQF, I have herenuto set my hand and cansed the seal of
thizl miission to be affixed at Mandaluyong City, Metro Manila, Philippines, this
ayof April, Two Thousand Eight,

"‘._“' :‘.‘ o \

: ,5%531 NITO 8. CATARAN

3’?:&,{}‘3 Director

'ﬁgﬁ CompAny Registration and Monitoring Depariment

s

.

e

Wﬁk
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AMENDED
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUE,
(Amended as of IShg;:J'tember 10, 1983)
(Formerly Valiey Golf Club, Inc)
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
That we, all of whom are of legal age and residents of the Philippines, have

this day voluntarily associaled ourselves together for the purpose of forming &

corporation under the laws of the Phitippines.

AND WE HEREBY CERTIFY:

FIRST. That the name of said corporation shall be “VALLEY GOLF &

COUNTRY CLUB, INC.” {As amended on September 10, 1989).

SECOND.  That the purposes for which the said corporation is formed are:

PRIMARY PURPOSE

A i ——

To foster and promote the game of golf and operate and maintain a golf course

and country club.

SECONDARY PURPOSE

To buy, lease or otherwise acquire, cwn, hold and dispose of, such real and
personal property as may be necessary, advantageous or convenient in the conduct
of its business; to develop, improve, and subdivide any properiies awned by the

corporation; and, generakly, o do and perform all such acts and things, and to




R S

exercise such powers as are ordiharily done, performed and exercised by social and

athletie clubs and associations.

THIRD. That the place where the principal office of the corporation is to

be established or located is Antipolo, Rizal, Philippines.

FOURTH. That the tarm for which said corporation is to exist for anather

FIETY (80) YEARS from May 15, 2008. {as amended on November 18, 2007).

FIFTH. That the names, residence and nationality of the incorporators

of said corporation are gs follows:

Name Nationality Resjdence
Celso Tuasoh Filipine Wilson St., San Juan, Rizal
" Aurelio Montinola, Sr. Filipino Mahogany Rd., Fprbes Park Makati,
Ernest Kahn Filipino Russell Ave., P:sz?/ICiiy
Henry Belden American 13" st., New Manila, Q. C.
J. Antonio Araneta Filiptno Mckinley Rd., Forbes Park Makati,
Rizal
SIXTH, That the number of Directors of said corparation shall be nine

{9) and the names and residences of the Directors of the corporation who are to

serve until their successors are elected and qualified as provided by the By-Laws are

-

as foliows:
Narme Nationality Residence
Celso Tuason Filipina Wilson St., San Juan, Rizal
Aurelio Mentinola, Sr. FHlipino Mahogany Rd. Forbes Park, Makati,
Rizal
Ernest Kahn - Filipine Russell Ave., Pasay City

Henry Belden American 13! 8t,, New Manifa, Q. C.




J. Antonio Araneta Filipino Mckinley Rd., Forbes Park, Makati,

Rizal
Francisco Ortigas, Jr. Filipina R. Alunan St., Manila
Jaime Velasquez Filigino Fasy St., San Juan, Rizal

SEVENTH. That the capital stock of said corporation is Sixteen Milion Two
Hundred Thousand Pesos (PhP16,200,000.00) divided into One Thousand Eigitt
Hundred (1,800) shares of the par value of Nine Thousand Pesos (PhP9,000) each.

(as amended on September 13, 1981).

Said shares of s’;ock shail.be owned by and the interest thereof accrue only to
the registered owner thereof, wha, aside from his rights as shareholder, may in
addition, and subject to such rules and regulations as may be promulgated by, and to
scresning and approval of the Board of Directors, be issued a regular membership
card that would entitle him to ali the rights and privileges that are extended fo al
holders of regular membership cards for the use and enjoyment of the facilities and

premises of the Club.

Any persch who owns or buys a ghare in the company must apply for
membership within thidy (30) days from date of registration of sale. This condition

shall appear in the stock certificates.

EIGHTH. That the amount of said capital stock which has been acfually
subscribed is ONE MILLION PESOS (PhP1,000,000.00) and the following persons
have subscribed for the number of shares and amount of capital stack set out after

their respective hames.




Name

Aguinaldo, Francisco R.

Aguirre, Tomas B.
Alafris, Arturo A
Araneta, J. Antonio
Araneta, Luis M.
Bahat, Chester
Balcoff, Charles |.
Barredo, Manuel
Bautista, Constantino
Belden, Henry
Bennett, Henry E,
Brias, Enrique

Brias, Jaime

Cachg, Francisco
Cacho, Jose A.
Chua, Antonio Roxas
Cojuangco, Pedro
Consunii, Ricardo
Cortes, Jose Ma.
Cortas, Felix

Cruz, Bienvenido

Cu Unjieng, Benito
Damperre, Alfonso R. de
Diaz, Pompeyo
Feria, Jose -
Fernandez, Jose
Frieder, Robert
Gabaldon, Isaurc
Gamboz, Regino D.
Gonzales, Antonio
Gonzales, Rafael
Guerrero, Oscar E.
Halling, F. R.

Huang, Frank
Jathuena, L. P.
Kahn, Ernest

Klar, Jose

Liboro, Antres
Licaros, Gregario, Sr.
Licaros, Gregorio, B. Jr.
Lim, P. L

Lim, Peter

Locsin, Jose

Lopa, Manuel

Lopez, Honrade C.
Lovell, G. H.

Luz, AlfredoJ.
Madrigal, Antonio P.
Madrigai, Jose P.
Manahan, Constantino P.
Manglapus, Raul
Marwotoc, Ricardo S.

Residence

Quezon City
Pasay City
Pasay City
Makati, Rizal
Manila
Quezon City
Manila
Manila
Quezon City -
Quezon City
San Juan, Rizal
Makati, Rizal
Manila
Mandaluyong, Rizal
Manila.
Manila
Manila
Mandaluyong, Rizal
Quezon City
Quezon City
Pasay City
Manila

Manila
Manita
Manila
Manila
Quezon City
Maniia
Manila
Quezon City
Quezon City
5. Juan, Rizal
Makati, Rizal
8. Juan, Rizal
Pasay City
Pasay City
Quezoh City
Quezon City
Manila
Manila

8. Juan, Rizal
Makati, Rizal
Manila

Pasay City
Manila

Pasig, Rizat
Manila
Quezon City
Quezon Gity
Quezon Gity
San Juan, Rizal
Quezon City

No. of
Shares

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
Kl
1
1
1
-1
1
4
1
1
1
1
1

Amount
Subscribed

10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
40,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
40,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
18,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.0C
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00




Ratilla, Faustino
Miranda, Antanio
Montinola, Aurelic Sr.
Montinola, Aurefio Jr.
Montinola, Sergio
Mathan, Karl
Norton, J. E.
Olives, Sebastian
Ortigas, Eduardo
Ortigas, Francisco
Ortigas, Rafael
Perez Rubio, Miguel
Picazo, Evaristo
Pleornell, Santiago
Preysler, J. B.
Qudrino, Catlos
Recto, Alfonso
Reyes, Narciso dJr.
Reyes, Victor
Roca, Femando S.
Roxas, Anfonio
Roxas, Eduardo
Rufino, Emesta D.
Santayana, Luis S.
Soriano, Andres
Soriano, Andres Jr.
Sorianc, Jose Maria
Sycip, Washington
Tuason, Celao A,
Tuason, Juan E.
Tuason, Severo A
Unsaon, Miguel R
Uy, James
Velasquez, Jaime
Velayo, Alfredo
Veliguth, Alfred C.
Vifla-Abrifle, Alfredo

Villareal, Fernando Sr.

Wilkinson, Gerald
Wilson, Calude M., Jr.
Young, Waller Au
Ysmaef, Carlos
Ysmaat, Felipe

Yu Kho Siong

Yu Kho Thai

Yujuico, Algjandro S.
Yujuico, Jesus 8.
Zulueta, Cesar de

Quezon City
Pasay City
Makati, Rizal
Makati, Rizal
Bacoled City
Quezon City
Quezon City
Quezon City
Quezon City
Manila

Manila

Makati, Rizal
Makati, Rizal
Manila

Makati, Rizal
Maniia,

Makati, Rizal
Manila

Manila

Quezon City
Pasay City
Makati, Rizal
Pasay City
Makati, Rizal
Pasay Cily
Makati, Rizal
Pasay City
Makati, Rizal
San Juan, Rizal
Manila

Manila

Pasay City
Makati, Rizal
San Juan, Rizal
Makati, Rizal
Parafiaque, Rizal
Makati, Rizal
Quezon City
Quezon Gity
Mandaluyong City
San Juan, Rizal
CQuezon City
Quezan Cily
Manila

Pasay City
Quezon City
Quezan City
Malcati Gity

i
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
9
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1.
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
40,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
1,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,00.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.60
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00

1
10

0 >1,000,000




NINTH. That ihe following persons have paid on the sl

stock for which they have subscribe

names.

]

Aguinaldo, Francisco R.

Aguirre, Tomas B,
Alafris, Arturo A
Aranata, J. Antonio
Araneta, Luis Ma.
Balcolf, Chester
Blacoff, Chailes T.
Barredo, Manuel
Bautista, Constantino
Belden, Henry
Bennett, Henry E.
Brias, Enrigque

Brias, Jaime

Cacho, Francisco
Cacho, Jose A
Chua, Antonio Roxas
Cojuangco, Pedro
Consunil, Ricardo
Cortes, Jose Ma.
Cortes, Felix

Cruz, Bienvenido

Cu Unjieng, Benite
Damperre, Alfonso R.de
Diaz, Pompeyo
Feria, Jose
Fernandez, Jose
Frieder, Robert
Gabaldon, lsauro
Gamboa, Regino D.
Gonzales, Rafael
Guerrero, Oscar E.
Halling, F. R.

Huang, Frank
Jalbuena, L.P.

Kahn, Ernest

Klar, Jose

Liboro, Andres
Licaros, Gregorio, Sr.
Licaros, Gregorio, B. Jr.
Lim, P. L.

Lim, Peter

.ocsin, Jose

Lopa, Manuel

i.opez, Honradio G.
Lovell, G. H.

Luz, Alfredo J.
Madrigal, Antonic P.

Residence

Quezon City
Pasay City
Pasay City
Malkati, Rizal
Manila
Quezon City
Manila
Manila
Quezeon City
Quezon City
San Juan, Rizal
Makati, Rizal
Manila

Mandaluyong, Rizal

Mariila
Manila
Manila

Mandaluyong, Rizal

Quezon City
Quezon City
Pasay City
Manila
Manila
Manila

Manila
Manila
Quezon City
Klanita
Manila
Quezon City
S. Juan, Rizal
Makati, Rizal
5. Juan, Rizal
Pasay City
Pasay City
Quezon City
Quezon City
Manila
Manila

3. Juan, Rizal
Makati, Rizal
Manita

Pasay City
Manila

Pasig, Rizal
Manila
Quezon Gity

Amount

hares of capital

d the amounts set out after their respective

Subscribed

P 3,500.00
3.500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00




Madrigat, Jose P.

Manahan, Gonstantino P.

Manglapus, Raul
Manatoc, Ricardo S.
Matilla, Faustino
Miranda, Antonio
Mantinola, Aurelio Sr.
Maritinola, Aurelio Jr.
iMantinola, Sergio
Nathan, ¥arl

Morion, J. E.

Olives, Sebastian
Orligas, Eduardo
Ortigas, Francisco
Ortigas, Rafzel
Perez Rubio, Miguel
Picazo, Evaristo
Pirconeli, Santiago
Preysler, J. B.
Quirino, Carlos
Alfoniso, Recto
Reyes, Narciso Jr.
Reyes, Victor

Roco, Fernando S.
Roxas, Antonio
Roxas, Eduardo
Rufino, Emesto D.
Santayana, Luis S.
Soriano, Andres
Soriane, Andres Jr.
Soriano, Jose Maria
Sycip, Washington
Tuason, Celso A
Tuason, Juan E.
Tuason, Severo A,
tnson, Miguel R,
Uy, James
Velasquez, Jaime
Velayo, Alfredo
Vellouth, Alfred C.
Vilta-Abrille, Aliredo
Villareal, Fernando Sr.
Wilkinson, Gerald
Wilson, Calude M., Jr.
Yaung, Walter Au
Ysmael, Carlos
Ysmael, Felipe
Siong, Yu Khe

Tai, Yu Khe

Yujuico, Alejandra S.
Yujuico, Jasus S.
Zulueta, Cesar de

Quezon City
Guezon City
San Juan, Rizal
Quezon City
Quezon City
Pasay City
Makati, Rizal
Makat!, Rizal
Bacolod City
Quezon City
Quezon City
Quezon City
Quezon City
Manila

Manila

Makati, Rizat
Makati, Rizal
Manila

Makati, Rizal
Manila

Makaii, Rizal
Manita

Manila

Quezon City
Pasay City
Makati, Rizal
Pasay City
Makati, Rizal
Pasay City
Makat], Rizal
Pasay City
Malkati, Rizal
San Juan, Rizal
anila

Manila

Pasay City
Makati, Rizal
San Juan, Rizal
Makati, Rizal
Parafiacue, Rizal
Makati, Rizal
Quezon City
Quezon City
Mandaiuyong Cily
San Juan, Rizal
Quezon City
Quezon City
Manila

Pasay City
Quezon City
Quezon Clty
Malah City

3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500,00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500,00
3.500.00
3,500,00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
3.500.00
3.500.00
3,500,00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3.500.00
3.500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3.500.00
3,500.00
3.500.00

P 350,000




TENTH.

Treasurer of the Corporation to act as such until his s

That ERNEST KAHN has been elected by the subscribers as

uceessor is duly elected and

gualified in accordance with the By Laws, and that no such Treasurer he has been

authorized to receive for

the corporation and fo receipt in its name for ali

subscriptions paid in by saig subscribers.

1N WITNESS WHEREOF, we hav

Manila, Philippines, this 14"

(Sgd.} Celso Tuason

CELSO TUASON

{Sqd.} Ernest Kahn
ERNEST KAHN

Sgd.) Ulegible

day of May, 1935.

e hereunto set our hands in the City of

(Sad.) Aurelio Montinofa

AURELIO MONTINCLA

Sad.) Henry T. Belden
HENRY T. BELDEN

{Sad.) J. Antonio Araneta
J. ANTONIO ARANETA

Signed in the presence of:

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
)

" GiTY OF MANILA

Bafore me, a Notary Public |
day of May, 1958, personally appe

residence certificates, {o wit:

n and for the City of Manila,
ared the following ‘persons with their respective

(Sqd.) llegible

Philippines, this 14"

Name Residence Date and Place
Cert. No, of lasue
Celson Tuason A-0204962 Jan. 22, 1658 — Manila
Aurslio Monftinola, Sr. A-0023051 Jan. 6, 1958 - Manila
Ernest Kahn A-0006403 1an. 2, 1958 — Manila
Henry Belden A-0067620 | Jan. 13, 1958 - Manila
1. Anftonio Araneta A-0120887 1an. 17, 1958 — Maniia




all known to me and o me known to be the same persons who executed the
foregoing Articles of incorperation of Valley Golf Club, Inc., and acknowlegiged to me

that the same is of their free and voluntary act and deed.

WITNESS my hand and seal at the place and on the date first above writien.

(Sgd.) Mariano B. Pineda, Jr.
ISARIANQ B. PINEDA, JR.
Motary Public -~
Uniil December 31, 1858

Doc. No. 188
Page No. 52
Book No. i
Series of 1958.




DIRECTOR'S CERTIFIGATE

WE, the Chairman, Secretary and majority of the elected and qualified
members of the Board of Directors of Directors of VALLEY GOLF CLUB, INC., a
stock corporation organized and existing under the laws of the Philippines do hereby
certify: :

hat as an Annual Meeting of the Stockhelders and members of the Board of
Directors held on September 10, 1989 at 4:20 p.m. a fhe principal office of the
corporation and foflowing resolution was duly approved, adopted and recorded in the
minutes:

"RESOLVED, as [t is hereby
recaived that Article | of the Articles of
Incorporation of VALLEY GOLF CLUB, ING.
ne amehded by changing the corporate
name to VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY
CLUB, INC.*

That the above regalution was confirmed, approved and ratified by the vote of
the stockhoiders owning/representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the entire
putstanding capital stock at a special stockholders and directors meeting held on the
same date and place;

That the attached articles of Incorporation Is 2 true and correct copy of the
present Articles of incorporation, as amended, reflecting its new corparate name.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto subseribed our names this 25"
day of September 1989 at Matati, Meatro Manila.

PEDRO H. YAP
Director ‘
Res. Gert. No. 764301-A
Jssued at: Manila

on: Feb. 2, 1989

(Sgd.)
MARCELINO L. GO
Director
Res. Cert. No. 000006435
Issued at: Manita

on: 1-31-1988

(Sgd.)
LUIS SICAT
Director
Res. Cert. No. 214630-E
Issued ai: Q. C.
on: 3-21-1983

(Sgd.)
ROMEO i, LIAMZON
Director
Res. Cert. No.
Issued at: Antipolo
an; March 4, 1989

(Sgd.) N
. EMMANUEL CASTANEDA

Director
Res. Cerl. No. 025367
Issued at: Antipolo

on; 1-18-89

(Sgd.)
JOHNNY SARMENTA
Director
Res. Cert. No. 08538558.
lssued at: Q. C.

on: 3-20-89




(Sgd.)

JOSE VILCHEZ, JR. FEDERICO CARANDANG
Director ) Director
Res. Cert. No. 1158001G Res. Cerl. No.
lssued at: Antipolo Issued at;
on: 4-1-1989 on:
(8gd.)
CRISMEL VERANO
Director
Res. Ceri. No. 4925502
Issued at: Gl C.
on; 2-23-1989
ATTESTED:
{Sgd.) (Sgd.)
PEDRO H. YAP ORLANDO C, PARAY
President Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to hefore me this 25" day of September 1988,
affiants exhibiting to me their Res. Cert. No. printed below their respective name.

Sad.

EDGAR A. PACIS
NOTARY PUBLIC
Until December 31, 1980
PTR No. 565199, Malkat]
Jan. 3, 1989

Doc. Na. 439,
Page No. 89;
Book No. lI;
Series of 1989.




DIRECTORS' CERTIFICATE

We, the undersigned majority of the

GOLF & COUNTRY €LUB, INC.,, do hereby

Directors and Corporate Secretary of VA
certify that the Acticles off Incorporation aff

s ) J E’:_:_s..hm;t)
20y |
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o AR
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L

SRR (R

said corporation was amended by a majority vote of the directers on July 29, 2006 and Lhe
vote of stockholders representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock ata
meeting held on November (8, 2007 at the principaf office of the corporation.

The amended provisions of the attached Amended Articles of Incurporation reler to

Article 4 “That,the Term for which said corporation is to

years from May 15, 2008,

Res. Cert. No. 12450200
Issued at Antipolo City
on January 4, 2008

TreasurerfDigector

TIN No. 150~146-618

Res. Cert. No. 14723842

Tesued at Cainta, Rizal
on January 3, 2008

E LARDIZABA

Diy

TIN No. 103-405-178
Res. Cert. No. 23742105
Issued at Pasig City

on February 23, 2008 I

ARDO P. CRUZ
Direclor -
TIN No. 128-282-687

Res. Cert. No, 11562615
Tssued at Marikina City

on Janvary 3, 2008

inother Fifty (50)

1INO TOPACI(
Vice President/Director
TN No. 110-062-048
Res. Cert. No. 07594500
Tssued at Quezon City

on January 3, 2008

—‘_‘__—'—I'
TEODOR( PATA
sst, TreasuerAirector
N No., 1112924493

Nes, Cert. No. 24199012
Issued at Quezon City
on April 4, 2008

. Py
FRANCISCO™BEN REYES

Director
TIN No. 115-808-073
Res. Cert. No. 07649077
Jasued at Quezon Cily
on January 10, 2008

ROBERTO ROXAS
Director
TIN Ne. {06-207-370
Res. Cert. No. 19475836
Issued at Maleati City

on Jamary 11,2008




L Lo ‘ 4 .
an %EMUDA\%Q&O :

Jirector

TIN No. 125-972-748

Res. Cert. No. 12465301

Tssued at  Antipalo City
on January 2, 2008

duntersigned:

4

FOFILO C. ABEJO
Corporate Secretary
TIN No. 119-882-828
Res. Cert. No. 11875770
Issued at Mandaluyeng City
on January 4, 2008

1 th&PR 1 ﬁ Zﬂg?;\y of

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN o before m
2008 at STV BFPASTE by the above-namcd persons who

axhibited to me their Community Tax Certificates.

Doc. No. “”{’ :

Page No. 3T AMADD BANILD GJAYAG
BockNo. __ & Hotary Pubtic for Pasig City
Series of 2008. Untll December 31, 2008

PTR No. 4090254 01/03/08; Rizal
IBP No. 732650: 91/03/68; Rizal
Gan Juan - - ndaluyong
Roil B 43175




REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COWMMISSION

$EC Building, EDSA, Greenhills
City of Mandaluyong, Metro Manila

Comnpany Reg. No. 13951

CERTIFICATE OF FILING
OF
AMENDED BY-LAWS

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the Amended By-Laws of
VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

. copy annexed, adopted on August 21, 2010 by a majority vote of the Board of
Directors and on September 26, 2010 by the vote of the stockhelders owning or
representing at least majority of the outstanding capital stack, and certified
under oath by the Corporate Secretary and majority of the said Board was
approved by the Commission on this date pursuant to the provisions of
Section 48 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines Batas Pambansa Big. 68,
approved on May 1, 1980, and copies thereof are filed with the Commission.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have set my hand and caused the seal of

this Commission to be affixed tg %1115 Certificate at Mandaluyong City, Metxo
Manila, Philippines, this ay of November, Twenty Ten.

ENITO A. CATARAN
Director

Company

R RRD
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AMENDED BY-LAWS OF
VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB

ARTICLE | . OFFICE

The Principal office of lhe . ; . .
Philippines. pal office of lhe Club shall be located at Anlipole City, Rizal

ARTICLE U - SEAL

The Beoard of Directors is autharized fo desi
ihe Club. ign and to adopl a seal for

ARTICLEN - MEETING

Saction 1. Annusl Meclings — The annuai meetings of stockholders
shali be held at the Clubhouse on the Fourth Suncay of September of gach
year at 4:00 o'clack in the allernoon.

Section 2. Special Meelings - Special mestings of stockholders may
e called at anytime by resolution of lhe Board af directors or by order of the
President, ot upon wrilten request of ten percent (10%) of stockhoiders. No
action will be taken at such special meeting excepi for the purpose(s)
specified nthe call.

Section 3. Notice of Meetings — \Written notice of meetings fof every
reguiar of special meeting of slockholders shalt be given 1o stockholders at
|east {10) days ptior to the dale of the meeting. Any faiiure of irregularity of
nolice of any meeting shall be desmed cured where the complaining
glockholders appear at the meeling.

Section 4. Quorum - A quorum at any meeting shall consist of a
majority of the stockholders, reprasented in persan or by proxy, and a majority
of such quorum shall decide any questien that may come belare the mesting.
except in cases where a different number of votes s required by 2w,

Section 5. Pioxies — Every stocknolder i3 entitied to vote at any
meeting of stockhaiders and may S0 vote by proxy. provided that the proxy
gnall have been appointed by the stockholder himself or by his duly
authorized attorney-in-fact in an officiat numbered proxy form issued by the
Club. No other proxy form shail be recognized by the Cluh.

Section b. Election of Direciars - The election of Diractors sh‘ali be
held at the annual mecling of slockholders and shall be conduc.:t‘ed in the
manner provided fro in the Corporation Law, and with such formalities as the
officer presiding at {ne meeting shall then and there determing and provided.




The external auditor or auditors sl iewi

: halt likewise be elected .
stockholders' exthelf in the annual stockholder's mesting or inE;i Eyect:timt
stockholders’ meeting called for the plirpose. pecs

Section 7. Order of Business — The order o i
: f the business of the
annual meeling and, as far as possible, at all other meeting of stockholders

shall be as foltows:

h}

Calling the roll,

Secratary's proof of due notice of the meeling.
Reading and disposal of the unapproved minutes.
Report of officers, annua! and otherwise.
Unfinished husiness.

New business.

Electlon of Direstors.

Adiournment.

section 8. Eligibility to vote and be voted

g) Only sto

ckholders in good standing shall have the right to vate and
be voled upon at any meeting of the stockholders.

)] Qualiﬁcations of Nominees far the Election of Directors:

Has one (1) share recorded in_hisfher name for at least
three (3) vears at the time of nomipation and shall
continue {0 OWDn & share_during his/her term of office. If
the nominee has been & mermber of a standing commifiee
for at least one (1) year, or a playing guest oF corporate
EM

|s an active proprielary mamber who has not assigned
laving riaht of hisfher share of stock upon hisfher

the playind 1ig p
nomination, has committed_in writing not to _assign said

. plaving right during his/her incumbensy if elecied, and is

in good standing, with no delingyent ACCounts;

Shall_have sufficient time and willing o _share his/her
professicnal and executive expertise, and,

Has no officia) record of grave and serious misconduct
that_merited Club membership_suspension and has not

been convicted [n any crimingl_case. (As amended by
the stockholders on September 26, 2010 and by the
Board of Directors ol August 21, 2010).




e,

Section 9. Stockholdet's Consent — TT
; . — The consent of 2
outstanding capital stock shall be required in the following instances.:!3 of fhe

a) A subsiantial change in the present layout |

v p yout in the 36 holes golf

b} Any expenlditure of the funds of the Club for alteration covered by
the prece_dmg paragraph.

c} Any capital expe'nditure for new projects other than any those
approved at previous stockholders' meeting which requires special
assessment against the stockholders, or an Increase in the number
of autharized shares of Chb.

_ For the purpose of this section, the consent of stockholders may be
obtained by referendum.

Section 10, Commitiee on Election — Members of the Committee on
Election shall be appeinted by the Board of Direciors, composed of three (3}
proprigtary members in good standing. Such proprietary members shall be of
unguestionable integrity and occupy the highest esteern of his peers. For
purposes of the Comelec, a playing representative of a corporate proprietary
member may be appointed as member of the Gomelec provided that said
designated playing representative shal be the incumbent President or
Chairman of the Corporation and should own equity in the sald Corporation
and subject to such other requirements andfor limitations that the Board may
jmpose.”

The Club General Manager, Comptroller and Internal Auditor shall jorm
part of the Comelec Secretariat.

ARTICLEIY - DIRECTORS

Section 4. Board of Directors — The business and property of the Club
shall be managed by @ Board of nine () Directors. At the next annual
siockholders' meeting, nine (9) Cirectors shall be elected, the first three (3)
Directors receiving the highest number of votes shall setve for 2 term of three
(3) years, the three (3) other Directors receiving the next !1lghe:at number of
yotes shall serve for a tern of two (2) years: and the remalning tivee (3)
Directors shall serve for a term of one (1) yeat. Every year therqafter, at the
annual stockholders’ meeting, there shall be taree (3) glected Directors 'who
shall serve for a term of thres (3) years. No Directars can Serve consecutively

4or more than three (3) years.

No more than shdy (60) days prior to the annual me_eting of stockholders, the
President with the approval of the Board of Directors, shall appoint at
nominating Committee of flve (5) stockhalders, three (3.'} of whom are nu'£
Directors. The said nominating commitiee shall prepare. sign and post at leas
fifteen (16) days befare the annual meeling, & llSlt of nat less than four {4} nor
mare than six (6) candidates for the Board of Directors for the ensuing ygat:'.
Any five (B) stockholders may nominate additional candidates for the‘ BN[I)a;tin Y
posting a gigned list not later than ten (10) days before the Annual Meetng.




ﬁe nominating Committee shall evaluate all candidates to ensure compliance
with the }'equired qualifications, A list of the gualified candidates nominated
shall be included in the notice of the annual meeting that is sent out to each
stockholder, (As amended by the stockholders on September 26, 2610
and by the Board of Directors on August 21, 2010} ’

Section 2. Directors to act as of Board - The Board of Directors shall
act only as a board and no power is vested in the individual direclor as such.
A majority of the Board shall constitute a guorum for the transaction of
business, except for the filing of vacancies in the Board, in which case
majority of the remalning Directors shall constitute a quorum. Directors shall
receive no salaries or fees as such.

section 3. Board Mesting — The regular meeting of the Board of
Directors shall be held once a month at such time and place as shall be
determined by the Board. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the
President, or upon written petition of three {3) members, Motice of Board
Meetings shall be served on each director at least three (3) days before the
meeling, Unless notice s waived by all the Directors present.

Sectlon 4. Order of Business — The order of business at any regutar
or special meeling of the Roard of Direciors shahi be:

a) Calling the roll.

p) Secrelary's proof of due notice of the meeting.

¢} Reading and disposal of unapproved minutes in the case of
regular meelings of the Board.

d) Report of officers.

g) Unfinished business.
New business.

) Adjournment.

Section 5. A director fnust have at leastone (1) share registgred in his
name during his term of office otherwise, he shall be automaiically c!tsquahﬂed
from the position. The stockholders holding 2/3 of the ou.tstandlng capital
stock i the books of the corporafion may remove a .dtrector who has
absented himseff for three (3) consecutive regular meetings qf the Boglrcl
uniess such absences e executed by reason of sickness, physical disability
or gther justifiable reason(s) acceptable to the Board of Directors.

Section 6. The immediately praceding five (5) past president of the

Club shall become ex-officio members of the Board without the right to vole.

ARTICLE V - OFFICERS

section 1. Designation - Majority of all the Board of l?irgctors 3’( its
first meesting ghall elect a8 Exacutive Officers of the CIg\J_ a F_'nemt#ant, ;r:seIt
President, 8 Treasurel, a Segretary and such other administrative offtcers

may deem proper.




Section 2. Qualificalion — All Execuiive Offi

_ on 2, : jcers of the Club must be
||1cu1annt directars, with the exceplion on the Secretary who must howréve?
be a resident and citizen of ihe Phitippines. ' o

Section 3. Every execuive officers shall be elected by the Board for a
term of.one {1) year, unless sooner ramoved by the Board of Directors, and all
\éacagmes oceurting ameng sueh officers however arising shall be filled hy the

pard.

_ Section 4. Compensalion - The campensation and working conditions
of officers of the Club who are not directors shall be fixed by the Board
Dlrecl_ors acting ae such, or as officers of the Club including members ojf
standing or special commitiees, shall receive no salaries or fees, whatsoever
for {heir services.

Section 5. Duties and Responsibiites — The dguties and
responsibifities of the different officers of the Club are as follows:

a) The President ~ The President shall preside at all meetings and
shall sign the merhership cerlificale of the Club. He shall be the chief
executive officer of the Club and have general supervision of \he pusiness
affairs and properly of the Clup and over its several agents and employees,
willh authority to hire said employee, and dispenses with their services subjecl
io confirmation by the Boad of Directors. He shall sign conlracts on behalf of
the Club and shall see (hat all orders and resoluticns of the Board are cariied
into effect. In acdition 1o the above duties gxpressly vested in him by these
By-Laws, he ghall do and perform such acts and duties as fram the time o
time may be assigned to hiry by the Board of Directors.

b}y The Vice-Presigient - In the absence or disability of the President,
the Vice-Prasident shall exercise alt the powers and discharge all the duties of
the President. The Vice-President shall, in addition, have such powers and
duties as may, from time 10 time be conferred on hirn by the Board.

g} The Treasuret - The Treasurer, except as otherwise provided by
the Board of Direclors, shall have the custody of all moneys, secutities and
yalues of the Club that come into his possession, and shall keep regular
pooks of accounts. He shail deposil salt monsys, securities and values n
such banking. instiulions as may pe designated, from time to time by ihe
Board of Direclors, subiect to withdrawal therefrom on the signature of such
officers of the Club as the Board may, 0y resolution, designate. iHe shaﬂ
perform all other duties incident to his office and all that aré prople_rly required
on him by the Board of Directars. e shall furnish @ bond conditioned upon
{he faithful performance of his duties, if and when required 50 10 do by the
@oard of Directors: ine amount of sald bond io be determined and fixed by the

said Board.

dy The Secrelary ~ The Secrotary shall issue notices of all meelings,

shall keep their minutes, shall have charge of the seal and corporate hooks;




shalll countersig_n the cerfificate of =tock and sign such other instruments as
required such signature, and shall make such reparls and perform such other

duties as are incid i . .
peroatay 1cident to his office or are properly required of him by the Board

ARTICLE VI - COMMITTEES

Section 1. Standing Committee — The President with the

the Board of Directors, shall appoint the chairman and members EEIIZ:;JYT?LQ:
all be non-delinguent members) of the different standing cormimittees of the
Ciub and prescribed thelr respective duties and respansibilities, as well as
creqte new committees as may be necessary for the different handfing of clui:;
affaits. The standing committees are as follows:

a) House g) Finance
by Grounds f)  Adminisbation
¢) Sports and Games q) Enpineering

d} Membership

Section 2. Trust Fund Commitlee — The Trust Fupd Commitiee,
consisting of five (6) members, created pursuant to the resolutions passed by
the stockholders last September 12, 1982, and empowered only to invest the
"THE VALLEY GOLF TRUST FUND" in accordance with law shall meet at
least once a year or anyiime upon request of the Board of Directors. Three
(3) members shall constitute a quorum and the unanimous consent of three
{3) members shall be necessary to constituie a dadision of the Committees.
Any vacancy in the Committee for any reason whatsoever shall be filed by the
Board of Directors,

The Board of Directors shall also determine the amount of the fund to
be administered by the Trust Committes which shatl not be less that the

ariginal amount of P3.5 Milion.

ARTICLE VIt - MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Classification — Membership in he Club sh‘all be classified
into (a) Proprietary {bb) Playing Guest (c) Honovary and (d) Social

a) A proprietary Member ls any person who is the registered
stockholder of at least one (1) shere of stock of the Club whose membersljlp
had been previously approved a5 herleinafter pro‘-ne_:!ed. in gaset thz
proprietary member is a juridical persan it shall be za_nffltled fo desngrk\ja e t;l
representative who shall exercise all the rights and privileges of mem ership

including the right o vote.

. - rred
ember is any person who has been confe.rre
A e nd conditions specified

playing rights by the Board of Directors under terms &
for such membership.




¢} A playing Guestis any person who is the assi . ;
. , signee
rights of & share of stock registered in the name of ancther gersor:: the playing

dy A Social Member is a natural per
N : person who has b
privilege of using the facilities of the Club, except the golf Cgurse:n granted the

Section 2. Membership in the Club shall be subj
. ject for approval by the
Board of Directors upon the favorable recommendalion of the Membe?ship

Committee. Al members shall pay the stipulated montht
assessmants of the Glub. P Y dues and ofner

§ecﬁon 3. A stockhalder, whether a member or not shall nevertheless
be ophgated to pay the regular monthly dues and special assessments
effective from the date of issuance of their respective certificate of stock.

Section 4. Stockholders who subscribed to the additional increase in
capitat stock of P8.1 Millon last August 1981 shall be exciuded from paying
the regular monthly dues and speclal assessments comresponding to such
additional shares until they decide to sell the same, or to assign the playing
fights corresponding thereto.

ARTICLE Vill - CLUB ACCOUNTS

Section 1. lien — The Club has the first fien on ithe share of the
stockhalder who has, In hisfherfits name, or in the name of an assignes,
outstanding accounts and hiabilities in favor of the Club to secure the payment
thereof.

Section 2. No sale, of transfer of a share of stock, shall be registered
in the bocks of the Club unill and unfess the lien established under Section 1
and the requirements of Article Vi1, Section €, shall have been first fully
satisfled,

Section 3. The account of any member shall be presented to such
member every manth. ¥ any statement of accounts remained unpaid for &
period of forty-five (45) days after cut-off date, sa}id member may be _pqsted as
delinquent. No delinguent member shall be entitled to enjoy the privileges of
such membership for the duration of the delinquency. After the member shall
have been pested as delinquent, the Board may order his/ner/its share solcl_ to
satlsfy ihe claims of the Club; pursuant to such rules and procedures wh_ich
the Board of Directors may promulgate to govern the conduct of sale!aucttc:n
of shares of delinquent members, after which the member foses his/her/its

rights and privileges permanently. No Memher can be indebted to the Ciub at

any time any amournit in excess of the credit limit set by the Board of Directers

from time to time. The unpaid account referred io here includes non—pa_yment
of dues, charges and other assessments and non-payment for subscriptions.




1

ARTICLE IX - FISCAL YEAR

The Fiscal Year of the Club shall commence on the first day of July of
each year and shall close on the 30" day of June of the following year.

ARTICLE X - AMENDMENT

Section 1. These By-Laws may be allered, amended or repeafed at
any meefing of stockholders by a majority cf the subscribed capital stock.

The Board of Directors, by resalution, may likewise amend these By-Laws, as
however, shall be circularized to al stockholders.

ARTICLE X1 - TRANSITORY PROVISIONS

These By-Laws shall be deemed lo be complete and shali repeal the
By-Laws, including amendments adopted prior to this date.
Adopted June 6, 1958, at Manila, Philippines.

(Sgd.)  Francisco R. Aguinalde {5gd.) Tomas B Aguirre
(Sgd)  Aruro A. Alafiiz {Sgd.) . Antenio Araneta
(Sgd) Luis Ma. Aranefa (Sgd) ChestBabst
(Sgd) Charles T, Blacoft {Sgd) Manuel Barredo
(Sgd.} Caonstantine Baulista (Sgd.) Henry Beidfan
{Sgd) Henty E. Bennatt (5gd.} Enrigue Brias
(5gd) Jaime Brlas {$gd) Franclsco CGacho
(5gd) Jose A, Cacho {sgd) Antonlo Roxas Clhua
(Sgd.} Pedro Cojuangeo (Spd.) Rlc_arda Consunji
(Sgd) Jose Ma. Corles (5gd.) Femf Coﬁeﬁ |
(Sgd.} Bienvenhida Cruz (Sgd.) Benilo Cu D'm eng
(8gd.) Alfonso R. da Damperre (Sgd,) Pompeyo n;z
sgd.) Jose Feria {Sgd.) Jose Fernandez
Esgd') Robert Fiader (Syd) Isauro Cabaldon
(Sgd..} Regino D, Gamboa (Sgd.) Amnmc_Gonzales
(Sud.) Rafael Gonzales Eggf:ll)) g;o:}: ﬁhaGnugerram

) F.R, Hallin gd) ¥ !
%ggglg B Jalbugana (Sgu) ErpestKahin
{Sgd') Jcl,sé Klar (8gd) Andres Libaro

' i {sgdy Peler Lim
{Sgd)} P.L.Lim A
(Sgd) Jose Locsin (ggc;.)) I\(gagu;_s:):;;?a
(8gd) Honrado G, Lope2 (Lsgd..) Aﬁtr:tnia P. Madrigal
((Zg?:)) fl\z)[:zdPo 1i_\nl':azdrigal (8gd.) CD”SSWE‘;’“;'] P. M‘anahan

‘ ‘ {Sgd.) Ricards 2. anotoc
(5gd) o Maﬂg]al?us (5gd) Antonio Miranda
(Sgd) Fagslmo Ma.tllla () Aureli Vontinata, Jr
(sgd) Serglo Montinola, Sr. (5563 K Nathan
(293') ?gg;go!\rqz::tmu\a (Sgd) Sebaslian Ol.ive;os
((sgd')} Eduarde Ortigas (SQ:J f]:ﬂ{aﬂﬂ'lsgggfa

. . (Sg ) -|gue i
(Sad) Ra‘a-‘gltogg:; (Sgd.) Sanlfado Plrcons.'!
(Sgd)) Evarso o3 {5ge) Carlos Quirino y
(Sac? j\l? . re;:ecm (Sgu) Narciso Reyes, J-
(Sgd.) onsc

(Sgd)  Victer Reyes (Sgd.) Fernando 5. Reco
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(5gd.)
(Sgd.)
(Sgd.)
{Sgd.)
{Sgd.)
(Sgd.)
(8gd.)
(Sgd.)
{Bgd.)
(8gd.)
{Sgd.)
(5ad)
(8gd.}

Antonic Roxas
Erneste D. Ruflno
Andres Scriano
Jose Marla Sarlano
Celso A, Tuasaen
James Uy

Alfredo Veiayo
Alfredo Villa Abrille
Gerald Wilkinson
Felipe Ysmast
Waller Euyang

Yu Khe Tai

Jesus S. Yujuica

(§gd.)
(Sgd.}
(Sgd.)
(8gd.)
(Sgd.)
(Sgd.)
(Sgd)
{Sad.}
(Sgd)
(Sgd.)
(5gd.)
(Sgd.)
{5gd.)

Eduardo Roxas

Luis 8. Santayana
Andras Soriano, Jr.
Washington Syclp
Juan E. Tuason
Miguel R. Unson
Jaine Velasquez
Alfred C. vellsuth
Farpando Villareal, Sr.
Claude M. Wilson, Jr.
Yy Khe Siang
Alejandra 8, Yujuico
Cesar de Zuluela




_ We, the undorsigned represeniing the majorily members 61:"‘12!3
Dircetors and the Corporale Seoretary of YALLEY GOLF & COUNTR
INC. do hereby cerlily that the altachad By-Laws of said corpotalion wag am nded by
{he vote of the stockholders representing at least a majority of the outstanding ¢a Ttk
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DIRECTORS CERTIFICATE

stock at a meeting held on September 26, 2010, af the principal office of the

corporation.

) The amendment was likewise approved by majority of the directors at a
meeting held at the principal office of the corporation, on August 21, 2010,

The mnended provisions of the altached Amended By-laws refer to Article
111, Section 8 aud Article IV of the By-Laws, to wit:

Arlicle 111, Section 3, Eligibility to vete aud be voled -

a}) Culy slockholders in good standing shall have the right to vole and be
voted upon al any meeting of the stockholders. )

alifications of Nominees For the Blsctivn of Direclors:

) Qualifications of Nominees o the Fleotion of Diteotots:

il

iv.

Has one (1} share recorded in hisfher name for at least thrae (3)

ears at the time of nomination and shall continue Lo own 8
share during_hisfher term of office. If the nomince has been @
rnember of a standin committee for at least one 1) year, O &
playing_guest or corporate reprosentative for_at least two (2)
years,_the {hree-year requirement will e reduced _to one (1)
year,

1s_an_aglive plo vielary _membes who has not assi ned the
1aving right of isther share of stack upou his/her pomination
has comuitted in writn nol to asgign said playing right duging
Tnis/her incumbency i eloeted, and is in pood standing, with no
delinguent account/s: '

L TR e

Shall _have sufficient _time and witling to _share his/her
Lo essional and exegutive gxpettise: and,

Las no official record of prave and sericus misconduct that
mertied _Club membership  sus engion _and has not_been
convicted in 2wy oriminal_case. (A4S anended by the
stockholders on Septentber 26, 2010 and by the Board of

Direciors on Augist 21, 2010).




Article IV - Directors

Section 1. Beatd of Directors — The business and property of the Club shall be
managed by a Board of nine (§) Dirsctors. Al the next annual stockholders® mesting,
nine (9) Directors shall be elected, the st three (3) Direstors receiving the highest
number of votes shall serve for a term of Uwree {3) years; (he three {3} other Directors
receiving the next highest number of votes shall ssrve for a tetm of two (2) years; and
the remaiting three (3) Directors shall serve for a term of one (1) year. Every yeat
thereufler, aL the annual stockholders’ meeting, there shall be three (3) elected
Directors who shall serve for a term of laree (3) years. No Direclors can serve
consecutively for more than three (3} years.

No more than sixly (60) days prior to the apmual mesting of stoclkholders, the
President with the approval of fhe Board of Direclors, shall appoint a mominating
Canunitiee of five (5) stockholders, three (3) of whom are not Directors. The said
sominating Comimitiee shall prepare, sign and post at least fifteen (15) days tefore the
annual meeking, a list of not less than four (4) sor more than six (6) candidates for the
Board of Direclors for the ensuing year. Any five (5) stockholders may nominaie
additional candidates for the Board by pesiing & signed list not later than ten (10) days
before Lhe Annwal Mesting, m_@;mg@m_meshﬂ%@ﬂi——”m@“—@
lo_ensure_compliance with the required gualifications A list of the gualified
candidates nominated shall be included in fue notice of the annual meeting that ig sent
out to each stockholder. (4s amended by the stochholders on September 26, 2010

ard by the Board of Divectors on August 21, 2016)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hercby set out hands this b day of
2010, at gﬂﬁpﬂbﬂ(r ", Philippines.

B e P, CRUZ ROBERTO ROXAS
President/Director Vice President/Director
TIN: 128-282-687 TIN MNo. 106-207-376

Asst, Trea: neer/Director

eagurer/Director TIN: 146-297 505

TIN: 103-950-996

' . QUIOG
JOSEWERLY SUBARI NUELP. Q

Direclor _ oo 42
TIN: 125-972-748 TIN: 115-9

Wﬁﬁo & REGALAD GEN. ROMED T. RICARDO
Tr
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ALFL A, FIGUERAS

Director
TIN: 106-169-744

vISAURO SAN PEDRO, JR.
Director
TIN: 115-968-382

Certified Cortget by:

PEDRO H. MANIEGO, JR
Corporate Secretary
TIN: 130-488-850
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GUBSCRIBED AND SWORN (o before me this?. W™ doy of
. 2000, 8t M i % by the above-named persens who
exhibited to me their Competént T entificaticfh.
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MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING OF
VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
Held at the Main Clubhouse
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.,
Don Celso Tuason Avenue, Antipolo City
24 September 2017 at 4:00 p.m.

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES QUTSTANDING 1,593
TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES 917
PRESENT/REPRESENTED (57.6%)
AND ENTITLED TO VOTE )

L CALL TO ORDER

The Chairman, Mr. Isauro V. San Pedro, Jr., called the meeting to order and
presided over the same. The Corporate Secretary, Mr. Rio Sesinando E. Venturanza,
recorded the minutes of the proceedings.

IL CERTIFICATION OF NOTICE AND QUORUM

The Secretary confirmed that notices of the meeting were duly sent to all
members of the Club together with a copy of the materials for the meeting.

Based on a certificate issued by the Club’s courier, Suremail Courier Services
Inc., attesting to the mailing of the notices of the meeting to the Club’s stockholders of
recotd, the Secreiary certified that notices of the meeting were sent to all stockholders of
record as of 25 August 2017. A copy of the certificate has been attached to this minutes
pursuant to the instructions of the Chairman.

The Secretary certified that, based on the register of attendees and proxies as
tabulated by the Stock Transfer Agent, out of the 1,593 shares representing the total
outstanding capital stock of the Club, 917 shares of stock were present in person or by
proxy representing an attendance of 57.6%of the total outstanding capital stock of the
Club. Accordingly, the Secretary certified that a quorum existed for the transaction of the
business at hand.

[i. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE LAST STOCKHOLDERS'
MEETING

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the reading of the minutes of the last
stockholders’ meeting held on 25 September 2016 was dispensed with as the same had
been previously circulated/distributed to the stockholders. The Chairman opened the floor
for questions about the minutes of the 2016 Annual Stockholders® Meeting. There being
no questions raised, the minutes of the last stockholders’ meeting was thereafter approved
as circulated/distributed:

VOTES IN VOTES
AGENDA ITEM FAVOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
Approval of Minutes of the 917 0 0
Previous Meeting of Stockholders (57.6%) (0.00%) (0.00%)

The following resolution was thereafter passed:




“RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of the
Stockholders of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. (the
‘Corporation”)held on 25 September 2016 be as it is hereby approved.”

IV. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES OF TIHHE LAST
STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING

The Chairman, Mr. Isauro V. San Pedro, Jr., opened the floor for inquiries relative
to the previous year’s minutes.

M. Jose Ferlu Sudario raised two concerns. First, he asked why the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting is being held late and second, the Annual Report was also
distribuied late. According to him, it was his first time to experience this kind of delay in
the stockholders meeting.

The Chairman apologized and explained the cause of delay. The Board wanted to
make sure the members of the Board of Directors are in complete attendance before the
meeting started. A member of the Board happened to represent the Club in a golf
tournament that was held almost at the same time. For the betterment of the Club and
pursuant to Mr. Sudario’s request, the Board noted and put on record his two concerns.

After the Chairman’s explanation and considering that there are no other
questions relative thereto, the Chairman proceeded with the next item on the agenda.

V. READING AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board approved and adopted the
agenda for the 24September 2017 Annual Stockholders’ meeting as presented.

VL. PRESIDENT’S REPORT AND PRESENTATION OF AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Chairman, Mr. Isaurc V. San Pedro, Jr. manifested that all stockholders were
provided copies of the Club’s Annual Report.

The Chairman, presented the Club’s 2016 Annual Report and Audited Financial
Statements. According to him 2016 was a relatively good year for the Club. He then
presented the financial performance indicators for 2016 vs. 2015.

Thereafter, the Chairman opened the floor for questions regarding the 2016
Annual Report specifically on the Club’s operations and Financial Statements. No
questions having been raised by the stockholders present, the Annual Report together
with the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017,
was, upon motion duly made and seconded, approved based on the results of the voting
via poll:

AGENDA ITEM VOTES IN FAVOR | VOTES AGAINST ABSTAIN
Approval of 2016 917 0 0

Annual Report and
Amallepotond | o @0 a0

The following resolution was likewise approved:

“RESOLVED, that the 2017 Annual Report on the operations of
VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. (the “Corporation’)
together with the Audited Financial Statements and accompanying notes




for the fiscal year 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017, be as it is hereby
approved.”

VII. RATIFICATION OF CORPORATE ACTS

- The Chairman next presented for the stockholders’ confirmation, ratification, and
approval a list of the acts of the Club’s Board of Directors and Management for Fiscal
Year July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 including disposal of non-performing assets and
settlement of cases that may involve disposal of some Club properties from the date of
the last stockholders’ meeting up to this meeting.

Upon a motion being made and duly seconded to confirm, ratify, and approve ali
the acts of the Club’s Board of Directors and Management, including the disposal of non-
performing assets and settlement of cases that may involve disposal of some Club
properties from the date of the last stockholders’ meeting up to date of the present
meeting, and there being no objection from any of the stockholders® present, the motion
was approved based on the results of voting via poll:

VOTES IN VOTES
AGENDA ITEM FAVOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
Ratification of all acts of the
Board of Directors and 917 0 0
Management from the date of the o o
last stockholders® meeting up to (57.6%) (0.00%) ' (0.00%)
the date of the present meeting.

The following resolution was likewise approved:

“RESOLVED, that all acts of the Board of Directors and
Management of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUBRB, INC. (the
‘Corporation’) for the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017, including the
disposal of non-performing assets and settlement of cases that may involve
disposal of seme Club properties from the last stockholders’ meeting on
25September 2016 up to the date of this meeting, be as they are hereby

" confirmed, ratified and approved.”

VI APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Chairman informed the audience that, after deliberations and upon the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors approved the re-
appointment of Sycip Gorres Velayo & Company (SGV & Co.) as the Club’s external
auditor for the year 2017-2018.

No questions or objections having been rai sed by the stockholders present despite
opportunity given, the proposal to re-appoint SGV & Co. as the Club’s external auditor
for year 2017-2018 was approved by the stockholders based on the results of voting via
polk:

VOTES IN VOTES E

AGENDA ITEM FAVOR AGAINST ABSTAIN ‘
Re-appointment of Sycip Gorres 917 0 0
Velayo & Company as External |
Audi:{or for 20112/'—2%18 ) (57.6%) (0.00%) (0.00%)
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The following resolution was likewise approved:

“RESOLVED, that VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB,
INC. (the ‘Club’) hereby approves the re-appointment of Sycip Gorres
Velayo & Company as the Bank’s external auditor,for Year 2017-2018.”

[X. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Chairman declared a recess to allow for the election of three new directors for
Valiey Golf & Country Club Inc.

Mr. San Pedro, Jr. then announced the names of the nominees and informed the
audience that the nominees, whose profiles appear in the Club’s Information Statement
and Annual Report, were duly screened by the Nomination Committee.

At this point, Chairman San Pedro Jr. called on the Chairman of the Commission
on Elections (Comelec), Atty. Plaridel J. Bohol II, to preside over the proceedings to elect
the new Directors. The other members of the Comelec were Atty. Joel B. Ferrer and
Atty. Felipe T. Cuison. The following were the official nominees:

Donald Joseph C. Macomb
Wilftedo G. Manahan
Jeremy 7. Parulan

Albert DG. San Gabriel

Votes were then tabulated with the following candidates receiving the number of
votes indicated opposite their respective names:

Nominee No. of Votes Received
In Person By Proxy Total
Mr. Donald Joseph C. Macomb 1 0
Mr. Wilfredo G. Manahan 13 926 939
Mr. Jeremy Z Parulan 31 817 848
Mr. Albert DG. San Gabriel 21 714 735

Mr. Bohol then announced that based on their tabulation, Messrs. Manahan,
Parulan and San Gabriel received the three highest numbers of votes and endorsed the
election results to the Board.

The Chairman called the meeting to resume and after noting the Comelec
announcement, confirmed on behalf of the Board the election of Messrs. Manahan,
Parulan and San Gabriel as the newly elected members of the Board of the Club to serve
as such from 2017-2019.

IX. OTHERMATTERS

The Chairman opened the floor for other issues and/or unfinished business.

A. PP Sierra Two Questions regarding Don Celso Tuason Avenue

Past President Sierra raised two questions. First is on re-blocking of the Don
Celso Tuason Avenue (DCTA). He is wondering why the third phase of the re-blocking
plan has not been implemented since it has been previously approved by the past board.

Second was the need to close the road in fromt of Valley View
Royale as squatters arc using the same to gain access to Valley Golf. The Chairman
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informed Mr. Sierra that the road has been closed. As to his second query, budget has
already been set aside for the project. Dir. Bucat added that the Club is trying to address
the flooding problem first along DCTA. before resuming road re-blocking. In line with
this, they have already constructed a trench canal in front of Igorot Village to catch the
big run of rain water along Don Celso.

B. Awarding of Plague

Thereafter, the Chairman proceeded to the awarding of plaque of appreciation to
the outgoing Directors including himself.

PP Sierra moved to commend not only the three outgoing members but the entire
members of the Board as well.

At this point, the Corporate Secretary, Atty. Venturanza, together with the
members of the Comelec, awarded the plaque of appreciation to Dir. Lakan Fonacier in
recognition for his invaluable contributions to Valley Golf as a member of the Board of
Directors from 2014 to 2017. He also served as the Chairman of the Sports and Games
Committee (2014-2015); Chairman of the Security Committee (2014- 2015); Chairman
of the Membership Committee(2015-2016) and lastly; Chairman of the Audit
Committee(2016-2017).He was followed by Director Alexander S. Marquez for his
invaluable contribution as member of the Board of Directors from 2014 to 2017and
Chairman of the Real Estate Committee (2016-2017). Finally, plaque of appreciation was
awarded to outgoing President Mr. Isauro V. San Pedro, Jr. in recognition of his
invaluable contributions to the Club as member of the Board of Directors (2014-2017);
Chairman of the Administration Committee (2014-2016), and; President of the Club
(2016-2017).

The Chairman then inquired whether there are other matters which the
stockholders would like to discuss.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no other maiters to be discussed, the meeting was thereupon

adjourned.

Attested by:

RIO SESINANDO E. VENTURANZA
Corporate Secretary




